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In Re Applications of
AZALEA Corp., Mostie, Ana.
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W.G.O.K., Inc. (WGOK), Mostrs, Aa.
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File No. BP-17477
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Pror.e’s ProcresstvE Rapro, Inc., Mosme,|
ALA.
Mosite Broapcast Service, Inc., Moptiz, Aua.|
For Construction Permits
MemoranpuM

OPINIon

AND

ORDER

( Adopted November 21, 1972; Released November 24, 1972)
By rinn Review Boarp:

1. Each of the mutually exclusive applicants in this standard broadcast. proceeding seeks an authorization to operate on the frequency
960 kiIz, 1 kw, daytime only, at Mobile, Alabama. Azalea Corporation
(Azalea), People’s Progressive Radio, Inc. (People’s), and Mobile
Broadcast Service Inc., (MBS) request authority to construct a new
Class III station, whereas W.G.O.K., Inc., licensee of Class II standard

broadcast Station WGOK, seeks to modify the present facilities of its
daytime-only Mobile station. By Memorandum Opinion and Order,
FCC 67-756, 32 FR 10685, 10 RR 2d 717, published July 20, 1967, the
Commission designated the applications for consolidated hearing on
various issues, including Suburban issues against Azalea and MBS.
The proceeding is pending before the Review Board on exceptions
directed to the Administrative Law Judge’s Initial Decision, FCC
69D-25, released April 22, 1969, wherein he concluded that, with the
exception of Azalea, which had failed to sustain its burden under the
Suburban issue, the other applicants had demonstrated their requisite
qualifications, and recommended a grant of the MBS application under
the standard comparative issue. In reaching this result, the Presiding
Judge resolved the Suburban issue in favor of the preferred applicant,
and extensive exceptions have been addressed by the parties to this
end other determinations of the Presiding Judge. Following oral
argument before the Review Board on February 17, 1970, the issuance
of the Board’s final Decision in this proceeding was stayed by the
Commission during the pendency of the Primer inquiry proceeding in
Docket No. 18774. See /nterim Procedure Relating to Submission of
Community Survey Showings in Connection with Radio and Television Applications, 22 FCC 2d 421, 18 RR 2d 1923 (1970). On February 23, 1971, the Commission released its Report and Order adopt38 F.C.C. 2d
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ing the Primer on Ascertainment Problems by Broadcast Applicants,
27 FC C 2d 650, 21 RR 2d 1507, and stated in paragraph 79 thereof
that: “[.A|pplicants im pending hearing cases may amend their applications if deemed necessary in view of our action here, within ninety
(90) days of the release of the Report and Order, or such further
a as the presiding tribunal may allow for cause shown”. Presently
before the Review Board for consideration are two amendments, filed

on May 24, 1971 and February 2, 1972, respectively, by Azalea and
MBs, which set forth additional information regarding the applicants’ ascertainment of community needs. Also before the Board are
two petitions to dismiss applications and eight separate petitions to
reopen the record, which were filed by WGOK, Peoples and MBS in
order to disclose various events occurring since the close of the record
in this proceeding on December 10, 1968.7
THE

SUBURBAN

AMENDMENTS

Within the period specified by the Commission in paragraph 79
of the Report and Order and in response to a disqualifying Suburban
issue, Azalea tendered a Suburban amendment with’ theS
Secretary
of the Commission.? In the amendment, Azalea identifies the two reference sources it consulted to ascertain the demographic characteristics
of the Mobile area and describes Mobile and its environs in terms of
population, educational facilities, government and labor force. The
number of churches and hospitals in the area, as well as the cireulation of the area’s major newspaper, is also included in this material.
The applicant further reports that it conducted a leadership survey
and a telephone survey of the general public to ascertain the community problems of Mobile and its environs. Approximately 46 of the
area’s community leaders, who are identified by name and organization, were allegedly interviewed by Azalea and a brief enumer ration of
the thirteen community problems reportedly culled from these interviews is set forth. Also included is a listing of the area’s problems,
derived from the 204 households that responded i in Azalea’s telephone
sampling, and broken down into the following five general categories:
(1) general social factors; (2) ecology and quality of life; (3) interpersonal relations; (4) personal economic factors; and (5) drug abuse.
Azalea does not intend to change the proposed programming which
it has described at the hearing, namely, programs directed to the
needs of the Black community in Mobile; rather, the applicant. submits — the information elicited from its most recent surveys will be
used “as
a guide to the content of the programming heretofore
venue’ ‘
3. Following appeals to the Review Board and the Commission concerning the submission of further Suburban showings in this proceed1A list of the numerous pleadings now before us is contained in the attached
As indicated, the last pleading was not filed until November 13, 1972.

2 By Order,

of the
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amendment

71R—299,
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released

October
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6, 1971,
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Review
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Appendix.

consideration
accompanied

by proof of service upon the parties to this proceeding as required by Rule 1.296. Service
was effected on October 21, 1971, and comments
regarding the amendment
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on November
1, 1971
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Bureau
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respectively.
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ing,’ a telephone survey of Mobilearea residents was conducted in
mid-October of 1971, by a temporary chighanie who worked under the
direction of two MBS stockholders. In all, 110 residents of Mobile and
the surrounding area were interviewed and four problems (schools and
school busing, pollution, crime, and jobs and industrial development)
are listed as the most frequently mentioned problems facing the
immediate area. A similar grouping is also included for the most important state-wide problems in the respondents’ view. From Novem
ber, 1971 to —s 1972, three MBS stockholders conducted a survey
of Mobile area leaders.* Seventeen Blacks and six women are among
the 51 bein whom MBS named as participants and identified by
occupation or affiliation. Among the eleven significant local problems
identified in this leadership survey are unemployment, air and water
pollution, lack of governmental leadership, and failure of public education. A listing of the four problems of state-wide concern and the
programming suggestions mentioned by the community leaders are
also set forth in the MBS amendment. According to MBS, the community needs and problems ascertained in its latest surveys will be
met in the daily, one-hour public affairs program which is encompassed in the programming proposal the applicant presented at the
hearing. Further, the applicant plans to conduct monthly public
opinion surveys and to present the results of these surveys, along with
interested speakers, as one of the features within MBS’s alre: vdy proposed six-hour Sunday afternoon music and news program.
4. In its responsive pleadings, the Broadcast Bureau submits that
the proffered amendments do not satisfactorily demonstrate that either
Azalea or MBS

has met its Suburban issue. Specifically, the Bureau

points out that neither the interviewer nor the date of Azalea’s

inter-

views are set forth; that only one Black community leader was contacted; that the random basis of the general public survey is not

shown; and that Azalea has proposed no new programming to satisfy
the community needs and problems ascertained in the aforenoted sur———

a

3 Although

the Review Board was of the opinion that the Commission’s statement in
paragraph 79 of the Report and Order would permit all of the applicants in this proceeding to revise their Suburban showings, the matter, raising novel questions of first
impression affecting a substantial number of other adjudicatory proceedings, was certified
to the Commission in order to promote the orderly and efficient administration of Com-

mission
230 FCC

business.

See

29

FCC

2d

453,

21

RR

2d

1201

(1971).

By Order,

FCC

71-589,

2d 1, released June 9, 1971, the Commission indicated that, consonant with its
Public Notice of June 4, 1971 (Amendments by Applicants in Pending Hearing Cases to
Comply with the Primer on Ascertainment of Community Problems, 30 FCC 2d 136, 21 RR
2a 1746), Suburban
amendments
by the applicants herein should be accepted and consideration thereof should be limited to the resolution of the disqualifying issue. On June 11,
1971, MBS requested the Commission to reconsider its action, challenging the propriety
of allowing Azalea to amend its Suburban showing and seeking to ascertain whether it

was

required

to resurvey

the community’s

needs

and

interests,

notwithstanding

the

Pre-

siding Judge’s conclusion that MBS had met the Suburban standards in force when its
application was filed. On September 7, 1971, the Commission released its Memorandum
Opinion and Order denying the MBS petition. 31 FCC 2d 561, 22 RR 2d 909. In its Order,
the Commission waived Rule 1.106 and considered the petition on its merits since MBS
had not been afforded a prior opportunity to argue directly on the matters set forth in
the Public Notice of June 4, 1971; restated its determination that “good cause exists for
the submission of an amended showing in all pending hearing cases whether or not the
hearing record has been closed and without regard to an applicant's prior efforts in this

respect’; and concluded that “it would be wholly inappropriate, in the absence of a
detailed examination of the record which is not now before us to decide whether or not a
further [Suburban] showing is required” from MBS.
Reportedly, a detailed questionnaire was used in this survey and the questionnaire
forms reflecting the specific contacts have been retained by MBS.

38 F.C.C. 2d
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vey.” With respect to the MBS amendment, the Bureau contends that
the amendment is unreasonably late and not accompanied by a valid
showing of good cause for its acceptance. In addition, the Bureau urges
that the MBS amendment does not fully comport with the requirements of the Primer and lists two alleged deficiencies to illustrate the
wes ate inadequacies.®
The Review Board believes that the Suburban amendments of
both Azalea and MBS should be accepted and considered on their
merits. The Azalea amendment was tendered within the prescribed
period and is otherwise consistent with the Commission’s Order of
June 9, 1971. MBS did not file its amendment

until February 3, 1972:

however, the question of measuring MBS’s Suburban showing against
the contemporary Commission standards set forth in the Primer was
not finally resolved until September of 1971, and the applicant’s explanation of the less than one-month delay in the subsequent revision
of its Suburban showing, 2.e., the relocation of its principal stockholders, the necessary reliance upon less experience, resident stockholders, and the intervening holiday seasons, persuade the Board that
good cause exists for the acceptance of the instant amendment. (7.
‘Middle Georgia

Broadcasting

Co., 30 FCC

2d 796, 22 RR

2d 524

(1971); City of New
York Municipal Broadcasting System
(WNYC),29 FCC 2d 244, 21 RR 2d 1050 (1971).
Turning to the substance of the amendments, the Review Board
finds that neither applicant appears to have complied fully with the
Primer requirements. According to the demographic information supplied by Azalea, the 1970 Black population of Mobile and Mobile
County was over 35° and 32% of their respective populations of
190,000 and 317,000 persons; however, only one Black community
leader was apparently ¢‘onsulted by the applicant. Rather than indulge
in a “numbers game” with respect to its community survey requirements, the Commission regularly looks to whether the applicant’s survey is representative of the significant segments that. comprise the
community to be served. See Primer, Q. & ‘A. 14; and RKO General.
Tne., 33 FCC 2d 664, 667, 23 RR 2d 930, 934 (1972). A single contact

with Mobile’s Black leadership, however, can hardly be characterized
as an adequate sampling of that segment of the community to which
Azalea plans to specifically orient itsprogramming. See North Texas
Enterprises, Incorporoted, FCC 72-197, 37 FR 5316, published January 12, 1972. In addition, Azalea has supplied virtually none of the
basic information required by the Primer as to how the subject surveys were designed and conducted. fg. Primer, Q. & A. 11(c),
11 (b), 13(b), and 15. Other shor tcomings in Azalea’s Suburban showing ine seb the failure to relate the thirteen broad program categories
allegedly derived from its leadership survey, such as “crime,” “pov5 MBS argues with the Bureau’s evaluation of the Azalea amendment and maintains
that the new material cannot be considered by the Board, unless and until the record
is reopened and the proceeding remanded in order to afford the parties an opportunity to
eross-examine with respect thereto.

6 In response

to the specific deficiencies

noted by the Bureau,

information concerning its ascertainment efforts, which
consider. Since the material is supplemental in nature

opposed, the Board has considered the applicant’s latest Suburban
See paragraph 3, supra.
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erty”, and “civil rights”, to the specific needs and interests of Mobile,
and the failure to particularize what programs are designed to meet
the specific problems ascertained. See Primer, Q. & A. 29; Frank M.
Cowles, FCC

72R-267, 25 RR 2d 475; and William R. Gaston, 35 FCC

2d 624, 24 RR 2d 779 (1972); Br oadcasting Service of Carolina, Inc.,
30 FCC 2d 311, 22 RR 2d 289 (1971). In the same vein, the Suburban.

showing tendered by MBS suffers from several key deficiencies. MBS
has not submitted a full profile of its community, indicating (in addition to the community’s racial composition) Mobile’s economic and
governmental activities, its public service or ganizations and any other
factor or activities that make the community distinctive. Without such
2 community analysis, it is not clear that the various groups contacted
by the applicant constitute a representative cross-section of the specified community. See Guy S. Erway. FCC 72-879, 37 FR 22899, published October 26, 1972; Harry D. Savimewiie and Robert EP.
Stephenson, 33 FC (: 29d 749, 753-54, 23 RR Yd 760, 766 (1972); North
American Broadcasting Co., Ine., 30 FCC 2d 806, 22 RR 2d 508 (1971).

Like Azalea, MBS has also failed to adequately correlate its proposed programming with any particular ascertained need. The applicant’s statement that it will deal with all of the community problems
cliscovered in its latest surveys in its one-hour public affairs program
lacks the specificity called for by the Commission and this matter
should be explored in an evidentiary hearing. See Cosmos Broadcasting @ orporation

(WSFA-TYV),

31 FC C 2d 200, 22 RR 2d 723

( 1971);

Middle Georgia Broadcasting Co., supra. In sum, both subject a
ments lack the information required by the Primer which would enable
the Review Board to conclude that each applicant has ascertained the
community needs and interests of the area to be served by the proposed
station and has designed programming in response to the community's
ascertained needs as evaluated. In view of the foregoing, the Board
believes that this proceeding must be remanded for further hearing
under the Suburban issues and for preparation of a Supplemental
Initial Decision resolving these issues.
THE

PETITIONS

TO

REOPEN

TITE

RECORD

7. Subsequent to the issuance of the Initial Decision in this proceeding, Peoples requested the Review Board to reopen the record and
remand the proceeding under added issues concerning MBS’s failure
to report the imposition of a lien against its principals and the effect
thereof upon the applicant’s character and financial qualifications.
According to petitioner, the State of Alabama Department of Industrial Relations filed the subject lien with the Mobile County Probate
Court on August 28, 1969, against the realty of two MBS stockholders,
Howard L. and E. Howard Smith. The lien, which arose from the
Smith’s failure to make the required state unemployment. compensa-

tion payinents for covered e mployees of Station WLPR-FM, totalled
S177.87 ($104.88 in payments plus $72.99 for interest and penalty).’
7 At

that

time,

the

Smiths,

acting

as

Mobile

Broadeast

Station WLPR-FM,
Mobile, Alabama. On August
approved the voluntary assignment
(BALH—1353)
Sound

Broadeast

the Commission

Corporation.

and

By

the parties

letter

to this

of

September

proceeding

‘Service.

were

the

licensee

of

26, 19790, however, the Commission
of the station from the Smiths to
2,

1970,

counsel

for

of the consummation

MBS

informed

of the

approved

sale,
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It is the contention of Peoples that the lien should have been reported
within the 30-day period prescribed by Rule 1.65 and that the existence
of the lien raises a vital question as to the ability of the Smiths to fulfill their substantial commitments to the applicant.®
8. MBS opposes petitioner’s request, disputing the decisional significance of the lien in light of Howard L. Smith’s acquisition of his
subscribed stock and E. Howard Smith’s demonstr ated ability to honor
his financial commitments to MBS. See note 7, supra. Attached to
MBS’s pleading is an affidavit of Howard L. Smith, who states therein
that in September of 1969, he was informed by the local director of
the state unemployment office that the station’s first two quarterly
installments of the unemployment compensation payment, which contribution had theretofor been made on an annual basis, had matured.
The afliant further states that although a check was drawn for the
amount due and sent to the Alabama Department of Revenue, he was
later informed by a representative of the county sheriff's office that
the check should have been drawn payable to the Alabama. 1 Inemployment Compensation Agency and that another check for the amount
claimed and a collection fee should be drawn payable to the Sheriff of

Mobile County. As directed, Smith reportedly sent the required check
to the sheriff's office.» Howard E. Smith also avers that during his
conversation with the aforenoted officials, no mention was made of the
existence of the lien and that he aid no record or recollection of recelving, on or about September 1

, 1969, a letter informing Station

WLPR-FM
of the imposition of the lien.
9. In reply, Peoples withdraws its requests for the addition of basic
qualifications issues since it has no reason to disbelieve Howard E.
Smith’s disavowal of receipt of written notice concerning the imposition of the lien. However, petitioner reiterates its contention that the
existence of the lien should have been reported pursuant to Rule 1.65
and renews its request that. the non-disclosure be examined compara
tively, contending that Smith’s discussions with the local officials concerning the indebtedness and the facts cone erning the transmittal of
the written notice of the len should be determined on the basis of an

evidentiary record,’°

10. The obligation in question arose from the Smiths’ operation of

Station WLPR-FM; however, the Review Board is not persuaded
that the mere existence of the lien is reportable pursuant to Rule 1.65
See Advanced Electronics, FCC 65R-265, 5 RR 2d 980. Besides relevancy, the materiality of or significance of such an obligation must
be demonstrated. See Cosmopolitan Enterprises, Inc. 8 FCC 2d
876, 10 RR 2d 532 (1967). The Board is of the opinion that the lien
5 A limited financial issue which, inter alia, concerned the ability of several stockholders,
including the Smiths, to satisfy their subscription agreements and the ability of E. Howard
Smith to finance his $10,000 loan to the applicant, was specified by the Commission. See
Designation Order, supra. As noted, the Presiding Judge resolved the financial issue in
MBS’s favor, holding that Howard L. Smith has satisfied his stock subscription and that

i. Howard

Smith

has sufficient

net liquid

assets

($13,200)

commitment to the applicant. See Initial Decision, paras.
addressed to these determinations of the Presiding Judge.
® Petitioner's

subsequent

inquiry

ascertained

that

has been paid by the Smiths and that the lien would
[nder

addition

the

circumstances

of a disqualifying

of the requested comparative
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herein is not of sufficient magnitude to have required MBS to disclose
its existence for even if E. Howard Smith had to meet the lien’s
underlying obligation individually, such satisfaction apparently
would not affect his demonstrated ability to fulfill his outstanding
obligations to the applicant.'! See note 7, supra; and Emerald Broad-

casting Co., 30 FCC 2d 879, 887-89, 22 RR 2d 633, 643-45 (1971);

Virginia Broadcasters, 16 FCC 2d 1024, 15 RR 2d 1016 (1969). Accordingly, we find petitioner’s reliance upon United Television Co.,
19 FCC 2d 1060, 17 RR 2d 467 (1969), to be mis-

Inc. (WFAN-TYV),

placed since the federal tax liens in that case were substantial and
could have seriously affected the applicant’s financial qualifications
had reliance upon funds from the prospective lender-subscriber become
necessary. Apart from the instant indebtedness, there is no indication
that the Smiths, in their operation of Station WLPR-FM, have been
untimely in meeting the station’s debts. In view of both the prior
manner in which the station’s unemployment compensation payments
were made and the alacrity with which the Smiths sought to rectify
their misunderstanding, the Review Board does not regard this one
instance of untimeliness as significant. While Peoples is somewhat
skeptical of Howard L. Smith’s recollection of the conversations with
the aforenoted officials, it has not supported its conjecture with affidavits from these individuals. In the absence of properly documented
allegations, the Board believes that the requested action is not
warranted. See Viking Television Inc., 16 FCC 2d 1018, 15 RR 2d
954 (1969) ; Saul M. Miller, FCC 63R-206, 25 RR 2d 417.
11. MIES also seeks enlargement of the issues against Peoples, arguing that Peoples lacks reasonable assurance of the availability of its
proposed transmitter site and that the applicant has been remiss in
apprising the Commission of changes relating to that site. Examination of the financial and engineering portions of the Peoples application, which was filed on October 24, 1966, reflects that the applicant
plans to utilize the transmission facilities of former standard broadeast
Station WMOZ and to that effect, on August 25, 1966, the applicant’s

president allegedly “entered into a lease-option agreement whereby
either he or his nominee [Peoples] will lease the Station WMOZ
transmitter site, building and equipment from Edwin H. Estes”.%
As noted by MBS, however, Mr. Estes has died and, on February 7,
1972, his widow and executrix transferred the property and facilities
in question to Bernard Dittman, the president of WABB, Inc., which
is the licensee of Station WABB(AM) and the permittee of Station
WABB-FM, Mobile, Alabama.*® According to petitioner, WABB,
11In the Report and Order adopting Rule 1.65 (FCC 64-1037, 29 FR 15516, 3 RR 2d
1622), the Commission noted that applicants are required to report “a change of circumstances . . . sufficiently altering the financial status of an applicant as to be pertinent
to financial qualifications”. “The rule’, explained the Commission, “is not intended to
require

the

mission’s
that

some

reporting

of

consideration
material

minor

of an

matters

changes

application
may

which

under

normally

would

have

no

the public interest

fluctuate

on

a

significance

standard.

day-to-day

basis,

in

We

the

Com-

recognize

such

as

the

financial position of an applicant ... The rule does not contemplate the reporting of
normal, forseeable everyday changes unless they are substantial and might have a significant impact on the status of an application.” 3 RR 2d at 1625.
12 Reportedly, the agreement provided for a $100 monthly rental, which would be increased to $600 ner month upon a grant of the Peoples application, and an option to
purchase the WMOZ facilities for $20,000.

3'The general warranty deed, a copy of which is attached to the instant
that Mrs. Estes has a fee-simple estate in the property and that “said

petition, recites
property is free

and clear of all encumbrances”.

3& F.C.C.
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Inc. has modified, with Commission approval, its existing construction
permit so as to specify the WMOZ property as its transmitter site

and has represented that it will dismantle the existing radio tower at
that site (which Peoples has proposed to use) and erect a new 420-foot
structure. See BMPH-13,476, granted May 10, 1972. Under these
circumstances, MBS submits that Peoples can no longer be reasonably
assured of the availability of its proposed tré unsmitter site and that the
instant proceeding should be remanded for further hearing under a
site availability issue. A Rule 1.65 issue is also requested because of the
applicant’s failure to inform the Commission of the dev elopments
concerning the proposed site.
12. The Review Board will add the requested site availability issue.
We agree with the Broadcast Bureau that the changes in ownership
of the land and facilities in question and the present owner's apparent
intention to utilize the premises for its own purposes require Peoples
to set forth the basis for its assurance concerning the continued availability of the proposed site. See Guy S. Erway, supra; Harry D.
Stephenson and Robert i. Stephenson, 15 FCC 2d 335. 14 RR 2d
945 (1968); John N. Traxler and Alwera M, Traxler.

FCC 65R-191,

5 RR 2d 735 ( oe
Kittyhawk Broadcasting Corporation, 8 FCC
2d 839, 10 RR 2d 628 (1967). The Board believes that the factual allegations

before it, which

are

uncontroverted,

raise a substantial

question as to the availability of Peoples’ site and merit the addition
of an appropriate issue. The related Rule 1.65 issue, however, will not
be added at this time. In this regard, the Board notes that no representation from either Mrs. Estes or Mr. Dittman concerning Peoples’
alleged lease-option or the applicant’s possible use of the property in
question have been supplied and that MBS’s allegations do not comport with the spec ificity requirements of Rule 1 1.229(c). See William
R. Gaston, 35 FCC 2d 615, 14 RR 2d 741 (1972), review denied FCC

72-828, released September 22, 1972; Pettit Broadcasting Co.. FCC
71R-252, 22 RR 2d 717. Of course, should the evidence adduced under

the site availability issue indicate the occurrence of substantial and
material changes affecting the applicant's technical or other qualifications, our action herein would not foreclose MBS from requesting
the addition of appropriate issues."
13. MBS’s other enlargement request is directed to the Azalea application. MBS contends that it recently became aware of the death of

Dr. Francis T. England on September 16, 1971; that Dr. England
had suscribed to a 20% interest in the Azalea corporation; and that
this subseriber’s demise “obviously produced a significant change in
the ownership of Azalea”. A Rule 1.65 issue is requested because of
Azalea’s alleged failure to keep its application substantially accurate
and complete in all significant respects. No pleading in response to
it On

October

20,

1972.

MBS

requested

the

Review

Beard

to dismiss

the

Peoples

anpli-

eation pursnont to Rule 1.4568, arguing that the latter's reticence with respect to the ahove
matters evidences an intention not to further prosecute its application. Snch inference
does not apnear warranted and Peoples’ course of conduct has not placed its anplication
in defeult.

C ‘omp2re

recorsideration
11
to

FCC 24
dismiss.

Uni onitend Serrice

denied

20

FCC

2d

Organization,

1089.

18

RR

24

20

FCC

197

2d

289.

(1970);

17

RR

24

Lehanon

759

Valtiey

(1969),

Radio,

21,11 RR 2d 998 (1967). Accordingly, the Review Board will deny the motion
For the same reasons, we will deny a similar motion to dismiss which MBS

filed on November 13, aguinst Azalea.
await the filing of responsive pleadings
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the instant request has been submitted by Azalea, and the time for
filing said pleading has expired. See Rule 11.294(c). Nor has leave to

amend the Azalea application with respect to this matter been requested. Under the circumstances, the Review Board believes that a
substantial question has been raised concerning the applicant’s compliance with Rule 1.65 and an appropr iate issue will, therefore, be
added. See Creek County Broadcasting Co., 31 FCC 2d 462, 470, 22 RR

2d 891, 902 (1971).
14. Three of the four remaining petitions request the Review Board

to reopen the record for the limite purpose of accepting amendments
to the application of WGOK. The WGOK application, as amended
on October 24, 1966, discloses that the corporate applicant is comprised of two equal stockholders, Jules J. Paglin and Stanley W. Ray,
Jr. who, through various other corporate entities, own the following
standard broadcast stations: WXOK, Baton Rouge, Louisiana;
WBOK, New Orleans, Louisiana; WLOK, Memphis, Tennessee; and
K YOK, Houston, Texas. Through the proffered amendments, WGOK
now seeks to update its application to reflect, ‘nter alia, Commission
consent to the voluntary

assignment

of Stations

WBOK,

WLOK,

and KYOK and their disposal i in June of 1969; the death of Stanley
Ray, Jr. on November 19, 1970, and the corporate realignments following his demise; Mr. Paglin’s assumption of the decedent’s corporate and staffing duties at Station WGOK; and Commission consent
to the voluntary assignment of Station WXOK and the sale of that
station on June 1, 1972. WGOK asserts that no other party to this
proceeding will be prejudiced by a grant of its petitions and acceptance of the attached amendments. None of the applicants herein
opposes WGOK’s request; however, the Broadcast Bureau submits
that while the amendments may be accepted by the Board, their acceptance should be permitted only with the understanding that no comparative advantage accrue to WGOK by virtue of the reported
changes,
15. Rule 1.65 requires an applicant to amend or seek to amend its
pending application whenever the information set forth therein is no
longe ‘r accurate and complete in all material respects. Disposition of
the request to amend, howeve r, depends on the facts of the particular
case, for the “rule does not affect the rules governing amendment of
applications in hearing status and is not intended as a means for
applicants to improve their comparative positions vis-a-vis other applieants.” Report and Order, supra, 3 RR 2d at 1625. See also PD. H.
Ove

PMY¢

P

Communications

Cox

3

FOC

od

557,

7(

RR

od

661

(1966).

A showing of “good cause” must therefore be made before the proffered post-designation amendents can be accepted by the Review
Board. See Rule 1.522(b). In this regard, foremost in the Board’s consideration are the primary functions of Rule 1.522(b), namely, to prevent undue disruption of the hearing process and to avoid unfairly
prejudicing the parties involved. See Tr iple C Broadcasting Corporalion, 12 FCC 2d 503, 12 RR 2d 1008 (1968).*° Here, as earlier indi1 As we indicated
tendered amendment

in note 3° of the Triple C case, other elements,
resulted from a voluntary act of the amending

be considered and their importance weighed in determining
cause is present. 12 FCC 2d at 503, 12 RR 2d at 1009.

such as whether the
applicant, must also

whether

the

required

good

38 F.C.C. 2d

104.

Federal

Communications

Commission

Reports

cated, the record will have to be reopened and further hearing will be
required. It does not appear that our acceptance of the WGOK amend-

ments would either necessitate rehearing of matters already litigated
or unduly impede the orderly progress of the further hearing. The
reported revisions

in the applic ant’s ownership structure are not al-

leged to have devolved from other than Mr. Ray’s death and there is
no suggestion that the new stockholder, Mr. Paglin’s daughter,
will ac tually participate in the management of the station. See
Triple C Broadcasting Corporation, supra. Likewise, Mr. Paglin’s
succession to the corporate duties and responsibilities, which initially
were to have been performed by the decedent, has not, in the Board’s

view, visibly enhanced the applicant’s comparative position to the
prejudice of the other applicants.® We therefore find no bar to acceptance of the amendments with respect to the foregoing matters. See
Creek

County

Broadcasting

Co., supra;

Lake-\ valley Broadcasters,

Inc., FCC 65R-120, 4 RR 2d 872. The Review Board, however, cannot
make the required good cause determination with respect to the sale
of the applicant’s four broadcast stations. Examination of the WGOK
amendments fails to disclose any reasonable relationship between the
disposal of these stations and the death of Mr. Ray on November 19,
1970. Indeed, three of the stations were sold prior to November, 1970
and, as to the fourth station, WGOK acknowledged filing an application for the “voluntary assignment of license” more than five months
after Ray’s demise. More important, acceptance of the amendments in
this regard would clearly improve WGOK’s s comparative position visa-vis the other applicants.’’ Accordingly, the portions of the subject
amendments relating to the voluntary changes in the broadcast interests attributable to the amending applicant will be rejected. See
Allied Broadcasting,

Ine. v. FOC,

140 U.S. App.

D.C. 264, 266-67 n.9,

435 F, 2d 68, 70-71 n.9, 19 RR 2d 2071, 2074-75 n.9 (1970) ; The News-

Sun Broadcasting Co., a FCC 2d 770, 775-76, 19 RR 2d 942, 951
(1970), review denied27 FCC 2d 61, 20 RR 2d 1084 (1971); The
Young People’s Church of the Air, Inc., FCC 61-401, 21 RR 476, reconsideration denied FCC 61-851, 21 RR 479
16. In the remaining petition, Peoples requests the Board to reopen
the record for the limited purpose of receiving into evidence two extensions of a bank commitment, upon which the applicant relied at the
hearing, and certain related materials. To place the instant request
in the proper perspective, some relevant background information is
necessary. On October 25, 1967, the Review Board, at the request of
MBS, specified a limited financial issue against Peoples because, inter
alia, the duration, interest rate, repayment provisions and other items
of its $100,000 line of credit from the First National Bank of Mobile
(First National Bank) were not set forth in the commitment letter
supplied by the applicant. See 10 FCC 2d 364, 11 RR 2d 541. The applicant’s financial exhibits were introduced and received into evidence
1 Decedent did not propose to spend an appreciable amount of time at the station.
Accordingly, the Presiding Judge ranked WGOK as the least preferred applicant under the
integration factor. See paragraphs 75-76, and 81 of the Initial Decision.
17 As noted hy the Presiding Judge, Azalea and Peoples have no other broadcast interest.
By virtue of the Smith’s ownership of Station WLPR-FM, WGOK was accorded a “‘slight’”’

preference over MBS under the diversification
and 80 of the Initial Decision.
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at the May 20, 1968 hearing session. Reliance was not placed upon the
original bank commitment letter; rather, the earlier commitment was
superseded by a March 16, 1968 commitment from the same bank,
offering for another one-year period to lend Peoples $100,000 at a fixed
rate of interest. This bank commitment, which again required the
personal endorsements of Peoples’ stockholders and their financial
status remaining as of the date of the letter, also provided for a oneyear moratorium of principal payments with interest and principal
thereafter payable monthly in thirty-six equal installments. The proposed bank loan was available throughout the hearing; however, the
commitment, by its terms, expired on March 6, 1969—nearly three
months after the record’s closing on December 10, 1968.
17. On March 17, 1969, Peoples notified the Commission pursuant to
tule 1.65 that the First National Bank had extended its previous offer
for another one-year period—until March 6, 1970. In this letter, the
bank affirmed the earlier repayment terms, but left the interest rate to
be determined

at the time

of the loan’s

closing.

The

bank

also

reserved the right to determine that the financial status of the endorsers had not deteriorated and called for the submission of current
and complete financial information therefrom in form acceptable to
the bank. In his Initial Decision, the Presiding Judge noted the extension of the March 6, 1968 commitment and resolved the financial
issue in favor of Peoples, holding that the applicant had demonstrated
reasonable likelihood of the availability of the $100,000 bank loan.
With respect to the conditions expressed in the March 12, 1969 letter, he
further stated that “{W |hile the bank has conditioned its commitment
on its satisfaction with the financial condition at the time the loan is
taken down of the principals of People’s who would endorse the note,
such reservation seems to be no more than an explicit. statement of a

reservation which is — it in virtually all loan commitments of this
type here involved”. See paragraph 54 of the Initial Decision. Both
WGOK and MBS excepted to the Presiding Judge’s reference to and
reliance upon the March 12, 1969 bank letter in resolving the financial
issue directed toward Peoples.
18. We turn now tothe subject petition, which was filed on March 13,
1970 and which contains the March 12, 1969 extension and another
letter (dated March 4, 1970) from the First National Bank, again
offering to extend the $100,000 loan commitment until March 6, 1971.
Also submitted therewith is a May 4, 1970 correspondence from the
bank’s president supplementing the terms of the 1970 commitment
letter and a letter from Peoples’ stockholders renewing their agreement to supply the required endorsements. According to Peoples, the
March 4, 1970 extension and related documents have not varied the substance of its record showing or the basis upon which it was found to be
financially qualified. W GOK, on the other hand, disagrees and urges
the rejection of the tendered documents. Alternatively, “WGOK ar gues
that due process requires that it be afforded an opportunity to test the
availability of the proposed bank loan at a further hearing.
So

13'The record reflects that on May 9. 1968, each of Peoples’ stockholders

the required endorsement.

See Peoples Exh. 9.

agreed

to supply
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19. Peoples has requested leave to conform its financial showing to
the present realities: however, the proposed bank commitment, upon
which the applicant’s financial qualifications depends, has with the
passage of time again expired by its terms, and the proffered showing is
no longer current. Accor dingly, the Review Board will dismiss Peoples’
petition to reopen. Our action, however, should not be interpreted as
foreclosing Peoples from demonstrating the present situation concerning its financial qualifications. To resolve the financial issue directed
toward Peoples on the basis of a record showing which is nearly four
years old and which, through the occurrence of subsequent events, is
inconsistent with the present facts, would not, in the Board’s judgment,
be in the public interest where this proceeding will otherwise have to
be remanded for further hearing and the matter in question relates to
the basic qualifications of the applic ant. Cf. Click Broadcasting Company. 25 FCC 2d 511, 20 RR 2d 150 (1970); Hayward
F. Spinks, FCC
62R-70, 24 RR 197. In view of the foregoing circumstances, the Review
Board concludes that Peoples should be afforded an opportunity to update its financial proposal at the further hearing. Cf. Great Lakes Tele-

vision, Inc. FCC 57-772, 18 RR 718, reconsideration denied FCC
57-1155, 13 RR 722, affirmed sub nom. Wyszatycki v. FCC, 105 U.S.
App. D.C. 399, 267 F. 2d 676, 18 RR 2119 (1959).

20, Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the petition to reopen
record, enlarge issues, and remand for further hearings, filed October 28, 1969, by People’s Progressive Radio, Inc., IS DENTED; and
that the petition to reopen the record and enlarge issues, filed October 20, 1972, by Mobile Broadcast Service, Inc., and the petition to
reopen

the ree ord and enlarge issues, filed July 14, 1972, by Mobile

Broadcast Service, Inc., ARE GRANTED to the extent indicated below, and ARE DENIED in all other respects; and
IT IS Fl leap [ER ORDERED, That the petition to reopen the
record, filed May 13, 1970, by People’s Progressive

Radio,

Inc., IS

DISMISSED as moot: and that the motions to dismiss. filed October
20, and November 13, 1972 by Mobile Broadcast Service, Inc. ARE
DENIED: and
22, IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the ainendment, filed
May 24, 1971, by Azalea Corporation, IS ACCEPTED; that the petition for leave to amend, filed February 2, 1972, by Mobile Broadcast

Service, Inc., IS GRANTED and the attached amendment, as supplemented, IS ACCEPTED; and that the petitions for leave to amend
and ry om the record, filed March 24, 1971. November 22, 1971 and
July 6, 1972. by W.G.O.K.,

Inc. (WGOK),

ARE GRANTED and

the

tendered amendments ARE ACCEPTED to the extent indicated in
paragraph 15 of this Memorandum Opinion and Order; and
23. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the Record herein IS
REOPENED; and that this proceeding IS REMANDED to the
Administrative Law Judge for adduction of evidence and issuance of a
Supplemental Initial Decision under the Suburban issues and the following added issues:
To determine whether People’s Progressive Radio, Inc. has reasonable assurance
of the availability of its proposed transmitter site.
38 ¥.C.C.
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To determine whether Azalea Corporation has failed to comply with the provi
sions of Section 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules by keeping the Commission apprised of substantial changes in the matter specifically referred to in this
Memorandum Opinion and Order and, if not, to determine the effect of such noncompliance

on

the basic and/or

24. IT IS FURTHER

comparative

qualifications

of the applicant.

ORDERED, That the burden of proceeding

with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof under the
first added issue herein SHALL BE upon People’s Progressive Radio,
Inc., whereas the burden of proceeding under the second added issue
SHALL BE upon Mobile Broadcast Service, Inc. and the burden of
proof under that issue SHALL BE upon Azalea Corporation.
FreperaL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION,
Ben F. Wapte, Secretary.
APPENDIX
Petition to reopen record, enlarge issues, and remand for further hearing,
filed October 28, 1969, by People’s Progressive Radio, Ine. (Peoples).
Opposition, filed November 25, 1969, by Mobile Broadcast Service, Inc.
(MBS).
Broadcast Bureau’s opposition, filed November 28, 1969.
Reply, filed December 8, 1969, by Peoples.
Petition to reopen record, filed May 13, 1970, by Peoples.
Comments on (5), filed May 22, 1970, by the Broadcast Bureau.
Opposition to (5), filed June 8, 1970, by W.G.O.K., Inc. (WGOK).
Reply to (6) and (7), filed June 18, 1970, by Peoples.
Petition for leave to amend and reopen the record, filed March 24, 1971, by
WGOK.
Amendment, filed May 24, 1971, by Azalea Corporation. (Azalea).
Certificate of service, and amendment thereto, filed October 14, 1971 and
October 21, 1971, respectively, by Azalea.
Broadcast Bureau’s comments on (10), filed November 1, 1971.
Comments on (10), filed November

19, 1971, by MBS.

Petition for leave to amend and reopen the record, filed November 22, 1971,
by WGOK.
Petition for leave to amend, filed February 2, 1972, by MBS.
Opposition to (15), filed February 11, 1972, by the Broadeast Bureau.
teply to (16), filed February 24, 1972, by MBS.
Petition for leave to amend and reopen the record, filed July 6, 1972, by
WGOK.
Petition to reopen the record and enlarge issues, filed July 14, 1972, by
MBS.
Broadcast Bureau’s comments on (19), filed July 26, 1972.
Petition to reopen the record and enlarge issues, filed October 20, 1972, by
MBS.
Broadeast Bureau’s comments on (21), filed November 1, 1972.
Reply to (22), filed November 13, 1972, by MBS.
Motion to dismiss, filed October 20, 1972, by MBS.
Broadcast Bureau’s comments on (24), filed November 1, 1972.
Reply to (25), filed November 13, 1972, by MBS.
Motion to dismiss, filed November 18, 1972, by MBS.
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(KDUB-|

Docket No, 19335
File No. BLCT-2002

For License to Cover Construction Permit
MemoranpuM

OPpiINnIon AND

(Adopted November 21, 1972;

ORDER

Released November 24, 1972

By tHe Review Boarp: Boarp MemMBer NELSON NOT PARTICIPATING.
1. This proceeding involves the application of Dubuque Communivations Corp. (IKDUB-TV) (KDUB) for license to cover construction permit for a television broadcast station in Dubuque, Iowa. By
Memorandum Opinion and Order, FCC 71-1113 (36 FR 21619, published November 11, 1971), the Commission designated the application
for hearing to determine all of the facts and circumstances surrounding the payments made by Gerald Green ! to an employee of a network
and the effect. thereof on the applicant’s qualifications to be a Compara licensee. Now before the Review Board is an appeal, filed
July
19, 1972, from the Administrative Law Judge’s Order (FCC

TIME-856, released July 3, 1972) which denied KDUB’s motion for
admission of facts or, in the alternative, for production of documents.*
. The facts involved are not complex. At a hearing session in this
pro
oceeding, Thomas G. Sullivan, a witness for the Broadcast Bureau,

testified on direct examination that while employed by a network, he
received a sum of money from Green at the time the applicant was
seeking affiliation with the network. In conflict with Green’s testimony
that Green believed he was paying Sullivan the money to hire a consultant, Sullivan testified that he did not tell Green that the money
was for that purpose. KDUB seeks, by its motion, to establish that
John Kemper has testified before the Commission in a non-public
investigatory hearing that he paid money to Sullivan in connection
with the network affiliation of a station other than KDU 1B, and that,
in that other transaction, Sullivan had asserted that the money Kemper
gave him was for a consulant. KDUB now appeals from the Presiding
Judge’ s Order denying its motion that either the Broadcast Bureau
produe e Kemper’s testimony or admit to the alleged content of that
testimony. KDUB
asserts that knowing what Sullivan said to Kemper
in one transaction is relevant to a determination of what Sullivan
said to Green in a different, but allegedly similar, transaction. KDUB
1 Green

is president

of Dubuque

Communications

Corp.

and

general

manager

KDUB-TV.
2 Also before the Board is the Broadcast Bureau's opposition, filed July 26, 1972
ae
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further asserts that since the licensee of Kemper’s station is no longer
subject to Commission jurisdiction (the license was assigned and
assets of the licensee were sold), the information contained in Com-

mission investigatory files is no longer privileged. The Broadcast
Bureau opposes KDUB’s appeal, arguing that KDUB has failed to
allege specific facts that could show that a common plan of action by
Sullivan can be inferred and, thus, that acts in another case are relevant to the instant proceeding The Bureau also contends that the
alleged testimony was not necessary to the applicant in preparing its
case * and that the Presiding Judge properly determined that considerations in favor of disclosure did not outweigh those against.
Finally, the Bureau asserts that KDUB could have gotten Kemper,
himself, to testify in this proceeding. In the Bureau’s view, KDUB
is only seeking to establish what Kemper told the Commission, and
not, in fact, what Kemper knows. This is not a proper purpose of
discovery, according to the Bureau.
3. The Review Board is of the view that the Presiding Judge did
not abuse the discretion vested in him by his rejection of KDUB’s
motion. Cf. Southern Broadcasting Co. (WGHP-TV), 35 FCC 2d
338, 24 RR 2d 548 (1972). We note, first of all, that the record reveals
that KDUB has, in fact, interviewed Kemper and yet has neither
sought to present him as a witness nor given any reason for not doing
so. Especially in light of this lack of any showing regarding unavailability, it is clearly proper to reject. proffered testimony which was
given in other proceedings and which concerns other facts and issues
than those presently the subject of inquiry, where any cross-examination regarding that testimony “would not have been directed to the
same material points of investigation and therefore could not have
been an adequate test for exposing inaccuracies and falsehoods.” 5
Wigmore, /vidence, Section 1386 (38rd ed. 1940). The Board further
notes that such testimony, in any event, was offered to impeach a witness rather than to establish a pattern of conduct with regard to any
activity directly in issue in the instant proceeding. As such, the evidence could be properly excluded as leading only to the formation of
a new collateral issue. See 3 Wigmore, supra, Section 1023. In view of
the foregoing, we conclude that the Presiding Judge could properly
and reasonably reject such evidence as KDUB proposed to submit.

Finally, the Board notes that KDUB has not shown that the ruling
complained of is fundamental and affects the conduct of the entire
proceeding. Absent such a showing, the appeal should have been de-

ferred and raised as exceptions. See WSTE-TV, Inc. (WSTE), 15
FCC 2d 1026, 15 RR 2d 376 (1969) ; “What the Bible Says, Ine.”, 12
FCC 2d 610, 12 RR 2d 1210 (1968). The Judge’s Order will therefore
not be disturbed and KDUB’s appeal will be denied.
4, Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the appeal from interlocutory Order of Hearing Examiner, filed July 19, 1972, by Dubuque
Communications Corp. (KDUB-TV) IS DENIED.

FreperaL ComMMUNICATIONS CoMMISSION,
Ben F. Warts, Secretary.
3 The Bureau

notes that this appeal was filed after KDUB

rested its case.
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COMMISSION
20554

In the Matter of
AMENDMENT OF Section 73.202(b), Tasie|
or AssigNMENTS, FM Broapcasr Strations(
(PrrrsFreLp, Mass.)
Report

AND

Docket No. 19584
RM-1887

ORDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)
By THE ComMMISSION:

1. On August 29, 1972, the Commission issued a Notice of Proposed
Rule Making (FC XO 79-2779) in the above-entitled matter, proposing

to assign C hannel 240A to Pittsfield, Massachusetts. The proceeding
was instituted on the basis of a petition filed by Radio Pittsfield, Inc.,
licensee of standard broadcast Station WGRG, Pittsfield, Massachusetts. Interested parties were invited to comment on the proposal on
or before October 17, 1972, and could reply to such comments on or
before October 26, 1972. There were no oppositions to the proposal.
Supporting comments were filed by the petitioner.
Pittsfield is a city of 57,020 persons in Berkshire County (popusicton 149,402).1 It has two unlimited time AM stations, one daytimeonly station (licensed to petitioner) and two FM channels, 269A and
288A. The FM channels are occupied by stations operated as FM adjuncts to the two unlimited time AM stations.
Petitioner points out that Pittsfield is the center of the manufacturing industry which is the heart of the Berkshire County economy.
He further states that, besides being of significant value to the Pittsfield area, an additional FM fae ilityi is necessary to compete effectively

with other stations in Pittsfield, since its AM facility offers daytime
service only while its competitors offer day and nighttime service on
both AM and FM. In supporting comments petitioner states that it
fully expects to apply for the channel and if authorized, to construct
its proposed F'M station promptly.
4. Since there appears to be a need and demand for an additional
assignment in Pittsfield and since the additional assignment can be

made without adverse effect on other stations and without exceeding
the number contemplated for a community of its size, we are of the
view that the requested additional assignment would serve the public
interest and should be granted.
1 Population figures cited are from the 1970 U.S. Census.
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5. Authority for the amendment adopted herein is found in Seetions 4(i), 303, and 307(b)

of the Communications

Act of 1934, as

amended.
6. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That, effective January 8, 1973,
the Table of Assignments contained in Section 73.202(b) of the Commission’s Rules and Regulations IS AMENDED, insofar as the com-

munity named below is concerned to read as follows:
City

IeONIN?

Channel No.

RUNING

5 <2

7. IT IS FURTHER
MINATED.

= sd sisipi cg sae

aS

240A,

269A,

288A.

ORDERED, that this proceeding IS TER-

FeperaL ComMUNICATIONS CoMMISSION,
Ben F. Wapte, Secretary.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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Service

AS GArrerr

(WEUP),

AMA.

WRBN, Inc. (WRBN), Warner

Broap-|

Docket No. 19258

Rosrys, Ga.|

Docket No. 19259

Huntsvitre,|

For Construction Permits

File No. BP-18295
File No. BP-18409

APPEARANCES

A. L. Stein, on behalf of Garrett Broadcasting Service (WEUP) ;
Donald }. Ward, on behalf of WRBN, Inc. (W "RBN ); and John T.
Kelly, on behalf of the Chief, Broadcast Bureau, Federal Communications Commission.
DeEcISION

(Adopted November 21, 1972; Released November 27, 1972
By tHe Review

Boarp: BerkemMeyerR, PINCocK AND KESSLER.

1. The two principal questions raised in this proceeding before the
Review Board are: (a) whether waiver of Commission Rule 73.30(c)*
is justified where, inter alia, a minimum of three and a maximum of
eight combined aural services (AM and FM), are available in any one

portion of an applicant’s proposed nighttime primary service area;
and (b) whether a new AM service to approximately 6,000 blacks who
now receive no nighttime AM primary service or only one such service provides adequate justification for such waiver, Administrative
Law Judge Ernest Nash, in an Initial Decision, FCC 72D-28, released
May 2, 1972, answered the above questions in the negative and, therefore, concluded that the application of Garrett Bro adeasting Service
(WEU P), (Garrett), for Huntsville, Alabama, requesting a change
in its existing facilities so as to operate unlimited time by adding a
500 watt directional facility during nighttime hours, must be denied.
The Presiding Judge also conc luded that the mutu: ully exclusive application of W RBN, Inc. (WRBN) for Warner Robins, Georgia, requesting an identical change in facilities should be eranted as it is
1 Rule 73.30(¢c) states, “The transmitter of each standard broadeast station shall be so
located that primary service is delivered to the borough or city in which the main studio
is located in accordance with the rules and regulations of this subpart.’’ Rule 73.188 (b) (1)
states, “‘A minimum field intensity of 25 to 50 mv/m will be obtained over the business
or factory areas of the city.” Rule 73.188(b) (2) states, “A minimum field intensity of
5 to 10 mv/m
will be obtained
over the most
distant residential
section.”
Section
73.188(bD)
(2) was not specifically specified as an issue (although 73.188(b)(1)
was).
However, as the Bureau's proposed findings indicate, Garrett’s proposed operation does not

comply

with

Section

in subpart 73 of the
and (b) (2).
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in substantial compliance with Commission rules. The Board has reviewed the Initial Decision in light of the exceptions and brief in
support thereof, filed May 31, 1972 , by Garrett, the arguments of the
parties ? and our examination of the record. In general, we agree with
the Presiding Judge’s findings of fact and conclusions and, except as
modified herein and in the rulings on exceptions contained in the attached Appendix, those findings. and conclusions are adopted, However, the Board will supplement the Initial Decision with a brief disc—

of the above two -questions.®

. The first question involves Garrett’s contention that the public
ike requires that Rule 73.30(c) be waived because its proposal
would provide a first AM primary service to 12,689 persons * in Huntsville and Madison and the maximum number of AM services within
the proposed service area is three. The Board does not believe that
these factors warrant waiver for the following reasons: First, the
grossly inadequate coverage leaves unserved over one-fourth of the
population and one-half of the area of Huntsville—the city of license.
Second, as noted by the Presiding Judge, the minimum number of
combined aural (AM and FM) reception services within the total
proposed service area of Garrett is three; moreover, even this situation occurs in an area where only 159 persons are involved. The maximum number of combined aural services is eight.’ In this regard, it
is important to note that in recent Commission pronouncements there
is an emphasis of treatment of AM and FM as a single aural service
in evaluating unserved or underserved areas. Cf. Report and Order
in Docket No. 19074, 32 FCC 2d 937 (1972) at paras. 12 and 20, In

Cherokee Broadcasting Co., 17 FCC 2d 121 at 123, 15 RR 2d 1205 at
1208 (1969), a proceeding involving an applicant for an FM license
and a Section 307(b) issue, the Commission stated that “our longterm goal must be the establishment of an integrated AM-FM aural
service and we should look to the day when AM and FM stations can
be regarded as component parts of a total aural service.” See also,
Report and Order in Docket No. 15084, 2 RR 2d 1658 (1964), and
Babcom Ine., 24 FCC 2d 690, 19 RR§2d 883 (1970) petition for reconsideration denied, 27 FCC 2d 437, 21 RR 2d 6 (1971). Finally, if

the Garrett proposal were granted, it would reduce the nighttime
coverage in the city of Warner Robins by the WRBN proposal from
92.4% to 81.4% of the population of that city.
The second question relates to Garrett’s claim that (a) 85% of
the blacks in the city will be served by his operation; and (b) there is
presently “widespread dissatisfaction” with black oriented radio. The
Board has reviewed the applicable precedent and, in our view, such
precedent precludes a waiver under all the present circumstances.
2 Oral argument

by the parties was

heard by a panel of the Review

Board

on October

24,

1972>

3In view of the present
Ww RBN. Cf. the Board’s
October

determination
Memorandum

we will also sever and grant = application of
Opinion
and Order,
FCC
72R-295, released

16, 1972.

* All population data is based on the 1970 U.S. Census.
; 5There are also four television stations in Huntsville.
Jecision.

See

para.

5

of

the

Initial
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Initially, it is to be noted that the record in this proceeding is practically totally barren of any showing of the claimed “dissatisfaction”
and that nowhere has Garrett indicated any specifics of what is wrong
with existing programming or what he would do to improve the situation if his request for a change in facilities were granted.® In addition, this record is barren of evidence that the black population of
Huntsville do not have FM receivers and, hence, are underserved
from that standpoint. Moreover, the Commission has recently had occasion to consider similar arguments in cases involving questions of
waiver of other technical rules. In Afel-Lin, Jne., 22 FCC 2d 165, 18
RR 2d 787 (1970),? the Commission, after agreeing with the Review
Board that the applicant had “made commendable efforts to ascertain
and propose programs designed to serve the needs of . . . [the minority
population] on a continuing basis ... ,” reversed the Review Board’s
grant of the application. The Commission suggested that “representatives of concerned organizations might properly contact the existing
fulltime stations . . . to see if greater efforts can be made to establish
more meaningful communications with the [black] audience.” In a
later case, Champaign National Bank, 22 FCC 2d 790 at 792, 18 RR
2d 1170 at 1174 (1970), the Commission, after denying a request for
waiver of Section 73.24(b) (3) of the Rules,’ stated that “[a]|ttempts
to cure programming deficiencies by distorting or ignoring sound allocation and station assignment principles would constitute acts of expediency running counter to our statutory mandate to make the most
effective use of the crowded AM

band on a national basis.” See also,

1360 Broadcasting Co., Inc., 36 FCC 1478, 2 RR 2d 824 (1964), where
a request for waiver of the 10% rule based upon the special needs of
®Cf. Tucson
Radio, Incorporated
(KEVT),
452 F.2d 1380 at 1382, ——
U.S. App.
D.C, ——- (1971), where the Court stated that:
In this case, KEVT
stated only its own conclusion that adequate nighttime service

in Spanish

would

not be forthcoming

It referred

to no

examples

‘ring the existing
through challenges

from

of refusals

the eleven

to serve

upon

FM

and

request,

AM
or

stations
to attempts

in Tucson.
made

to

need to the attention of the other stations and the Commission
to license renewals or the filing of competing applications as out-

lined in the Commission’s
Policy Statement
Concerning
Comparative
Hearings Inrolving Regular Renewal
Applicants, 22 F.C.C. 2d 424 (1970). Sinee no facts of this
kind were alleged to establish an unfilled need, the Commission
did not abuse its

discretion in summarily refusing to waive its established requirement.
(Emphasis
supplied.)
also significant to note that the Court at footnote 1 stated that :
In construing this regulatory language, there is a crucial difference between failure
to serve a group which cannot understand the language broadcasted and a failure to
reach a group which chooses not to listen because of program content.
7This proceeding involved Section 73.28(d) (3) of the Commission's
Rules, which is
often referred to as the 10%
rule. This Rule prohibits grants, with certain exceptions
not relevant here, of applications that receive interference affecting more than 10%
of
the population in the station s proposed normally protected primary service area.
S Section 73.24(b) (3) provides, inter alia, that a new nighttime operation will be
authorized only after it is satisfactorily shown that the proposal will bring a first primary
AM service to at least 25% of the area within the proposed interference-free nighttime

service contour or 25% of the population residing therein.
*It should be mentioned that there have been, of course. cases where waiver of the
10% rule has been granted on the basis of proposed programming; however. those cases
represent a prior less stringent approach with respect to violations of the Commission’s

congestion

and to conserve spectrum

recent

years

such cases,

Rules

which

see Mel-Lin,

supra.
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was denied,? and a similar holding in Grantel/
93

FC G

2d

44, 18

ith

2d

1063

(1970).

The Commission has long held that an aiious proposing to
‘aoe in a manner which results ina substantial violation of its tech-

nical rules assumes a heavy burden to establish that a grant of its
application is in the public interest. Here, there can be no question
that (a) the proposal’s grossly inadequate coverage of the city of
Huntsville is a public interest detriment and results in a grossly inefficient use of this frequency at night; (b) there has been no concomitant showing of re lent public interest. benefits which outweigh
this detriment; and (c)

such lack of coverage to the city of license 1 1S

not justified for the x pose of establishing :a sixth Huntsville nighttime aural transmission outlet, or a fourth nighttime AM transmission outlet. Nor has the Huntsville applicant established, on the basis
of this record, that any portion of its proposed service area iS an
underserved aural reception radio area. (See para. 3, supra.) Under
these circumstances, we find the applicant’s argument that it is, in
effect, penalized here because Huntsville is a large, irregular shaped,
city caused by annexations and marked expansion resulting from the
phenomenon of enormous urban expansion particularly during recent
years, wholly lacking in merit.’ Moreover, the fact that Huntsville
existing stations do not now cover the entire city in no way justifies
the addition of a new substandard proposal, and this fact can be accorded no significant weight in our determination of the waiver question here. In sum, we believe Garrett assumed a heavy burden of proof
in this case to overcome the gross inadequacy of coverage of Huntsville and, in our view, such burden has not been met.
5. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the application of
WRBN,.

Inc.

(WRBN),

IS SEVERED

from

this proceeding

and

GRANTED; and
6. IT IS FURTHER

ORDERED, That the application of Garrett
Broadcasting Service (WEUP), IS DENIED.
Sybvia

D. Kessvrr,

Member, Review

Federal

the

™ Broadcasting, Inc., 20 FCC 2d
oral argument,
is inapposite.

Communications

Bourd,

Commission.

713, 17 RR 2d 1117 (1969), cited by the applicant
There, an applicant’s proposal was found to be

at
in

substantial compliance with Section 73.188 of the Rules even though its proposed nighttime
> mv/m contour encompassed only 38.3%
of the area of the city. However, the 5 mv/m
contour encempassed 91.7%
of the population of the city and a showing was made that

the proposal covered approximately 96%
of the
city. No comparable showing has been made here.

urbanized

residential

areas

within
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APPENDIX
Rulings

on

Exceptions

of Garrett

Broadcasting

Exception No.

1, 10,

Service

(WEUP)

Ruling

Denied for the reasons stated in para. 4 of this Decision.
Denied. The applicant has taken one sentence of footnote
1, page 7, of the Initial Decision out of context. Clearly,
the denial of the application is based on the grossly
inadequate coverage of Huntsville, and tthe failure of
the applicant to justify a waiver of Rule 73.30(¢).
Denied. See the Review
Board’s Memorandum
Opinion
and Order, FCC 72R-257, released September 20, 1972,
and the Presiding Judge’s Order, FCC 72M-567,
released May 1, 1972.
Granted.
Denied as without decisional significance.
Denied. The Presiding Judge’s findings in this regard accurately and fairly reflect the record. See para. 19 of his
Initial Decision.
iranted. The 5.0 mv/m coverage within the Huntsville
city limits extends to 101,213 persons (73%) within 48.8
square miles; whereas the 4.86 mv/m primary service

contour

would

extend

‘to 106,576

persons

(78%)

in

Huntsville within 48.8 square miles. See footnote 1,
page 6, of the Initial Decision. (The area figures are ex-

clusive of the airport. See, Voice of the New South, Ine.,
19 FCC 2d 137,
Coast Television,

16 RR 2d 1167 (1969); and Central
14 FCC 2d 985, 14 RR 2d 575 (1968),

review denied by the Commission FCC 69-614, released
June 9, 1969, petition for reconsideration dismissed,
FCC 69-840, released August 1, 1969.)
Denied. No agreement of the applicants here can compromise the public interest problems involved in the
Garrett proposal for reasons set forth in the Initial De-

cision and this Decision.
Denied

on the basis

(a) of the totality of the Board’s De-

cision and of the Presiding Judge’s Initial Decision, and
(b) of our prior Memorandum Opinion and Order. See
ruling on Exception No. 3.
Denied, See paras. 8, 10, 11, 16, 17 and 18 of the Initial Decision. These paragraphs show that the Presiding Judge
considered all facets of potential coverage.
Denied. Garrett is now
the owner of Station WEUP,
albeit a daytime only station. See also, para. 3 of this
Decision.
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COMMISSION
20554

In Re Applications of
Leroy Garrerr, TRADING AS GARRETT Broap-|
CASTING Service (WEUP), Hunrsvitze,|
ALA.
WRBN, Inc. (WRBN), Warner Rostns, Ga.|
For Construction Permits

Docket No. 19258
File No. BP-18295

Docket No. 19259
File No. BP-18409

APPEARANCES
A. L. Stein, E'sq., on behalf of Leroy Garrett, tr/as Garrett Broadcasting Service; Donald E. Ward, F'sq.,on behalf of WRBN, Inc.; and
John T. Kelly, Esq., on behalf of the Chief, Broadcast Bureau, Federal
Communications Commission.
Inir1Au

Decision

ofr Hearing

ExAmMiIner

Ernest

Nasu

(Issued April 28, 1972; Released May 2, 1972)
1. Leroy Garrett, trading as Garrett Broadcasting Service
(WEUP) (Garrett) and WRBN, Inc. (WRBN), filed mutually exclusive applications for changes in the facilities of Station WEUP,
Huntsville, Alabama, and Station WRBN, Warner Robins, Georgia,
respectively. Each proposes to change from daytime only to unlimited
time, operating on 1600 kHz.
2. These applications were designated for hearing on the following
issues: (FCC 71-617, 36 FR 11881, published June 22, 1971)
1. To determine the areas and populations which would receive primary service
from the proposals and the availability of other primary aural service (1
mv/m

. To

or greater in the case of FM)

to such areas and populations.

determine whether the proposed operation of station WEUP
vide 5 mv/m coverage to the entire city of Huntsville, Alabama,

would proas required

by section 73.30(¢c) of the rules, and, if not, whether circumstances exist
which warrant a waiver of said section.
3. To determine whether the proposed operation of station WEUP would provide
25 mv/m coverage to the main business district of Huntsville, Alabama, as

required by section 73.188(b) (1) of the rules, and, if not, whether circumstances exist which warrant a waiver of said section.
. To determine with respect to the application of WRBN, Inc., whether its proposed $30,000 bank loan is still available, the terms and conditions of the
loan, and, in light thereof, whether the applicant is financially qualified.
. To determine, in the light of section 307(b) of the Communications Act of
1934, as amended, which of the proposals would better provide a fair, efficient

and equitable distribution of radio service.
. To determine, in the light of the evidence adduced pursuant to the foregoing
issues which, if either, of the applications should be granted.
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The Review Board added the following issues: (FCC 71R-290, released September 23, 1971, 31 FCC 2d 873)
To determine whether the proposed operation of Station WRBN would provide
interference-free coverage to the entire city of Warner Robins, Georgia, as re-

quired by Section 73.30(c)

of the Rules, and, if not, whether circumstances exist

which warrant a waiver of said section.
'o determine whether the proposed operation

25 mv/m

coverage

to the main

business

of Station WRBN would provide
district of Warner Robins, Georgia, as

required by Section 73.188 (b) (1) of the Rules, and, if not, whether circumstances
exist Which warrant a waiver of said section.

. A prehearing conference was held on July 28, 1971. Hearings

were held on November 9 and 23, 1971. On the latter date, the hearing
record was closed.
FINDINGS

OF

FACT

4. Garrett Broadcasting Service (Garrett), operates Station WEUP
on 1600 kHz with 5 kilowatts power, daytime only, Class III at Huntsville, Alabama. WRBN, Inc. (WRBN), operates Station WRBN on
1600 kHz with 1 kilowatt power, daytime only, Class IIT at Warner
Robins, Georgia. Both applicants request authority to change their
existing fac ilities so as to operate unlimited time by adding a 500 watt
directional fac ility during nighttime hours. The Garrett and WRBN
applications were found to be 1mutually exclusive and were designated
for consolidated hearing because a grant of Garrett’s application would
raise the WRBN

RSS? nighttime limitation of 11.26 mv/m to 14.54

mv/m and, therefore, WRLN would fail to serve a significant portion
of the city of Warner Robins at night. No objectionable interference
results to the Garrett proposal from that of WRBN.
» Huntsville, Alabama, population 137,802? including 16,729
Negroes, is the county seat of Madison County, population 186,540. It
is situated approximately 88 miles north of Birmingham near the
Tennessee border. Huntsville is the central city of the Huntsville
Urbanized Area, which has a total population of 146,565, The Huntsville Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area consists of Madison and
Limestone Counties and has a total population of 228,239. The present
broadcast facilities authorized in Huntsville include five standard
broadcast stations, three of which operate unlimited time, two FM
stations and four TV stations as follows:
AM:

WAAY, 1550
WFIX, 1450
WBHP, 1230
WVOV, 1000
“WEUP, 1600

kHz,
kHz,
kHz,
kHz,
kHz,

500 W,
250 W,
250 W,
10 Kw,
5 Kw,

5 Kw-LS, DA-N, U, II
1 Kw-LS, U. IV
1, Kw-LsS, U, IV
DA-D, IT
D, III

WAHR, 99.1 MHz, 3.2 Kw, 45 ft., B

WNDA, 95.1 MHz, 3.1 Kw, —50 ft., B
WAAY-TY, Ch. 31, 741 Kw, 1,290 ft.
WHIQ, Ch. 25, 631, Kw, 1,170 ft., Educ.
WHNT-TY, Ch. 19, 398 Kw, 1,060 ft.

WMSL-TV, Ch. 48, 700 Kw, 1,190 ft.

*Garrett’s present facility
a
,
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The proposed nighttime directional antenna radiation pattern
Ph resembles the configuration of a four leaf clover with a major
lobe directed to the southeast to cover the main business district and
as much of the southern portion of the city as possible and another
major lobe directed to the southwest to cover most of the western
portion of the city, including AM “white area”. Based on radiation
values taken from the proposed directional antenna pattern and using
ground conductivity values established by non-directional measurements on the daytime operation of applicant’s Station WEUP in the
directions of 0, 40, 85, 105, 125, 147, 225, 245 and 300 degrees true combined with ground conductivity values taken from Figure M-3 of the
Rules for areas between radials, Station WEUP would provide nighttime primary service within its proposed 4.86 mv/m interference-free
contour as follows:
Contour (mv/m)

Population

Area
(square miles)

7. The following stations provide AM primary service (2.0 mv/m
or greeater)

to the proposed

nighttime

primary

service area

in the

proportions indicated.
Station

Location

Night

limi

Percentage
of coverage

- Huntsville. -....-. Huntsville
Huntsville
eS
Nashville, Te

ee

3
19.9 mv/m
eT
ae
i
ee

eS

25-50
0-25
0-25
100

Coverage by Station WSM is limited to rural areas proposed to be
served.
8. The entire proposed service area receives three or less AM primary
services as follows:
Percentage
coverage

Number of
present services

Total
population

12,
53,
22,
23,

Area
(square miles

of

area

-_-_——_-—
PopuAreaa
lation

689
206
320
507

The city of Huntsville and Madison town, Alabama, are the only two
urban areas within the proposed nighttime primary service areas. The
areas receiving no primary service lie within these two comnmunities.
Madison town has a population of 3,086 in an area of 17 square miles.
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Of the 12,689 persons receiving no primary service, 11,057 reside in
Huntsville and 1,632 persons in an area of7 square miles ® reside in
Madison town representing 53% of the population and 39% of the
oe of Madison town.
FM stations provide FM service (1.0 mv/m or greater) to the
ae nighttime primary service area as follows:
Station

WAHR (FM)_--WNDA (FM)..-.
WJOE (FM)_.
Wie
WRSA

Location

SEE
merees
AE
Rae
eieen Huntsville, Ala- -scons
caece
lek okie ee
ie

(Fe)...
(FM)_--

..5......pees

a
eaeuee

neu

Percentage of
coverage

eee a aes
See es
=

- Decatur, Aia_.-ae oa ae
ee
rae

75-100
75-100
50-75
75-100
100

Considering both aural services (AM plus FM), a minimum of three
and a maximum of eight are ¢ ig
in any one portion of the proposed nighttime primary servicearea. The area receiving three aural
services is located in Madison enn poetincludes 159 persons in an area
of 0.7 square mile.
10. The city of Huntsville is irregular in shape. Its boundaries extend about 20 miles from north to south and about 15 miles from east
to west. The proposed nighttime facility would operate from the existing transmitter site located just inside the northwestern city limits of
HLuntsville some 3.5 miles northwest of the center of the city. The proposed operation is limited to 500 watts power at night in order to provide protec tion to a number of existing stations on the frequency. Because of the low power proposed, several corners of the city would
not be included within the proposed 5.0 mv/m contour. For example,
to the north the 5.0 mv/m contour falls a maximum distance of 6.6
iniles inside the city limits; to the east, 2.3 miles; to the southeast, 5.8
miles; and to the southwest 4.9 miles. Within the city of eye
ille,
the proposed nighttime 5.0 mv/m contour would include 101,213 persons in an area of 51.7 square miles or 73.4% of the total ae population of 137,802 and 499% of the total city area of 105.6 square miles.
As a result, the proposal does not comply with the requirements of
Section 73.30(c) of the Rules.

11. Garrett seeks to justify waiver of the city coverage requirement
with the following claims:
(1) The large area of the city and its very irregular shape make it impossible
to cover the entire city. If the portion of the Huntsville airport within the city
limits was removed, the proposal would cover 51% of the city area.

(2)

The

proposed

4.86 mv/m

nighttime

interference-free

contour

will cover

106.576 persons in an area of 51.7 square miles in the city of Huntsville or 77.3%
of the city population and 48.9% of the city area.*
3 Part of the “white area” claimed by the applicant falls within portions of the Madison
town that are classified as rural according to the Huntsville Urbanized Area map in the
1970 U.S. Census (PC(1)—A2). The Census shows the urban part of Madison town contains 2.276 persons and the rural part contains 810. The rural area is served by Station
WSM. In any event, the difference is deemed to be small and not decisional.
4 There is a difference in coverage of only 0.1 mile between the 4.86 and 5.0 mv/m contours which cannot be seen on maps used to illustrate the contours. Therefore, the applieant used aa area of 51.7 square miles for both contours. The difference can be seen on
enumeration district maps and was recognized in counting population. The population and
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(3) A first AM primary service will be provided to 12,689 persons in Huntsville and Madison, Alabama and the maximum number of AM services within the
proposed service area is three.
(4) Nighttime service would be provided to 14,135 Negroes in Huntsville or
S4% of the 16,729 Negroes in the city and to 6,019 Negroes who receive none or
one primary service.
(5) Primary service would be provided to 90% of the area and 95% of the
population within the proposed normally protected 4.0 mv/m contour, thus the
proposed operation represents a very efficient utilization of the frequency.®
(6) It is not possible to select a site which would provide coverage to the
entire city of Huntsville and comply with the allocation conditions on the frequency. A mountain range on the eastern city limits precludes moving far enough
for a site east of the city. A major lobe to the west from a site east of the city
would miss most of the city. If the array were redesigned to radiate a major lobe
to the southeast, the radiation would be limited by Station WHEW, Riviera,
Florida and northern and southern portions of the city would not be served. In
addition, the western portion of the city (containing ‘“‘white area”) would not be
served. An array was chosen with one major lobe to the southeast to cover the
main business district and as much of the southern portion of the city as possible
and a major lobe to the southwest to cover most of the western portions of the
city including the “white area”. The array chosen covers more of the city than

would

have been possible with the other two. Since it is not possible to select a

site which

would

provide

coverage

to the entire city, a site was

selected

which

would provide coverage to the maximum possible number of persons and cover the
required “white area’. A different site would not provide significantly different
coverage

of Huntsville.

A move

to the north

or west

would

reduce

coverage

of

the main business district and reduce coverage of the “white area” in the western
portion of the city. A move to the southeast (closer to town) would not improve
total coverage as “white area” to the north would be lost. In addition, it is not
possible to obtain a site closer to downtown. In summary, it is not possible to select a site different than that proposed which will serve a significantly larger portion of Huntsville because of allocation conditions on the channel and the extremely

large city limits.

12. Station WEUP commenced daytime operation in 1958. When
the application for daytime operation was originally filed, it was determined that 1600 kHz was the only frequency which would permit
daytime operation with five kilow atts power and a nondirectional antenna. According to testimony of applicants’ engineer at the hearing,
no frequency search has been made since then to determine whether
there are any other frequencies available to achieve better nighttime
area within the city limits
contour are as follows :

not

Direction

North and East. --.-.----.---.MI
end cow
a ceca
Southwest

‘Total.....

included

within

Population

the proposed

_ Percent of
city population

12, 139
18, 190
897

8.8
13.¢
0.

31, 226

22.7

4.86

mv/m

interference-free

Area —
(square miles)

Percent of
city area

24.4
19.5
10.0
53.9

This tabular breakdown is not relevant to issue 2 because the 5.0 mv/m contour is controlling under that issue. Section 73.188(b)
is designed to insure the location of transmitters so as to provide a premium grade of service to the principal community as opposed
to primary service and it imposes a higher standard
than that required for primary
service. See The Greenwich Broadcasting Corp., 36 FCC 1294, 1307 (1964). Accordingly,

use of the 4.86 mv/m
contour and this breakdown,
issue 2.
5 Applicant’s use of only 500 watts power, resulting
night, does
station
of

based

thereon,

in a failure

is

not

to cover

relevant

to

Huntsville

at

not support this statement, 500 watts power is the minimum
amount
applicant’s
class.
See
Section
73.21(b) (1) (ii) of the Commission’s
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coverage because reduction in daytime power would have been required
on another frequency.
13. On the basis of ground conductivity values obtained from the
field intensity measurements on the daytime operation of Station
WEIUP, the proposed nighttime 25 mv/m contour will encompass the
main business district. This includes the C itv Hall, Court House, Post
Office and two main shopping centers. It will encompass the largest
shopping area in Huntsville. Accordingly, the
oes operation complies with the provision of Section7 3.188 (b) (1 ) of the Rules.®
14. Warner Robins, Georgia, has a population of 33,491* and is 220
miles southeast of Huntsville, Alabama. It is in Houston County (pop.
62,924) in the central part of the state about 15 miles south of Macon,
Georgia. It is not a part of any urbanized area but is a part of Macon
Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (pop. 206,342) which includes
Bibb and Houston Counties. At present, broadcast facilities in Warner
Robins include two standard broadcast stations which operate daytime
only, one FM station and no TY stations as follows:

AM:

WAVC, 1350 kHz, 5 Kw, D, ITT
*WRBN,

1600 kHz, 1 Kw, D, TIT

FM: *WRBN-FM, 101.7 MHz, 3 Kw, 205 ft., A
*WRBN’s present facilities.
The proposed nighttime directional antenna pattern is designed
so that most of the energy is radiated in one major lobe toward the
east and southeast in the general direction of Warner Robins. Based
on radiation values taken from the proposed directional antenna pattern and using ground conductivity values established by non-directional measurements made on the daytime operation of applicant's
Station WRBN in the directions of 125, 135, 146, 166.5, 181 and 196 degrees true, and as obtained from Figure M-3 of the Rules in other

directions, the proposed nighttime coverage of Station WRBN
follows:

is as

Area

(sq. mi.)

*If granted alone
**If both applications granted

16. There is no standard broadcast station providing nighttime
primary service to any portion of WRBN’s proposed nighttime
mary service area. If granted alone, WRBN would provide a
nighttime AM primary service to 34,853 persons in an area of
® Section 73.188 (b) (1) reads as follows:

(b)

The

site

selected

should

meet

the

following

conditions:

field intensity of 25 to 50 mv/m will be obtained over the business
of the city.
7 According to the 1970 U.S. Census. Including annexations since the
population is 38,760.
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square miles. If granted with Garrett, WRBN would provide a first
nighttime AM primary service to 30,172 persons in an area of 22.5
square miles, or a decrease of 4,681 persons in an area of 6.9 square
miles. This would represent a reduction of 13.4% in population and
23.5% im area.
17, FM stations provide FM service (1.0 mv/m or greater) to the
proposed nighttime primary service as follows:
Station §

Location

0 A eee
RII
cs otcucnaweeivadnn
eres

sl

Percentage of
coverage

2

ae

.

Li ii 8p Sa
shat
tagline leerede cer Warner Robins, Ga
eI
nos tcdhncandcusuddinedadeosnnse Perry, Ga

100
100

:

100
0-25

§ Middle Georgia Broadcasting Co. has an application on file for a new FM station on Channel 300 at
Macon, Ga. (BPH-3123, D-18279). It also would serve 100%. By order of tne Review Board released Nov. 10,
1971, the effective date of an Initial Decision (FCC 71D-61) released Sept, 13, 1971 granting tne application
was stayed. However, on January 12, 1972, tne Board released a Memorandum Opinion and Order (FCC
72R-5) denying the request for limited intervention, filed September 29, 1971, by tie Broadcast Good
Music! Committee, 23 RR 2d 510.

A minimum of three and a maximum of four aural services (in this
instance all FM) are available in any one portion of the proposed
nighttime primary service area. If granted alone, 32,823 persons in an
area of 27.9 square miles would receive a fourth aural service from the
proposal and 2,030 persons in an area of 1.5 square miles would receive
a fifth. If both applications are granted, 29,462 persons in an area of
22 square miles would receive a fourth aural service and 710 persons
in an area of 0.5 square mile would receive a fifth.
18. The city limits of Warner Robins are roughly rectangular in
shape and extend some 8 miles from north to south and3 to 4 miles
from east to west.” Several minor changes have been made in the city
limits of Warner Robins since the 1970 U.S. Census was prepared and
the new city area was determined to include 33,760 persons in an area
of 11.3 square miles. The proposed nighttime facility would operate
from a transmitter site located within the corporate limits of the city
in the northwest sector about 2 miles from the center of the city.’ If
granted alone, the proposed 11.26 mv/m interference-free contour
within the city would include 31,202 persons in an area of 10.1 square

miles, or 92.4% of the city population and 89.4% of the city area. If
granted with Garrett, the proposed 14.54 mv/m interference-free contour within the city would include 27,479 persons in an area of 8.7
square miles, or 81.4% of the city population and 77% of the city area
19. WRBN’s proposal would not provide complete coverage ‘of the
city of Warner Robins. WRBN claims that it is highly unlikely that
® When originally filed, the application showed that using ground conductivity values
from Figure M—3 of the Rules there would be 99.5%
coverage of the population
of
Warner Robins if granted alone. In the order of designation, the Commission found this
to be in substantial complimuce with the Rules. The issues were enlarged based on field

intensity measurements taken on Station WRBN by the opposing applicant.
For the nighttime operation, a new transmitter site immediately adjacent to
east of the present site would be used. WRBN, by letter dated December 10, 1969,
indicated

that

it

will

apply

to

the

daytime facility and the FM facility
date. (See the instant application).

Commission

to

move

to the site specified

both

the

non-directional

in its amendment

filed on
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any site can be obtained which would guarantee 100% night coverage
of the city of Warner Robins; provide the required coverage of the
main business district of that city; and also guarantee protec tion to

cochannel stations. WRBN also admits that it cannot say positively
that there is no site that would improve the coverage of Warner
tobins assuming a suitably redesigned array. Itbelieves that the improvement, if any, would probably be small. WRBN considers the

present site is optimum in regard to obtaining maximum coverage
over its city.

20. On the basis of ground conductivity values established by field
intensity measurements on the daytime operation of Station WRBN,
the proposed nighttime 25 mv/m contour will cover all of the main
business district of Warner Robins. Thus, the proposal complies with
the provision of Section 73.188 (b) (1) of the Rules.
21. By amendment accepted November
4, 1971 (FCC 71M-1759, released November 5, 1971), WRBN modified its financial proposal and
submitted a current balance sheet. WRBN’s modified proposal indi-

ates a total anticipated first year cost of $14,111.00.
22. In order to meet this requirement, WRBN relies upon a current

balance sheet dated September 30, 1971 in lieu of a bank letter. That
balance sheet shows the following
Current assets:

(ash Gh RADE ARG 1) DARKS. ooo. uk
ere

OTE

Ns

a

et

cele on eee ccca cee
i

keene

sence

$12, 029. 14

See

50, 000. 00

Accounts receivable—Trade
Total
Current liabilities (amount due in 1 year) :
INOCRR: DNRC

BOUES oe ee

DIOURE CAPAC —OINOtN Sk Seon ee
Accounts Payable—Office furniture
WATPUTIGN BOUTON EA ROR 6 one oo
eo

33, 768. 19
95, 797. 33

Sn eee

ecenuetueeeee

32, 010. 95

een cocuscdeueeusnaeese

7, 688. 24
3, 923. 02
1, 355. 69

Sie

a

77. 90

CONCLUSIONS

1. Section 73.30(¢) of the Commission’s Rules requires that a standard broadcast station be so located as to provide primary service to
the city in which its main studio is located. The Garrett proposal
would provide primary service to only 73 percent of the population
and 49 percent of the area of Huntsville. It fails, by a substantial
margin, to meet this requirement. Voice of the New South, 19 FCC 2d
137, 140 (1969). In view of the considerable service deficiencies present
here, a heavy and compelling burden is placed upon Garrett to justify
a pap: er. William D. Stone, 21 FCC 2d 665 at 669 (1970).
. Garrett’s reasons for waiver of Section 73.30(c) are detailed in
ee findings. Consideration of these reasons leads to the conclusion
that they are not sufficient to justify waiver. Cf. Voice of the New
South, supra. For example, even if it were concluded that no better
site is available, such a conclusion would still only be one aspect of
a waiver consideration. In and of itself, the unavailability of an
alternative site is not dispositive of a Section73.30(c) waiver question.
William D. Stone, supra, at 670. Most importantly, here, however, the
38 F.C.C. 2d
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applicant has not demonstrated that there is a significant need for a
fourth nighttime AM and a sixth nighttime aural transmission outlet
in Huntsville or for additional ree eption service within its proposed
nighttime service area."* In addition, if the Garrett proposal were
granted, it would reduce coverage in the city of Warner Robins by
proposed Station WRBN from 92.4% to 81.4% of the population of
that city.17 Under all the circumstances, it must be concluded that
waiver of Section 73.30(c) of the Rules is not justified, and that Garrett’s application should be denied. Voice of the New South, supra.
3. The proposed nighttime25 mv/m contour of Garrett will encompass the main business district in Huntsville. In addition, it will encompass the two main shopping areas of the city. Garrett’s proposal
complies with the requirement of Section7: 3.188(b) (1) of the Rules.
4. WRBN would operate from a trananitter site within the corporate city limits of Warner Robins in the northwest sector some 2
miles from the center of the city. If granted alone, the proposed 11.26
mv/m contour would encompass 92.4% of the population and 89.4% of
the area of the city of Warner Robins. If granted simultaneously with
the Garrett proposal, the proposed 14.54 mv/m contour would encompass 81.4% of the population and 77% of the area of the city. The present transmitter site is considered near to being optimum for coverage of

the city. In view of the fact that the WRBN proposal would provide
the second nighttime aural transmission outlet and the first nighttime
competitive voice in Warner Robins, it is concluded that, w ith 92.4%
coverage of the city population, a waiver of Section 73.30(c) of the
Rules is warranted. Community Broadcasting Company of Hartsville,
FCC 71R-384, released January 5, 1972, 23 RR 2d 486; Broadcasting

Ine., 20 FCC 2d 713 (1969); KDE 'F Broadcasting Co. (KDEF), 30
FCC 635 (1961). The question as to whether 81.4% coverage can be
condoned need not be decided, since the Garrett application will be
denied.**
The proposed WRBN nighttime contour will cover all of the
main business district of Warner Robins. Accordingly, the WRBN
proposal complies with the requirement of Section 73.188(b) (1) of
the Rules.
6. WRBN is required to show the availability of S14, 111.00. WRBN
has submitted a current balance sheet. indicating$50,000 of current
assets in excess of current liabilities. Therefore, . it is concluded that
WRBN is financially qualified.
7. Garrett’s application must be denied for failure to provide coverage of the city of Huntsville at night as required by Section 73.30(c)
and 73.188(b) (2) of the Rules. Waiver of city coverage is warranted

with respect to the WRBN proposal in view of the extent of its coverage and the facts that warrant waiver of the requirements of the Rules
11The

service

minimum

area

number

of the applicant

of

aural

is three.

reception

This

services

situation

within

occurs

the

in an

proposed

area

where

nighttime

only

159

persons are involved.
2For this reason, the two applications continue to be mutually exclusive.
13 A grant of both applications apparently would be acceptable to the applicants. This
would result in an unwarranted deviation from the Commission’s requirements designed

to assure optimum

broadcast

services to the public.
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any site can be obtained which would guarantee 100% night coverage
of the city of Warner Robins; provide the required coverage of the
main business district of that city ; and also guarantee protec tion to

cochannel stations. WRBN also admits that it cannot say positively
that there is no site that would improve the coverage of Warner
Robins assuming a suitably redesigned array. It believes that the improvement, if any, would probably be small. WRBN considers the
present site is optimum in regard to obtaining maximum coverage
over itscity.

20. On the basis of ground conductivity values established by field
intensity measurements on the daytime operation of Station WRBN,
the. proposed nighttime 25 mv/m contour will cover all of the main
business district of Warner Robins. Thus, the proposal complies with
the provision of Section 73.188 (b) (1) of the Rules.
21. By amendment accepted November 4, 1971 (FCC 71M-1759, released November 5, 1971), WRBN modified its financial proposal and
submitted a current balance sheet. WRBN’s modified proposal indicates a total anticipated first year cost of $14,111.00.
In order to meet this requirement, WRBN relies upon a current
balance sheet dated ‘September 30, 1971 in lieu of a bank letter. That
balance sheet shows the following:
Current assets:
Coen

Ties WEN Ott DRSRO So. otk keene
kee eee ek sce $12, 029.
ee
50, 000.

SIN eS
i
ee eee ee
Accounts receivable—Trade

33, 768.

95, 797.
Current liabilities

(amount due in 1 year) :

NOE iC
——nan
ek
ts
RDO IDLO -ANOPR ao coe ek ee
a
Accounts
Payable—Office furniture
MOCEIEE BRAYTON ARROR icicle nn ate Seti

ee ee
eee
can seaeeeceees

32, 010. 95
7, 688. 2
3, 923.
1, 355.

44, 977. ¢
CONCLUSIONS

1. Section 73.30(c) of the Commission’s Rules requires that a standard broadcast station be so located as to provide primary service to
the city in which its main studio is located. The Garrett proposal
would provide primary service to only 73 percent of the population
and 49 percent of the area of Huntsville. It fails, by a substantial
gin, to meet this requirement. Voice of the New South, 19 FCC 2d
137, 140 (1969). In view of the considerable service deficiencies present
here, a heavy and compelling burden is placed upon Garrett to justify
a waiver. William D. Stone, 21 FCC 2d 665 at 669 (1970).
2. Garrett’s reasons for waiver of Section 73.30(c) are detailed in
the findings. Consideration of these reasons leads to the conclusion
that they are not sufficient to justify waiver. Cf. Voice of the New
South, supra. For example, even if it were concluded that no better
site is available, such a conclusion would still only be one aspect of
a waiver

consideration.

In and of itself, the unavailability of an

alternative site is not dispositive of a Section 73.30(c) waiver question.

William D. Stone, supra, at 670. Most importantly, here, however, the
38 F.C.C.
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applicant has not demonstrated that there is a significant need for a
fourth nighttime AM and a sixth nighttime aural transmission outlet
in Huntsville or for additional reception service within its proposed
nighttime service area."t In addition, if the Garrett proposal were
granted, it would reduce coverage in the city of Warner Robins by
proposed Station WRBN from 92.4% to 81.4% of the population of
that city.’* Under all the circumstances, it must be concluded that
waiver of Section 73.30(c) of the Rules is not justified, and that Garrett’s application should be denied. Voice of the New South, supra.
3. The proposed nighttime 25 mv/m contour of Garrett will encompass the main business district in Huntsville. In addition, it will encompass the two main shopping areas of the city. Garrett’s proposal
complies with the requirement of Section 73.188(b) (1) of the Rules.
4. WRBN would operate from a transmitter site within the corporate city limits of Warner

Robins in the northwest

sector some 2

miles from the center of the city. If granted alone, the proposed 11.26
mv/m contour would encompass 92.4% of the population and 89.4% of
the area of the city of Warner Robins. If granted simultaneously with
the Garrett. proposal, the proposed 14.54 mv/m contour would encompass 81.4% of the population and 77% of the area of the city. The present transmitter site is considered near to being optimum

for coverage of

the city. In view of the fact that the WRBN proposal would provide
the second nighttime aural transmission outlet and the first nighttime
competitive voice in Warner Robins, it is concluded that, with 92.4%
coverage of the city population, a waiver of Section 73.30(c) of the
Rules is warranted. Community — kaetenig Company of Hartsville,
FCC 71R-384, released January 5, 1972, 23 RR 2d 486; Broadcasting
Tne., 20 FCC 2d 713 (1969); KDEF Broadcasting Co. (KDEF), 30

FCC 635 (1961). The question as to whether 81.4% coverage can be
condoned
a not be decided, since the Garrett application will be
dlenied.**
The proposed WRBN nighttime contour will cover all of the
main business district of Warner Robins. Accordingly, the WRBN

proposal complies with the requirement of Section 73. 188(b) (1) of
the Rules.
6. WRBN is required to show the availability of $14,111.00. WRBN
has submitted a current balance sheet. indicating $50,000 of current
assets in excess of current liabilities. Ther efore, |it is concluded that

WRBN is financially qualified.
Garrett’s application must be denied for failure to provide coverage of the city of Huntsville at night as required by Section 73.30(c)
and 73.188(b) (2) of the Rules. Waiver of city coverage is warranted

with respect to the WRBN proposal in view of the extent of its coverage and the facts that warrant waiver of the requirements of the Rules
The
minimum
number of aural reception services within the proposed nighttime
service area of the applicant is three. This situation occurs in an area where only 159
persons are involved.
12 For this reason, the two applications continue to be mutually exclusive.
3 A grant of both applications apparently would be acceptable to the applicants. This
would result in an unwarranted deviation from the Commission’s requirements designed
to assure optimum broadcast services to the public.
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to the extent that WRBN’s proposal falls short. WRBN has established its financial qualifications. It is concluded that the application
of WRBN should be granted.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that unless an appeal from this
Initial Decision is taken by a party, or the Commission reviews this
Initial Decision on its own motion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 1.276 of the Commission’s Rules, the application of Leroy
Garrett, tr/as Garrett Broadcasting Service, Huntsville, Alabama
(BP-18295) IS DENIED; and the application of WRBN, Inc.,
Warner Robins, Georgia (BP-18409) IS GRANTED.
Ernest NASH,

Hearing Examiner,
Federal
38 F.C.C.

2d

Communications

Commission.
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COMMISSION
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In Re
Ip,sno Vinro, Inc., JEROME AND
iscsi | CSR44 (1D024)
IpA 10
CSR-45 (1D023)
Magic Varney Caste Viston, Ino. Twin | CSR-46 (1D030)
Fanss, Ipato
Srr-More Casir, Inc., CHapron, NEBR.
CSR-27 (NEO24)
Pcrsto TV Power, INc., PuEesio, Coro.
| CSR-104 (CO021)

Requests for Declaratory Rulings and
Special Relief Pursu: ant to Section 76.7 |
of the Commission’s Rules
J
MemoranpumM
(Adopted

BY

THE

Opinion

November 22, 1972;

CoMMISSION:

tESULT.

The Commission

AND

Released

COMMISSIONER

OrpdrER
November

JOITNSON

28, 1972)

CONCURRING

has before it for consideration:

IN THE

(a) a “Petition

for“‘Declar: itory Ruling and Expedited Consideration Thereof,” filed
July 12, 1972, and a “Petition for Interpretive Ruling,” filed May 12,
i972. both by The KLIX Corporation, licensee of Television Broadcast Station KMVT, Twin

Falls, Idaho:

(b) a “Petition

for Interpre-

tive Ruling and Expedited ( soneidlenation,” filed May 24, 1972, by
Duhamel Broadeasting EF ee es, licensee of Station KDUH-TY.
Hay Springs, Nebraska; and (c) a “Petition for Immediate Relief,
filed May 4, 1972, by Pikes Peak Broadcasting C ompany, licensee of
Station KRDO-TYV, Colorado Springs. Colorado. Although directed
against specific cable television systems in Idaho, Nebraska, and Colorado, these pleadings raise related issues of general applicability.
2. Essentially, the petitions seek clarification of the same-day program exclusivity responsibilities of a cable system located in the
Mountain Time Zone when: 1) the cable system was not providing
sume-day program exclusivity prior to March 31, 1972, but received
a valid request for such exclusivity prior to that date and did not
seek timely waiver of the applicable rules; 2) a television station filed
a timely petition seeking continuation of same-day exclusivity, pursuant to Section 76.93(b)

of the Commission’s

Rules as it read prior

to amendment in the Memorandum O pinion and Order on Reconsideration of the Cable
and

Television Report and Order, FCC 72-530, 36 FCC

‘A number of responsive pleadings
have also been considered.

have been

filed by the directly affected

38
109-018
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F.C.C

128

Federal

Communications

Commission

Reports

2d 526, but the petition w: : not timely served on all necessary parties

or was incomplete; and 3) a television station did not file a petition
seeking continuation of same-day exclusivity, pursuant to former Section 76.93 (b) of the Rules.
When the Commission amended Section 76.93 (b) on reconsidera-

tion, we recognized the minimal effect of a simultaneous-only exclusivity rule on program duplication in the Mountain Time Zone, given
the unique network programming practices prevalent there, and concluded that simultaneous-only exclusivity should be the exception,
rather than the rule. In this connection, we indicated in footnote 9
of the reconsideration that all pleadings which the previous Section
76.93(b) had elicited would be dismissed as moot, absent a showing
that they were still relevant under the revised provision. This conc—
evidenced our clear intent to return network program exclurity
ar ibilities and rights in the Mountain Time Zone to their
pre- March 31, 1972 status, as though former Section
never been ek We reaflirm that intent here.

76.93(b)

had

Thus, a Mountain Time Zone cable system's present network prograin exclusivity obligations do not. depend on whether a television
station filed a request for continuation of same-day exclusivity on or
before

April

17, 1972

(pursuant

to former

Section

76.93(b)).

or

whether any petition then filed was served on all necessary parties or
was complete. Any eonirepr in Time Zone cable system that was providing same-day network program exclusivity prior to March 31, 1972
should now be providing same-day exclusivity, absent special agreement or waiver, and any system that received a valid request for program exclusivity prior to March 31, 1972, and did not file a request for
waiver within 15 days thereafter should likewise now be providing
same-day exclusivity. regardless of whether a waiver request was subsequently filed (unless such waiver request has been granted). See
former Section 74.1109(h), as interpreted in Tehachapi TV Cable Oe.
FCC 67-67, 6 FCC 2d 469, and Section 76.97.

5. Since it appears that each of the cable systems involved in this
proceeding previously provided same-day program exclusivity, or
failed to file a timely waiver request, we do not believe it appropriate to
allow 30 days for compliance with this decision; 10 days should provide

adequate

time to adjust existing equipment

or make

arrrangements

for manual switching pending the arrival of equipment. Of course,
this compliance will be re-examined in the context of subsequent Commission action on any pending exclusivity waiver requests.
In view of the foregoing, we find that grant of the subject. petitions
for declaratory rulings and special relief would be consistent with
the public interest.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED), That the “Petition for Declaratory
Ruling and E xpedited Consideration Thereof” and the “Petition for
Interpretive Ruling” filed by The KLIX Corporation, the “Petition
for Interpretive Ruling and Expedited Consideration” filed by Duhamel Broadcasting Enterprises, and the “Petition for Immediate Relief”
filed by Pikes Peak Broadcasting Company ARE GRANTED.
38 F.C.C.

2d
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That, the “Petition

for Special

Relief Against the Above Named CATY Systems” (CSR-+4,
46), filed by The Klix Corporation IS DISMISSED.

45, and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That, pending further order of
the Commission on any pending program exclusivity waiver requests,
Idaho Video, Inc., Magic

Valley Cable Vision,

Inc., See-More

Cable,

Inc., and Pueblo TV Power, Inc. ARE DIRECTED to comply with
the same-day network program exclusivity requirements of Section
76.93(b) of the Commission’s Rules on their cable television systems
at Jerome and Gooding, Idaho, Twin Falls, Idaho, Chadron, Nebraska,

and Pueblo, Colorado, respectively within ten (10) days of the release
date of this Memorandum Opinion and Order.
FreperAL

COMMUNICATIONS

Ben

Com™MISSION,

F. Wart, Secretary.
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In Re Application of
InreERMEDIA,

(.AssiGNor)
AND
Rovperr P. INcram Trapine as KBEA
CASTING

For

Inc.

Co.

Broap-

File No. BAL-7689

(ASSIGNEE)

Assionn ent

of License

of Station

KBEA, Mission, weir and
KBEY-FM, Kansas City, Mo.

Station

ORnpDER

(Adopted

November 22, 1972; Released

November 29, 1972

By vie ComMisston: ComMIssionER JOMNSON CONCURRING IN THE
RESULT.
r ie assignee is fully qualified.
Tl 1e assignor nie ong control of the licenses of Stations KABEA
15, 1970. The instant application was filed
sat Ki B sEY-FM on July
on August 30, 1972. Tones, the subject application is governed
by the Commission’s Three Year Rule,Section 1.597. Intermedia has
requested a waiver of this rule,
3. In support of its request for waiver of the “Three Year Rules”
Intermedia represents that: (1) It is a subsidiary of SCI Industries,
Inc. a publicly held corporation;

(2) that it is also the licensee of sta-

tion KQTYV-TY, st. foseph, Missouri, KLYX-FM
Texas and KGRV—-FM., St. Louis, Missouri;

Clear Lake City,

(3) that due to sustained

losses in all broadcast operations the Board of Directors of SCI voted
to dispose of all broadcasts interests and retire from the broadcast. industry permanently: and (4) no profit will be made from the sale of
Stations KBEA and KBEY-FM, since its total investments in these
stations 1s S979,167 ' and the sale price is $950,000.
Based on the foregoing representations, particularly SCW's determination to withdraw permanently from the broadcast field and
Intermedia’s showing that no profit will be made on this transaction,
we find no evidence of trafficking and therefore a waiver of the hearing
requirements of Section 1.597 of our Rules would be appropriate.

In view of the foregoing we find that a grant of this application
will serve the public interest, convenience and necessity. Accordingly,
it is ORDERED that the subject application is hereby GRANTED.
FrepersL ComMUNICATIONS

Ben
‘The

$979.167

Improvements

38

F.C.C.

investment

S189,000

2d

and

is comprised
home

of the

olfice expense

following:

$40,165.

ComMISSION,

F. Wapte, Secretary.
Cost

of

Acquisition

$750,000,

ITT

World

Communications.

Ine... et al,

131

E.C.C. 72-1028
BEFORE

FEDERAL

THE

COMMUNICATIONS
Wasninetron, D.C.

In the Matter of
ITT Wortp Communications,

Press Wriretess,

COMMISSION

20554

Inc.

ss

Inc.

Applications

for Requisite Commission

Authorizations

Proposed

With

Merger

Respect

of Press

;

2199. S-C_]

Wireless,

Opinion

AND

cbc

a0 Ai 68 vp Cc

to the

T_D_1s787

Ine. Into ITT World Communications,
Ine.
MemMoranptM

enn

7a —

29]

eee

act
ORDER

(Adopted November 15, 1972; Released November

22. 1972)

" THE COMMISSION: COMMISSIONER REID CONCURRING IN THE RESULT.
The Commission has for consideration a filing by the Communiecadias Workers of America

(CWA)

dated April 14,1971. clar ifving and

formalizing a prior filing dated January 21, 1971, requesting that the
Commission order arbitration of a CWA grievance against ITT World
Communications, Inc. (ITT) pursuant to 7/77 W orld Communications, Inc., 25 F.C.C. 2d 88 (1970). The CWA comph unt alleges that

ITT reduced the compensation of former Press Wireless employees in
violation of paragraph 1 of Appendix A of 777 World Communications, Ine. 1 F.C.C, 2d 213 (1965), relating to the transfer of control
of Press Wireless to ITT.
The Commission in its 1965 decision authorized the transfer of
control of Press Wireless to ITT, and ineluded in Appendix A of that
authorization certain provisions for the protection of employees employed by the carriers involved in that transfer. Paragraph 1 provides,
In part, that during a period continuing up to July 28, 1971 no employee should have his compensation reduced as a consequence of the
transfer of control approved by the Commission.’ CWA asserts that
(1) in 1968, after the transfer of control to ITT of Press Wireless. ITT

consolidated and brought under its own management the Press Wireless operations in San Francisco, California; (2) prior to this consolidation, while under Press Wireless ownership and management, the
Press Wireless employees received mileage allowance for travel to and
from work; and (3) subsequent to this consolidation, ITT eliminated
' Paragraph
1 of Appendix
A, in pertinent
part, provides:
That
during
the
period
commencing
six months
prior to the instant
application
for approval
of transfer of
control and continuing for sie years from the date of the approval of such application, no
employee of any carrier (including subsidiaries thereof) which is a party to such application regardless of his period of employment,
shall, in contemplation
of or as a consequence of such transfer of control... have his compensation reduced . . . by the carrier
to

which

control

may

be

transferred

(emphasis

added).

1
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the mileage allowance. Using the grievance procedure contained in the
collective bargaining agreement, the CWA

filed a compl: vint with ITT

alleging that the mileage allowance was “compensation” and that
therefore paragraph1 of Appendix A of the Commission’s 1965 decision was violated. ITT contended that the compensation referred to in
paragraph 1 of Appendix A related only to base pay as set forth in its
wage structures, and that the FCC in Appendix A did not contemplate

travel allowances. By January 1969, the CWA had unsuecessfully
processed its complaint through the third step of the grievance procedure and did not take any further action on it until corresponding with
the Commission in January 1971.
3. Letters have been filed by both CWA and ITT commenting on the
positions of the other regarding this matter and on certain questions
raised by the Commission in correspondence with the parties. We are
not here now concerned with the merits of the CWA complaint, but
rather with the questions of whether that complaint is subject to consideration pursuant to procedures established by the Commission and
if it is, how it should be processed. The Commission's 1965 decision
approving the transfer of control of Press Wireless to ITT, while providing certain employee protection provisions in Appendix A, did not
specify the procedures that parties should follow in processing complaints which alleged violations of Appendix A. In IT T World Communications

Tne... 21 ¥.C.C. 2d 426 (1970). however, the Commission

set forth procedures for the processing of the aforementioned complaints. The Commission ordered that, to the extent practicable,
Appendix A complaints should be resolved by the usual employeremployee dispute proce ‘dures. Specifically, it required that complaints
be considered under the grievance procedures2 and then if necessary
and the parties desire, under the arbitration procedures of the collective bargaining contract. In addition, the decision provided for Commission review of the final decision resulting from these procedures.
This

decision

however,

was

conditioned

on

ITT’s

acceptance

of the

procedures contained therein. ITT petitioned for partial reconsideration and the Commission, in /7'7’ World Communications, 25 F.C.C,
2d 88 (1970), modified in some respects the previously specified procedures. In this modification, the Commission, pursuaded that arbitration may not be necessary in every instanee, authorized a direct appeal
to the Commission when a dispute could not be resolved in the grievance procedure. It also provided that the Commission would then determine the appropriate procedures for further resolving the complaint.
On October 20, 1970, ITT submitted its agreement and undertaking to
settle Appendix A complaints in a manner set forth in the Commission’s February 16, 1970 Order, as modified by the September 1, 1970
Order. In January 1971 the CWA filed an appeal to the Commission
requesting that ITT be ordered to arbitrate the complaint here under
consideration pursuant to our newly prescribed procedures.
2 The decision noted that time limitations contained in the grievance procedures of the
applicable collective bargaining agreement should be disregarded, ITT World Communications, Inc., 21 F.C.C. 2d 426, 435 (1970).
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4. ITT contends first that since the CWA processed its complaint
through the third and final step of grievance in 1968 and did not further pursue its complaint at that time, the Commission is now precluded from applying to such complaint the procedures it prescribed
during 1970. To support this contention, ITT cites language in our
February 1970 decision to the effect that the prescribed procedures shall
apply to alleged violations of Appendix A that may exist now or arise
in the future. ITT claims that when it accepted the terms of our decision prescribing procedures to be followed, it relied on the prospective
nature of this language and that consideration now of CW A’s complaint would give our procedures an unwarranted retrospective effect.
In a second more general contention, ITT argues that the equitable
doctrine of laches is applicable to the instant case. While the thrust of
this contention is not entirely clear from the pleadings, it appears that
ITT considered arbitration to be an appropriate remedy when the
grievance procedure had been exhausted in 1969 and thus the CW A’s
failure at that time to pursue its complaint through arbitration now
precludes it from reasserting its complaint.
5. In considering ITT’s first and primary contention that application of the Commission procedures to the CWA complaint would le
them an unwarranted retrospective effect, it is necessary to first look:
the Commission's intent in prescribing these procedures. In 1970 aaa
the Commission first prescribed procedures to be followed it was
attempting to remedy the deficiency in its 1965 decision which failed to
specify the course parties should follow in pursuing an alleged violation of Appendix A. Thus, in 1970, the Commission was for the first
time providing a formally approved and agreed- upon method of resolving such disputes. Accordingly, we do not believe it would be consistent with this remedial intent for the Commission to now consider
the CWA complaint closed. Viewing the issue from this perspective, we
do not believe it would be appropriate to consider that the alleged violation of Appendix A had ceased to exist after its having been processed through the third step of grievance in 1968.
6. ITT’s claim of laches does not go to the question whether the
prescribed procedures are applicable to a previously processed complaint but rather to the question whether, because the CWA failed in
1969 to pursue its complaint beyond the grievance procedure in the
collective bargaining agreement, it would now be inequitable to require I'TT to process it pursuant to our procedures. In this regard, it
must first be pointed out that ITT has not shown any additional harm
or injury, other than the damages from a possible adverse ruling,
which

might result from now being required to process CW A’s com-

plaint through arbitration. Moreover, it would not be appropriate for
the Commission to now assume, as ITT does, that the collective bargaining grievance and arbitration procedures, which lacked Commission sanction in 1968, were then an appropriate remedy which the
CWA had available for resolving its claim. While these procedures
were available, and were to some extent utilized, the Commission did
not determine that they were appropriate until 1970. In light of the
foregoing, we do not believe, nor has ITT shown, that C WA’s conduct
38 F.C.C. 2d
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with respect to their complaint was in any way unreasonable or prejudicial to ITT so as to support a claim of laches.
7. In the instant case since the complaint in question has previously
been taken through the completegrievance procedure, we believe that
no useful purpose would now be served by reinstituting the grievance
procedure for the same complaint. An examination of the relevant issues involved herein, however, leads us to conclude that arbitration is
now the appropriate method of attempting to resolve the dispute. The
question of whether mileage pay for travel to and from work is included in the meaning of the term “compensation” as used in the
Commission's decisions includes, among other things, how travel pay is
otherwise treated under the labor contract and the usual interpretation give to “compensation” in labor disputes. Thus, we believe that
arbitration of this dispute using the procedures specified in the labor
contract between CWA and ITT is now warranted.

ORDER
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, that ITT is directed to submit the
subject CWA complaint to arbitration in accordance with the applicable provisions specified in the labor contract presently in effect
between ITT and CWA.
FrepEerat COMMUNICATIONS CoMMISSION,

Ben F. War te, Secretary.
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COMMISSION

20554

in Re Dissent to Commission Action of)
October 26, 1972 Noting Staff Re port |
on Maryland, West Virginia and District of Columbia 1972 Renewals
NOVEMBER

2, 1972

DissENT BY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON TO Starr ACTION ON MARYLAND,
West Vireinta, AND District or CottumpBria RENEWALS

On October 26, 1972, the Commission noted actions to be taken by
the staff under delegated authority in connection with disposition
of October 1, 1972 broadcast renewal applications for Washington,
D.C., Maryland and West Virginia. Commissioner Johnson dissented
and has now, issued the attached statement.
DissENTING OPINION OF COMMISSIONER NICHOLAS JOHNSON

As it has done on so many prior occasions, the majority today refuses to find fault with the license renewals of several broadeast stations on the grounds that those stations have adamantly refused to
meet the public’ s need for news, public affairs and other non-entertainment programming. And, as I have done on an equal number of
occasions, I dissent.
The Federal Communications Commission has been directed by Congress to ensure that, in return for their normally very lucrative use
of the publicly owned airwaves, broadcasters serve “the public interest.” Yet, in the tradition of Catch—22, we have never offered those
broadcasters even the slightest hint as to what the term “public interest” means. This is because we, ourselves, do not know—or at least
never attempted to come up with a definition.
In 1968 former Commissioner Kenneth Cox and I tried to add a
little reason to our otherwise chaotic policies. We suggested that, at
au very minimum, broadcasters could not possibly be serving the needs
of ~ public unless they broadcast at least 5(¢ news, 1% public affairs,
and5

other

non-entertainment

programming.

The

majority,

pre-

ferring to sink deeper into the quagmire of non-principled decisionmaking, rejected our proposal.
And so, today, the majority blithely approves the Broadcast Bureau’s renewal of 221 of the 418 broadcast stations in the Washington,

1).C.-Maryland-Virginia-West Virginia area. And this in spite of the
following revelations:
88
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Three of the A.M. radio stations and three of the television

stations propose to program less than 5% news, All of these stations propose far less news than they proposed three years ago—
no doubt because each station’s performance in the area of news
programming during the last three years fell abysmally short of
prior promises. Four of these station’s news programming proposals for the coming three years do not even begin to approach
a 4% figure; indeed, W DC A-TV in Washington, D.C. has the
gail to propose less than 1.5% news
(2) Eight of the radio ste tions and one television station—
WDCA once again—propose less than 1% public affairs programming.
(3) 26 of the radio stations propose to devote less than 5% of
of their time for the combined categories of public affairs and
other non-entertainment

programs.

Even absent any minimum standards by which to judge a broadcaster’s past performance, these figures should give the majority
pause. However, the majority is apparently of the view that, absent
such standards—standards which the majority steadfastly refuses to
promulgate—a broadcaster’s license should be renewed v irtually automatically, since to deny a license without first informing the broadcaster what he must. do would be too harsh a remedy. And that is what
I mean about Catch—22.
38 F.C.C,
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COMMISSION
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In Re
Crease AND Destsr Orper To Bre Dimecrep|
AGAINsT MEADVILLE Master ANTENNA, INc.,(
MEADVILLE, PA.
Memoranpum

72-1016

THE

Optnton

File No. CSC-27
PAO 30

AND ORDER

(Adopted November 15, 1972; Released November 21, 1972)
By Tire Commisston : Commisstoner H. Rex LEE CONCURRING
RESULT; COMMISSIONER RED ABSENT.

IN THE

1. On September 29, 1972, Great Lakes Communications, Ine. (suecessor to Lamb Communications, Inc.). licensee of Station WICU-TYV,

Erie, Pennsylvania, filed a “Petition For Issuance Of Order To Show
Cause” directed against Meadville Master Antenna, Inc., operator of
a cable television system at Meadville, Pennsylvania. Meadville Master
Antenna, Inc., filed an “Opposition and Motion To Dismiss Petition
For Issuance Of An Order To Show Cause” and Great Lakes has
replied. Great Lakes’ petition asks that Meadville be directed to show
cause why it should not be ordered to cease and desist from violation
of the program exclusivity requirements of Section 76.93 of the Commission’s Rules

(Section 76.93 of the Rules substituted simultaneous

program exclusivity for the same day exclusivity of former Section
74.1103), and for coordination of such proceedings with those in
Docket No. 19479.
2. Meadville Master Antenna, Inc., filed July 1, 1966, a petition for
waiver of Section 74.1103 vis-a-vis the signal of station WICU-TV,
and that petition was denied. Meadville Master Antenna, Ine.. 17 FCC
2d 506 (1969), recon. den. 25 FCC 2d 315 (1970). The United States

Court of Appeals reversed this action and remanded the matter, M/eadville Master Antenna, Inc. v. Federal Communications Commission,
443 F.2d 282 (3d Cir. 1971). Thereafter, we ordered a hearing to determine whether Meadville should be granted a waiver of the program
exclusivity requirements of Section 76.93 of the Rules. JZeadville
Master Antenna, Ine., 34 FCC 2d 358 (1972), recon. den. FCC 72-554
— _ FCC 2d ———. It is in connection with these proceedings
in Docket No. 19479, that Great Lakes seeks to have a Show Cause
Order issued. In essence, Great Lakes feels that statements of Meadville’s counsel suggest the possibility that—should we rule against
Meadville—Meadville may not comply with our Order.
3. Under the circumstances, in this case, the Commission has determined that an evidentiary hearing should be held to determine whether
38 F.C.C.
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or not 2 waiver of its rules would serve the public interest. Until there
has been a determination in the evidentiary hearing
of the waiver issue,
the stay provided by Section 76.97 of the Rules (formerly 74.1109(h) )

is inetlect, and Meadville is under no obligation to provide WICU-TV
with program exclusivity. ater a/ia, it appears that Meadville earlier
provided exclusivity when ordered to do so by the United States Court
of Appeals for the Third Circuit. In these circumstances, we see no
justification for impugning Meadville’s motives by issuing the requested Order at this time.
In view of the foregoing, the Commission finds that issuance of the
requested Order to Show Cause would not be consistent with the public
interest.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the “Petition For Issuance
Of Order To Show Cause” filed September 29, 1972, by Great Lakes
Communications, Inc., IS DENIED.
FrperaL CoMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION,

Ben F. War te, Secretary.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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Mepra Enrererizes, Inc.
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(KQXT),

COMMISSION
20554

Arvapa,|

Coo.

| Docket

Requests: Change in station
Denver, Colo.
For Modification of License
MemMoraNDUM

( Adopted November
s¥ THE COMMISSION

72-1021

THE

location

No. 19635

to{ File No. BML-2520
}

OPINION

AND OrDER

15, 1972; Released November 21, 1972)

: COMMISSIONER

REID ABSENT.

1. The Commission has before it for consideration (i) the abovecaptioned application; (i1) a petition for acceptance, waiver and grant
filed by the applicant; (iii) a petition for reconsideration filed by
KLIK, Inc., licensee of station KLIR, Denver. Colorado: (iv) a petition to deny filed by Lakewood Broadcasting Service, Inc.. licensee of
station KLAK, Lakewood. Colorado; (v) a petition to deny filed by
IK Lik, Inc.; and (vi) opposition and reply pleadings to the petitions
to deny.

2. KEIR has filed a petition for reconsideration of the Commission
action (Order FCC 70-566 adopted May 27, 1970), waiving section
L.OT1, note 2, of the rules (AM “freeze”) and accepting the KQXI
application
should

for filing.

Procedarally,

be accepted although

NLR

argues

that

its petition

it is allegedly untimely according to see-

tion 1.106(4) of the rules, which provides for the filing of a petition
for reconsideration within 30 days of the release of the full text of the
uetion taken. It contends that it filed the petition within 30 days of
the release of the public notice of the adoption of the order and that
the rule sheuld be interpreted to allow the filing of a petition for reconsideration within 30 days from either the release of the full text of the
order or the release
of the public notice of the action taken.
3. Substantively, the petitioner claims that the application seeks
to change an AM assignment on a demand basis, and that the change
would have a significant effect on the radio allocations in the Denver

area. It states that Arvada
broadcast.

would be precluded

facility due to the AM

from having a local

freeze, and that the absence of any

technical changes in the proposal is incidental to the purposes of the
freeze which should not have been waived to accept the KQXI application for filing. In addition, the petitioner alleges that the applicant
showed no extraordinary circumstances to justify its waiver request,
and that the application should be returned since it is substantially
incomplete for failing to conduct a survey of community needs.
38
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The petition for reconsideration was not timely filed and, therefore, cannot be considered. In any event the petitioner'ss contentions,

in support of a reconsideration of our earlier action are unpersuasive.
As stated in the Order being challenged, a grant of the proposal
would have no effect on allocations since there are no engineering
changes proposed and, therefore, it is not the type of proposal for
which the “freeze” was designed. Furthermore, the application will
not be returned as being substantially incomplete since the necessity
of conducting

a community

needs survey, as noted below, is an es-

sential point of contention. The applicant, in good faith, contends that
a survey is not necessary, and the application is as complete as the
applicant oie it should be. Accordingly, the petition for reconsideration will be dismissed, and the merits of the KQXI proposal
will be considered.
5. Lakewood Broadeasting Service, Inc., licensee of station KLAK,

Lakewood, Colorado, claims standing by arguing that a grant of the
application will enhance KQXI's opportunities te compete effectively
with KLAK for program sources, listeners and adver tising revenues
KLAK states that both Lakewood and Arvada are separate suburban
commu nities of the Denver metropolitan area; that KLAK and KQXI
occupy adjacent channels and have sufliciently high power to be heard
throughout the Denver urban area; that KQXI’s move to Denver
would confer additional commercial competitive advantages on
KQXT; and that, therefore, KLAK has standing to object to a grant
of the application. KLIR, Ine., licensee of station KLIR, Denver,
Colorado, also claims standing. It argues that it is assigned to Denver,
programs

to the needs

of Denver,

draws

advertising

Denver, and that the reassignment of KQXI

revenue

from

to Denver would have

a divect adverse economic impact on KLIR.
6. The applicant claims that neither petitioner has standing as a
party in interest. It states that KLAK cannot claim economic injury
since the only lie ensed standard broadeast stations in suburban Jefferson County are KLAK and KQXI, and that KLAK would gain
rather than lose listeners and advertisers by the removal to Denver
of its only local competition. It argues that KLAK previously characterized

KQXI

as another

Denver :station and it cannot

claim that a

modification of KQXIT’s license to conform to that fact operates ~
KLAK’s injury. In addition, the applicant contends that KLIR
case for standing is unsupported by any facts or affidavits and that it
cannot be presumed that a modification of KQXI’s license would
cause economic injury to KLIR.
The Commission finds that the petitioners have standing as parties in interest within the meaning of section 309(d) (1) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and section 1.580( i) of the Com-

mission rules. A change in city of designation from a suburb to the
larger city could affect the competitive position of the stations licensed

either to the surrounding suburbs or the large city, and, accordingly,
the petitioners have stsanding as parties in interest within the meaning
of Federal Communications Commission v. Sanders Brothers Radio
Station, 309 US 470, 9 RR 2008 (1940).
38 F.C.C.
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8. The KQXI application has been filed on the basis of the applipe: s interpretation of prior Commission actions involving applications previously submitted by KQXI. To gain perspective on the
proposal some background information, therefore, is necessary. In
September 1961, KQXI requested authority to change transmitter
site, increase daytime power, add nighttime, and make ‘additional engineering changes. The application was designated for hearing to
determine, ‘nfer alia, whether, for purposes of section 73.28(d) (3)
of the rules (the “10% rule”), Arvada is a separate community from
Denver, Colorado, and whether the nighttime proposal would be consistent with the Commission’s coverage and separation requirements.
The application was denied in a decision (Denver Area Broadcasters,
38 FCC 583, 4 RR 2d 895 (1965) ), that concluded it was unnecessary
to determine whether Arvada was a separate community entitling
KQXI to the exeeption to the “10 percent rule.” KQXI, however, was
permitted to amend its application and return it to the processing
line. As amended, the application sought authority to operate nighttime from a different site than that used for the daytime operation.
Once again it was emer

for hearing to determine whether,

for

purposes of section 73.28(d) (3), Arvada was a separate community
from Denver and whether, as a consequence, the applicant met appropriate Commission requirements. In an initial decision, /ad?o
Station KQYN1,13 FCC 2d 184 (1967), the Hearing Examiner favored
a grant of the application and stated that Arvada was a separate
community entitling KQXI to the first local nighttime service exception to the “10% rule” and that a grant of the application would be
consistent with Commission requirements. The Review Board, however, modilied this finding and denied the application (adie Station
A QAI, 13 FCC 2d 171, 13 RR 2d 363 (1968) ). It held that, for the
purposes of the “10% rule,” Arvada was not a separate community
from Denver and that the proposal would violate the rules. On January 19, 1969, FCC 69-36, the Commission denied, without opinion,
KQXUs application for review of the Review Board’s decision. In
‘esponse,
applic ant submitted an application to modify its license
to specify Denver as its principal community, or, alternatively, reae is of the action denying its
i
for review of the
Review

Board's decision.

By Order

(FCC

69-304), the Commission

dismissed the _— ant’s request. Since the tendered application, howver, was still before the Commission, KQXI submitted a petition
for acceptance, waiver and grant in which it sought waiver of the
“freeze” and change in its city of designation. The Commission
waived the “freeze” and accepted the application for filing. Now before the Commission is the KQXI application to change its city of
designation from the suburban community of Arvada to the larger
my of Denver and opposition and supplementary pleadings.
The petitioners, KLAK and KLIR, argue that the application
isdon d or designated

for hearing on the basis of section 507(b) of

the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. They argue that Arvada,
a suburb of Denver, has grown in ten years from a “population of 19,242
to 46,814 according to the recent census; that KQXT is the only standard broadcast station located in Arvada; that Commission rules do not
38
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provide for an FM or TV allocation for Arvada; that Denver has 12
standard broadcast facilities, 10 FM, 6 television, 1 VILE educational
television and 1 educational standard broadcast station; and that.
therefore, section 807(b) of the Act requires an assessment, in hearing.
of the relative needs of the two cities for locally originated radio
service. The petitioners also claim that the Commission’s Review Board
ruling denying KQXNUs earlier requests for authority to extend its
operating hours from d:avtime to fulltime is not determinative of the

questions posed by the current proposal. They state that the Review
Board

coneluded

that

separate community

KQXT

from

failed to establish

Denver

that

Arvada

is a

within the meaning of the “10%

rule” and that the Board was not confronted with a 307(b) determina-

tion. KLAK asserts that the Commission did not find that Arvada
lacks the characteristics of a separate community for licensing purposes under section 73.30 of the rules or that Arvada does not have
separate characteristics to warrant provisions in the Commission’s
allocation scheme for a separate local daytime broadeast station in the
community. It contends, therefore, that KQXIT cannot maintain that
its proposal is required or justified by prior Commission action. KLIR
argues that the Commission, for allocation purposes, continues to
recognize former town and city limits and small suburban communities
where there has been a merger or annexation by a large community of
a smaller political entity, and, accordingly, since Arvada has not been
merged

or annexed

by Denver,

it remains

a recognized

entity

for

Commission purposes.
10. In submitting its application, KQXT states that it proposes to
change its city of designation without altering its technical operation.
It contends that it seeks to conform the KQ XT license to the Commis-

sion’s recent action in which it affirmed the Review Board’s decision
that Arvada lacks separate programming needs. In response to the
petitioners, the applicant asserts that its proposal is not contrary to
section B07(b)

of the Communieations

Act. It states that

in 1960, the

Commission authorized the facilities of KQXT and denied an application for Denver on the basis of the contingent comparative issue and
not

307 (b)

since

both

app shicants

proposed

wide

area

cover: age

To Vir-

tually the same area. At that time, according to KQXT, the Commission wrote that “the existing Denver stations or a station operating on

the facilities here in contest

. . . could effectively meet such cistinetly

local needs as exist in Arvada.” Denver Broadcasting Co., 28 FCC
at 676 (1960)2

iission

662

In addition, the = plic ant states that in 1969, the Com-

refused to review the Review

Board’s decision

that “KQ XN]

failed to establish that Arvada is a separate community from Denver
within the meaning of the 10 percent rule.” On the basis of these two
actions, KQXI asserts that it is in the anomalous position of being
licensed to serve a “community which had been held—not once, but
twice—to have no need for local service.” The applicant states that it,
therefore, submitted the instant application in order to conform its
The present

KQXI

operation

provides coverage

to the city of Denver

in accordance

with

Commission rules.
“The Commission did not find, however, that section 307(b) was not applicable, only that
the decision should not be made on the basis of 307(b) considerations.
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license to the Denver metropolitan area, the community which the
Commission has twice found that it realistically serves. It ad lsth:at no
change in the geographic emphasis of KQXT’s programming is proposed in the light of the Board’s cone Jusion in 1967 that “programming
directed spec ific:ally toward Arvada residents on a regular basis is unimpressive, and... (that) the vast bulk of the programs described
. are designed for... wide area appeal...” Ladio Station
KONT, 13 FCC 2d at 178, 13 RR 2d 363 at 372 (1968). In response to
KLAK’s objections, KQXI argues that KLAK is bound by its contentions in Docket No. 14817 where it successfully contended that
Arvada is a bedroom community dependent upon Denver for essential
services, and that its destiny “is inextricably tied to that of Denver
and the whole metropolitan area.” In response to KLIR’s contentions
regarding the merger of separate political entities, KQXT alleges that
the petitioner's reliance on these cases is misplaced since the Commission has found on two occasions that the needs of Arvada and Denver
are common rather than separate and distinct.
11. A grant of KQXTs request would bring a twelfth local standard
broadeast outlet to Denver while removing the only station licensed
to serve Arvada, a city with a population of 46,814. There is, therefore, a substantial question as to whether a grant of this request would
result in a fair, efficient, and equitable distribution of facilities within
the meaning of section 307(b)

of the Communications

Act of 1934, as

amended. WA YR, Jne., 24 RR 1097 (1963), Radio San Juan, Ine., 20

FCC 2d 92 (1969). The applicant argues that because the Commission
has twice before held that Arvada was not a community, first in the
original comparative proceeding, and later in a hearing on an application for nighttime service, we are now bound by those findings in this
proceeding. That argument must be rejected. In the first proceeding
the Commission held only that for the purpose of choosing between
two applicants, one for Arvada and the other for Denver, the proposals
were so similar in most respects that section 307(b) of the Act should
not be controlling. In the second proceeding, although the issue was
framed in terms of whether Arvada was a community for purposes of
the 10 percent rule, the Review Board’s conclusion wes based on findings that KQXI was really trying to serve Denver nighttime, and,
therefore, applied the criteria set forth in the Commission’s 7olicy
Statement

Facilities

on

Section

Involving

307 (6)

Considerations

Suburban

Communities,

for Standard

2 FCC

Broadcast

2d 190

(1965).

Thus, neither of these earlier findings are controlling here, because
different considerations are involved when, as here, the
—_—
is
simply whether the only station licensed to Arvada should be allowed
to be licensed to Denver, which already has eleven standard broadeast
stations. See, for example, the special emphasis placed upon the city of
license in the Primer on Ascertainment of Community Problems by
Broadcast

Applicants, 27 FCC

2d 650, 21 RR 2d 1507

(1971). There-

fore, an issue with respect to this matter will be specified.
12. KLIR argues also that KQXI violated section 1.65 of the rules
by misrepresenting its program ‘format to the Commission. It claims
that KQXI’s information on file at the Commission and that being
distributed to potential advertisers are irreconcilable and that these
38
109-018
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misrepresentations are the basis for an issue.’ Specifically, the petitioner states that in June 1969 KQXI informed the Commission that
it was changing its music format to country and western and in May

1970 that it was changing from country and western to gospel music.
In July 1970, however, the petitioner states that KQXI distributed
advertising promotions that claimed it was celebrating its first full
year of broadcasting 100% religious music.
13. In reply, KQXI argues that, its assignment application filed
July 14, 1969, and subsequent amendments state that there would be a
“higher percentage of talk programs, including programs of a religious
nature,” that the station was “devoting as much as 40% of its weekly
schedule to programming of a religious nature,” and that the station
had recently changed its music format to country and western. In a
supplementary pleading, KQXI implies that there is no inconsistency
between having a religious program format and a country and western
music format, and states that the Commission was satisfied with its
changes and explanation for them since the Commission subsequently
granted its assignment application on September24, 1969. It argues
also that it notified the Commission by letter on May 28, 1970, that it
changed its music format from —
and western to gospel, and
that, currently, it features both gospel and country and western music.
14. Upon consideration of the allegations of misrepresentation and
the applicant's response thereto, we ‘conclude that the petitioner has
not alleged suflicient facts to warrant specifying an issue with respect
to violation of section 1.65 of the rules. However, the contradictions between what KQXI reported to the Commission and what the station
told potential advertisers are such as to raise a substantial question of
misrepresentation. Therefore, we will specify an issue concerning the
matter.

15. KLIR also contends that the applicant has failed to comply with
the Primer * by not submitting a current community needs survey that

includes the leaders and general public of Denver and by not justifying
Its 100% religious format. KQXI argues that a survey is not necessary since Arvada and Denver are indistinguishable broadcast entities
and a survey of the people of Denver is irrelevant to the applicant’s
awareness of the needs of Denver and the surrounding area.
16. A survey of community needs was conducted by KQXIT on
December 8, 1970, and filed with its recent renewal applic:ation (BR4102), KQNT satisfactorarily explained the changes in its broadcast
aaa, and the station’s renewal was granted. The petitioner’s objections, therefore, relating to KQXI’s past programming practices will
not be considered further. The contention, however, that KQXI failed
tocomply with the Primer is well taken. The Primer states specifically
that a community needs survey must be submitted with an application for modification of license to change station location. Since KQXI
intends to be responsive primarily to Denver, with service to coma
‘On the basis of statements made in these promotional fliers distributed by KQXI,
KLIR claims that KQXI has completed the transfer of its identity to Denver and that
there has been a de facto abandonment of Arvada. The statements made by KQXI for
advertising purposes are insufficient to justify charging KQXI with unauthorized abandonment

of Arvada, and an issue on that matter has not been specified.

* Primer
650, 21 RR

on Ascertainment
2d 1507

38 F.C.C.

2d

(1971).

of Community

Problems

by Broadcast

Applicants, 27 FCC

2a

Media Enter prizes, Ine.

145

munities outside the city of license, it must be aware of the current
problems, needs and interests of the residents of its community of
license and the other areas it undertakes
to serve. Accordingly, KQXIs

response that it is aware of the needs of Arvada and that a survey of
the people of Denver is irrelevant is inadequate, and an appropriate
issue will be specified.
17. Finally, KLAK claims that a substantial question exists as to
whether the applicant complied with the Commission’s publication requirements. It asserts that KQXI published a notice in a newspaper in
Denver but not in Arvada, and stated in the notice that the purpose of
its application was te change the city of license to Denver, but failed to
state that the main studio also would be moved to Denver. In response,
the applicant argues that it was not necessary for it to publish in a
newspaper and that the relocation of the main studio, which is a necessary consequence of the modification of license, was implicit in the
notice that it published.
The Commission finds that the applicant complied w ith section
1.580 of the rules by b — asting the notice as provided by the rules.
The applicant, by also publishing the notice in a Denver newspaper,
demonstrated its intention to fully apprise the public of the filing of
its application, and the mere fact that KQNIT failed to state that the
inain studio would be moved is not sufficient to raise a question as to
whether the applicant has complied with section 1.580 of the rules.
19. Iexcept as indicated by the issues specified below, the applicant is
qualified to construct and operate as proposed. In view of the foregoing, however, the Commission is unable to make the statutory finding
that a grant of the subject application would serve the public interest,
convenit ‘nee, and necessity, and is of the opinion that the application
must be designated for hearing on the issues set forth below.
20, Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That, pursuant to section 309
(e) of the Communications

Act of 1934, as amended, the application

IS DESIGNATED FOR HEARING, at a time and place to be
specified in a subsequent Order, upon the following issues:
To determine,

in the light

807(b) of the Coinmunications Act of
of the appplication would provide a fair,
efficient, and equitable distribution of radio service.
To determine whether station KQXI misrepresented its program format to the
1934, as ame ended,

Commission

of section

whet ther a grant

or in promotional

material

to potential

advertisers,

and, if so,

Whether such misrepresentation reflects adversely on its qualifications to be
a broadcast licensee.
To determine the efforts made by station KQXI to ascertain the community
needs

and

interests

of

the

area

to be served

and

the

means

by

which

the

applicant proposes to meet those needs and interests.
To determine, in the light of the evidence adduced pursuant to the foregoing
issues, whether a grant of the application would serve the public interest,
convenience, and necessity.

21. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the Petition for Reconsideration filed by oe Inc., licensee of station KLIR, Denver, Colorado, IS DISMISSED
_IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the Petitions to Deny filed
by KL Rh, Ine., licensee of station KLIR, Denver, Colorado, and Lakewood Broadcasting Service, Inc., licensee of station KLAK, Lakewood,
38
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indicated above and ARE

DENIED in all other respects.

23. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That KLIR, Ine.. and Lakewood Broadeasting Service, Inc... ARE MADE PARTIES to the
proceeding.
24. ITT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That. in the event of a grant of
the application, the construction permit shall contain the following
condition:
The authority
take whatever

granted herein is subject to the condition that the licensee shall
measures are necessary to prevent objectionable reradiation effects

or cross-modulation with station KLZ, Denver, Colorado,

25. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That, to avail itself of the opportunity to be heard, the applicant and parties respondent herein,
pursuant to section 1.221(¢c) of the Commission rules, in person or by
attorney, shall, within 20 days of the mailing of this Order, file with
the Commission in triplicate, a written appearance stating an intention to appear on the date fixed for the hearing and present evidence on
the issues specified in this Order.
26. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the applicant herein shall,
pursuant to section 311i(a) (2) of the Communications Act of 1934, as

amended, and section 1.594 of the Commission rules, give notice of the
hearing, within the time and in the manner prescribed in such rule,
and shall advise the Commission of the publication of such notice as
required by section 1.594(@) of the rules.
FrepERAL

ComMMUNICATIONS

Ben

CoMMISSION,

F. Warir, Secretary.
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In the Matter of
AMENDMENT OF Parts 2 ANp 89 To ALLOCATE
157.450 MHz tro THE SpectaL EMERGENCY
Rapto Service ror Mepicat PAGING SYSTEMS
IN Hosprraus
| Docket No. 19645

Petition of General Systems Development | RM-1884
Corporation

for Allocation of the Fre-

quency 157.450 MHz to the Business
Radio Service for Marine Navigation
System Use

MrmMoraNpuM OPLNION AND ORDER AND NOTICE OF PRoposED RULE
MAKING

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)

By tir

ComMisston:

CoMMISSIONER

JOILNSON

CONCURRING

IN TITE

RESULT.
Notice is hereby given of the proposed rule making in the above
entitled matter.
One of the rapidly growing uses of land-mobile frequencies
utilizes the transmission of a series of audio tones to alert personnel
carrying pocket size receivers. The messages may be merely an alerting
call (tone-only page) or a tone selection signal followed by a voice
message (tone-select, voice- page). The use of these devices has develope «Lon land-mobile two-way frequencies and, due to the nature of
paging reqitirements, these sy stems often create conflicts with two-w ay

systems and result in complaints of destructive and annoying interference. In the Business Radio Service, for example, numerous interference problems and conflicts led to the designation of a number of
frequencies exclusively for radio paging. The use of these paging-only
channels markedly alleviated these difficulties.
For the past several years, we have also been receiving complaints
of interference from paging systems to two-way systems In the Special
Kmergency Radio Service. Aithough attempts have been made to resolve these problems on a case-by-case basis, this approach to the problem has not been successful. As a result, during the past vear the
Commission has received several requests from individual hospitals
and from the American Hospital Association for the allocation of a
frequency solely for hospital paging communications. We have also
received a petition from the Northern California Chapter of the
Associated Public Safety Communications Officers (NCAPCO).
NCAPCO’s petition, filed on October 24, 1972, discusses the increasing
38 F.C.C.
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need for communications of the health care services in general, the
interference problems resulting from operations of paging and twoway systems on the same frequencies, and recommends adoption of
rules which would provide for authorizing paging and two-way systems on different frequencies.
4. We recently allocated four channels in the 35 and 43 MHz bands
for one-way paging in the Special Emergency Radio Service. First Report and Order in Docket No. 19327 adopted June 14, 1972, FCC 72508. While use of these frequencies should provide the ecapability of
relieving interference on low VHF frequencies, we believe that an
allocation somewhere near 150 MHz is required to correct the widespread interference problem between paging and two-way on 150 MHz
frequencies and at the same time permit use of same-band equipment.
We propose, therefore, to allocate 157.450 MHz to the Special Emergency Radio Service to meet hospital paging requirements for oneway paging.
The

frequenc, y 157 wae MHz

is a bandedge

(splinter)

channel

ed is one of only two 150 MHz frequencies still unallocated for
regular operations.’ The frequency provides a 25 kHz channel between the Automobile Emergency Service and the Maritime Mobile
Service allocations and is suitable for the paging activity. It is presently being sparsely used in the Land Transportation and Public
Safety Radio Services under one- year developmental authorizations,
almost entirely for railroad operations. The frequency is also being
utilized by the General Systems Development Corporation (GSD)
under an Experimental (Developmental) authorization. GSD is obtaining data in connection with a marine radio-navigation system it is
developing, and it has petitioned (RM-1884) for rule making to allocate the frequency 157.450 MHz to the Business Radio Service for
use as a data link in its system. GSD wants this specific allocation in
order to provide a c¢‘hannel near the Maritime MobileService frequencies which affords thessame equipment capabilities for both voice and
“radio-aid-to-navigation” service. It is clear, however, that it will be a
considerable per iod of time before the merits of GSD's system can be
evaluated and the extent of the requirements for it ascert: ained. On the
other hand, we are well aware that there is an immediate need for a
frequency in this frequency range to meet the fast growing requirement for paging in hospitals and to ameliorate the severe interference
problems rising out of the use of the same frequencies for paging and
for two-way communications in the Special Emergency Radio Service.
Finally, although we realize that the petitioner relies heavily on the
allocation of this frequency for the development of its proposed system, our action here need not necessarily preclude it. The GSD system need not necessarily be tied exclusively to this frequency; so that
when its merits and the requirements for its use are fully evaluated,
other frequency possibilities in nearby frequency bands can be explored, assuming a case therefor can be made.
1The other bandedge
15 kHz channel.
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The proposed allocation of 157.450 MHz to the Special Emergency Radio Service requires that consideration be given to the possibility of adjacent channel interference. To minimize such interference,
to permit duplication of use of this frequency to the maximum extent,
and consistent with the power needs for hospital paging operations,
we are proposing to limit the maximum effective radiated power
(ERP)

to 30 watts.

Thirty

watts

ERP

should

accommodate

most

hospital needs for coverage over the hospital grounds. Accordingly,
new hospital paging systems will be required to operate on a paging
frequency effective w ith the availability of this 150 MHz channel.
Existing systems, of course, will be permitted to continue operation,
prov ided they do not cause harmful interference to two-way radiotelephone

systems of other

licensees sharing the same

freque ney in

which case, they will be expected to change over to the new frequency.
However, wide area hospital-to-doctor paging systems should not
expect to utilize the frequency 157.450 MHz as limited to thirty watts
ERP. Therefore, these higher power systems that cause interference
to two-way systems will be required to change to one of the exclusive
one-way paging frequencies available in the Business Radio Service.
Alternatively, high or low power systems could elect to change to one
of the lower band frequencies

(35.64, 35.68, 43.64, and 43.68 MHz)

available for one-way paging in the Special Emergency Radio Service.
7. Although we are proposing to allocate the frequency 157.450
MHz in the Special Emergency Radio Service prim: irily as a means
of alleviating the problein of interference from paging to two-way
systems, we ‘want to explore other possibilities for dealing with it.
Therefore, we invite comments on possible alternative methods, such
as:
(a)

reduction

of authorized

power and/or antenna

height of

hospital paging systems so as to limit the effective radiated power
to the minimum required for effective coverage of the hospital
buildings

and

nearby

grounds

( possibly

5 watts

input

into a

ground“plan antenna inthe basement in lieu of 30 watts into an
antenna on top of a building) ;
(b) require paging operators to monitor continually the chan- before transmitting, in order to minimize inter ference to ongoing communications of other licensees;
(c) shift either the paging or the two-way system to a lesser
congested channel when a serious interference situation develops;
and,

(d) investigate the possibility of using 150 MHz tertiary fre-

quencies for low--power in-hospital paging, without the mandatory geographical separation from adjacent channel operations
as now required by the Rules.

Finally, we want to
157.450 MHz is one of
located in the 150-160
this frequency should
more pressing needs.

explore another
the few narrow
MHz band, we
be allocated to

matter. Since the frequency
band edges remaining unalinvite comments on whether
accommodate other, possibly
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s. In accordance with the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED That the
petition, RM-188+4, submitted by ‘General Systems Development Corporation, IS DENIED IN PART, but final action thereon IS DEFERRED until further notice. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED That.
Notice of Proposed Rule Making is given to amend Parts 2 and 89
of the Comniission’s Rules to allocate the frequency 157.450 MHIz to

the Special Emergeney Radio Service for hospital medical paging.
The proposed amendments are issued pursuant to the authority
contained

in Sections

+(i1) and 303(1) of the Communications

Act of

1934, amended.
10. Pursuant to applicable procedures set forth in Seetion 1.415
of the Commission’s Rules, interested persons may file comments on
or before February 8, 1973, and reply comments on or before February
23, 1973. All relevant and timely comments and reply comments will
be coneened by the Commission before final action is taken in this
proceeding. In reaching its decision in this proceeding, the Commission may also take into account other relevant infor mation before it, in
addition to the specific comments invited by the Notice.
11. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1.419 of the Commission’s Rules. an original and 14 copies of all statements, briefs.
or comments filed shall be furnished the Commission. Responses will
be available for public inspection during regular business hours in the
Commission's Public Reference Room at its main offices in Washington, D.C.
FrepERAL

ComMMUNICATIONS

COMMISSION,

Ben F. Ware,

Secretary.

Vid-Tludson.

Cablevision.

Ine.

F.C.C.
BEFORE

FEDERAL

COMMUNICATIONS
Wasutneron,

In Re
Mip-Hupson

THE

D.C.

COMMISSION
20554
\

Capsrevision,

Inc.

CAC_89

Town or Catskity, N.Y.
VILLAGE OF CarskILL, N.Y.
Crry or Hupson, N.Y.
VILLAGE or ATHENS, N.Y.
Town or ATHENS, N.Y.
For Certificates of Compliance
MemoranpuM

(Adopted
By tue

November

CAC_90
CAC_91
CAC_99
CAC_93
Cot

Opinion

15, 1972;

AND

Released

ORDER

November

21, 1972)

ComMMIssIon:

1. Mid-Hudson

Cablevision, Ine., operates cable television systems

at the Town and Village of Catskill,
mence service at the City of Hudson,
Town of Athens, New York, small
= any-Schenectady-Troy, New York

New York and intends to comNew York and the Village and
communities located within the
television market, the 34th larg-

. It submitted applications for certificates of compliance. requesting the Commission's authorization
all these communities:

to carry the following signals in

WAST
WTEN
WRGB

(ABC)
(CBS)
(NBC)

Albany, N.Y.
Albany, N.Y.
Schenectady, N.Y.

WMHT

( Educ.)

Schenectady,

WPIX

(Ind.

New

WOR-TV
WHCT
WNEW-TV
WCBS-TV

(Ind.

N.Y.

New York City, N.Y.

(Ind.
(Ind.
Ss

York City, N.Y.

Hartford, Conn.
New York City, N.Y.
New York City, N.Y.

The carriage of WNEW-TV and WCBS-TYV was proposed on a
limited basis: (a) whenever the programming of WOR-TV, WPIX
or WHCT is blacked out pursuant to the provision of the Commission’s exclusivity rules, WNIEW-TV_ would be substituted: (b)
WNEW-TV would also be carried in that time before WHCT had
commenced

its daily broadcast

service;

(c) only the late-night

(and

early morning) non-network programming of WCBS-TV would be
carried, at a time when no other stations were broadcasting. In addition to the broadcast signal carriage proposals, the applicant submitted
38
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its pooipes to implement a non-broadeast access program as required
by § 76.251 of the Rules.
2. These applications drew the opposition of Albany Television, Inc.,
licensee of WTEN and Sonderling Broadcasting Company, licensee of
WAST. On May 22, 1972, the objection filed‘by Albany Television
was dismissed as being untimely filed. Sonderling opposed the carriage
of WNEW-TYV
on the basis proposed by Mid- Hudson; such carriage.
it was asserted, violated the provisions ‘of§ 76.61(b) (2) as WNE W _
TV did not qualify as the third indepe anlene this rule permits. Once
WHCT

had been selected ', Mid-Hudson

yielded somewhat, deleting

its request to carry WCBS-TYV: however, it refused to withdraw altogether the proposal to carry WNEW-TYV on a “filler” basis when
the programming of W OR-T V, WPIX or WHCT was blacked out.
Faced by Albany Television’s continued opposition, in the form of a
Petition for Special Relief, Mid-Hudson withdrew its request to carry
WNE W-TV when WHCT
was not broadcasting.’
Our rules specifically permit the carriage of substituted programining obtained from “any other television station” when the exclusivity rules require the programming of regularly-carried independent
stations to be blacked out. Rather than footnote the rule (§ 76.61 (b)

(2) (ii)), it appears advisable to quote it verbatim:
(ii) Whenever, pursuant to Subpart F of this part, a cable television system
is required to delete a television program on a signal carried pursuant to subdivision (i) of this subparagraph or paragraph (¢c) of this section, or a program on such a signal is primarily of local interest to the distant community
(e.g., a local news or publie affairs program), such system may, consistent with
the program exclusivity rules of Subpart F of this part, substitute a@ pregram
from any other television broadcast station. A program substituted may be carried to its completion, and the cable system need not return to its regularly carried signal until it can do so without interrupting a program already in progress.

(Italics added.)

That the cable system has designated ene particular station to provide

such substituted programming is a matter for the system to decide. As

a consequence,

the opposition

of Sonderling

Broadeasting

will be

denied.
While there were no suggestions that the bulk of Mid-Hudson’s
cecal carriage proposal or its stated access program was inconsistent
with the cable television rules, we have examined them for consistence Vv

and conclude that the requirements of these rules have been satisfied.
1 § 76.61(b) (2) reads as follows :
Independent stations. (i) For the first and second additional signals, if any, a cable
television
system
mav
carry
the signals
of any
indenendent
television
station:
Provided, however, That
if signals of stations in the first 25 major television markets
(see § 76.51(a))
are carried pursuant to this subparagraph, such signals shall be
taken
from one or both of the two closest such markets, where such signals are
available.
If a third additional signal may be carried, a system shall carry the signal
of any independent
UHF
television
station
located within
200 air miles of the

reference point for the community of the system (see § 76.53), or if there is no such
station, either the signal of any independent VHF television station located within
200 air miles of the reference point for the community of the system, or the signal of

any independent

UHF

television station.

2 As a consequence, these Petitions for Special Relief (CSR-115, 116, 117, 118, and 119),
styled “‘Motion for Acceptance of Late Pleading” (CSR-115, 116, 117, 118, and 119) have
been rendered

38
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Mid-Hudson

Accordingly,

IT

Cablevision, Ine.

IS ORDERED,

That

153

the subject

applications

for Certificates of Compliance filed by Mid-Hudson Cablevision, Inc.,
are granted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the opposition submitted
May 15, 1972, by Sonderling Broadcasting Corporation is denied.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the “Motions for Late
Pleading”, filed by Albany Television, Inc., are dismissed.
FreppraL

CoMMUNICATIONS

Ben

F.

CoMMISSION,

Warts,

Secretary.
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In Re Application of
Pappas TEvEviston,
CALIF.

Inc.

)
(KMPH),

Tunare,

|

File No. BLCT

For License to Cover Construction Permit,
MemoranptuM

(Adopted

November

Oprnxton

22, 1972;

AND

Released

ORDER

November

29, 1972)

seTHE COMMISSION : COMMISSIONER JOITNSON DISSENTING.
. The Commission has for consideration (a) the above-captioned license application filed on October 6, 1971, by Pappas Television,
Incor porated, oe mittee of television broadcast station KMPH, channe] » Tulare, California; (b) an informal objection filed on November 23, 1971, by the Or ana ition for Utilizing and Reforming Televimee.sand (c) related ae adings."

On November 6, 1968, the Commission eranted a construction
vous (BPC T4050) to Pappas Electronics, Inc., for a new television
broadcast. station to operate on channel 26, Tulare, California. On
January 20, 1970, the Commission granted an application (BAPCT-—
168) to assign the construction permit to Pappas Television. Inc.
(Pappas), and an application (BMPCT-7196) for modification of
the construction permit and to make changes in the station’s authorized
facilities. On October 6, 1971, Pappas filed this license application for
television broadcast station KMPH, channel 26, Tulare, California.
On November 23, 1971, the Organization for Utilizing and Reforming
Television (OUR-TYV) filed an informal objection to Pappas’ license
application.
OUR-TV, a coalition of individuals and organizations formed to
assure that programming in the San Joaquin Valley adequately reflects
the needs and interests of low income and minority groups, alleges
that Pappas has failed in its efforts to ascertain the needs and interests
of the community, and that the Commission should designate Pappas’
license application for hearing on an appropriate issue. OUR-TV
contends that) Pappas’ initial survey, conducted in 1968, as part of
its application for a construction permit. was deficient, since it was
not conducted by key personnel; since it failed to list a detailed compositional breakdown of the community; since it did not fully advise the person interviewed of the purpose for the interview; and
since it was not representative of the minority and poor popul:ation
(On December 16, 19717, and April3, 1972, the Organization for Utilizing and Reforming
Television
filed amendments
to its inform: i objec
nb.
On January
24, 1972, Pappas
Television, Inc., filed an opposition, and on May 23, 1972, Pappas filed further comments.
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of the community. OUR-TYV further contends that Pappas failed to
conduct any survey in conjunction with its modification application
(BMPCT-7196) filed on M: ay 5, 1970, and that the survey conducted
in 1970 as part of Pappas’ assignment application (BAPCT-168)
was deficient. because it did not cover areas beyond Tulare and Kings
C ae and failed to list specific program proposals.
OUR-TY’s allegations of deficiencies in Pappas’ 1968 survey are
bani upon the standards set forth in the Commission’s Primer on
Ascertainment of Community Problems by Broadcast Applicants,
adopted February 18, 1971, 27 FCC 2d 650, and not upon the survey
requirements which were operative in 1968. The requirement that
only principals, top-level employees or prospective employees could
conduet the consultations with the community leaders was not operative until the Commission’s

Notice

of Inquiry in the Matter

of the

.rimer on the Ascertainment of Community Problems by Broadcast
|pplicants, was adopted December 9, 1969, 20 FCC 2d 880. Under
the 1968 survey standards, as set forth in Minshall Broadcasting Co..
11 FCC 2d 796 (1968), it was acceptable for Pappas to have its survey
conducted by Thomas Porter, an instructor at the College of Sequoias
in Visalia, California. Similarly, the 1968 standards did not require
the broadeast applicant to submit a compositional breakdown of the
community. A review of the questions contained in Pappas’ 1968 survey indicates that persons interviewed must have been aware of the
purpose of the survey. With regard to OUR-TYV’s allegation that
thie ete survey Was not representative of the minority and the poor
population, Mr. Porter stated that he had difficulty interviewing varlous labor and minority officials and discovered that questionnaires
left with these officials were not returned. The survey did, however,
contact 217 persons and contained complete and responsive answers
concerning local needs, full information as to steps taken to become
informed, suggestions received and an evaluation of those suggestions,

and a list of proposed programming to meet those suggestions. The
1968 survey therefore, fully complied with J/ashall Broadcasting Co.,
SUP.

+. On

May 5, 1970, Pappas filed both a modification application

(BMPCT-7196)

and

an assignment

application

(BAPCTH68).

In

connection with both applications, Pappas, on December 1, 1970, submitted a survey to ascertain the needs and interests of the community.
Pappas’ modification apyeation stated that although the coverage
area of station KMPH-TV would be enlarged, it did not expect. to
serve an increased number of persons. Pappas has also submitted a
news release dated May 10, 1971, stating that it was not the station’s
intention to serve the communities of Fresno and Bakersfield. Although question 8 of the Commission’s proposed primer* required
applicants for major changes in facilities to ascertain the needs in the
gain area the applicant proposes to serve, Pappas did not have to
survey areas outside Tulare and Kings Counties, since it never intended to serve the outlying areas. With regard to the allegation that
* Exhibit 2 of modification
®* Notice of Inquiry in the
lems

by Broadcast

application (BMPCT—7196) filed on May 5, 1970.
Matter of the Primer on Ascertainment of Community

Applicants, adopted

December

19, 1969, 20 FCC

Prob-

2d S80.
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the 1970 survey failed to list proposed programming, it must be noted
that Exhibit III to the 1970 survey did specifically list panel shows,
special reports, local news broadeasts and editorials directed to the
problems of the community. The Commission finds that although this
list might have expressed greater detail, it did comply with questions
30 and 33 of the proposed primer.
6. Based on the foregoing, it is clear that OUR-TY’s allegations
do not raise substantial and material questions of fact requiring designation of the license application for hearing. The real dispute between
the parties revolves around OUR-TV’s concept of a station’s obligation to the community and how that obligation is 2 be met. The controversy stems from a rejection by KMPH ofa list of demands
submitted to it by OUR-TV in the form of a preipeinel agreement.
From this rejection have come charges and countercharges of bad faith
negotiations, harassment, threats, but nothing in the way of facts of
which this Commission may take cognizance. The proposed agreement
is extensive but a brief summary of its more important features will
serve to illumine the dispute.
The — ment provides that the seven-man steering committee
of OUR-TYV be recognized by KMPH as the exclusive agent for the
minority community. It also provides that the steering committee
shall have the power to hire and fire minority employees; that the
station will hire specified numbers of minority personne! to be selected
by OUR-TYV;; that those selected, even if not qualified, shall be trained
to meet qualifications; that the station will maintain a continuous
work-training program, will pay the trainees who shall be selected
by OUR and will upon completion of training, replace regular employees performing the tasks. The agreement also specifies that there
shall be no hiring of Mexican nationals or of Spanish-surnamed persons who live outside the KMPH service area. Other demands require
the station to supply a complete list of all companies with which it
does business and the affirmative action programs of these companies.
KMPH, pursuant to the proposed agreement, would be required to

fund training programs initiated by the minor ity community and to
make its produe tion facilities available for such programs. Moreover,
a one-hour program to be produced by the minority community and
directed by OUR-TV shall be presented bi-monthly in prime time.
The costs for the production shall be paid for by KMPH, up to $2,000
per month, but the exclusive rights to these productions shall remain
with OUR-TV.
8 KMPH argues that to submit to such demands would be tantamount to relinquishing control of its station to OUR-TY, and an
unlawful delegation of licensee responsibility. Therefore, although
stating a willingness to meet and discuss proposed programming,
KMPH has refused to agree to the OUR-TV demands. With respect
to minority employment, the most recent information submitted indi‘ates that the station has25 employees, 5 of whom are Mexican-Ameri‘ans. Three of these are in production jobs and two are in clerical jobs.
With respect to programming, KMPH programs some five hours per
veek in Spanish. It also broadcasts a Japanese program, produced
38 F.C.C.
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by two Japanese-American employees, a Japanese husband and wife
team.

On the basis of all of the foregoing, we believe that the OUR-TV
petition should be denied and the pending application of KMPH for
license should be granted. We find that the con nmunity surveys made
in 1968 and 1970 were in substantial compliance with the Commission's
policies when they were made, and that none of the other questions
raised by OUR-TY concerning the hiring practices of the station or
its programming are such as to constitute causes or circumstances first

coming to the Comnission’s attention since grant of the construction
pernut for the station warranting a hearing under section 319(e) of
the Communications Act. It is note worthy that, although KMPH has
now been operating for over a year, OUR-TYV has offered no specific
complaints with respect. to either prograi
amming or hiring practices
Furthermore, if OUR-TV continues to be concerned as to whether
station KMPH is providing a needed service and whether the station
is being responsive to the problems of the community, it will have
«imple opportunity to raise objections at the next renewal period. In
the meantime OUR-TV can continue to meet with KMPH and provide input to KMPH as to problems of the minorities in the
communities.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the application (BLCT2135) filed by Pappas Television, Incorporated, IS GRANTED, and
the informal objections filed by the Organization for Utilizing and
Reforming Television ARE DENIED.
FEDERAL

CoMMUNICATIONS

Ben

CoMMISSION,

F. Waris,

Secretary.
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Re Commissioners Statements Concerning Commission Action of October 27, 1972 on Pennsylvania and Delaware Broadcasting Stations Renewals
NOVEMBER

3, 1972.

OPprNIONS BY COMMISSIONERS NICHOLAS JOHNSON AND Hooks tn PENNSYLVANIA-DELAWARE RENEWAL ACTION

On October 27, 1972, the Commission announced action on renewal
applications of 28 Pennsylvania and two Delaware broadcasting stations, which the Commission had queried on employment practices.
Commissioners Nicholas Johnson and Hooks concurring in part and
dissenting in part to the Commission action, and has now issued the
following statements:
Opixion

OF

COMMISSIONER

AND

NICHOLAS

DISSENTING

JOHNSON

IN

CONCURRING

IN

PART

Parr

Some four years after the enactment of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
the Federal Communications Commission promulgated equal employment opportunity regulations of broadcasters. Vondiscrimination Employnr

Non

nt

Practices

teereeentons

18 FCC

of Broadcast

Licensees,

Employment

Practices

2d 240 (1969); Nondiscrimination

Broadcast

13

FCC

2d

of Broadcast

Employment

766

(1968) :

Licensees,

Practices of

Licensees, 23 FCC 2d 430 (1970).

By August of 1972, the Commission finally decided it ought to make
an effort to enforce those ain seane = See Pennsylvania and Delaware
Renewals, ——

BC 'C 2d-

(1972).

In light of tod: Ly ‘sac see eight years after the Civil
Act—the majority's effort has proved to be, at best, tokenism.
In our August decision, we directed the Broadcast Bureau
equal employment opportunity inquiry letters to 30 broadcast
in Pennsylvania and Delaware. Those letters were directed to
which had ten or more employees and which :

Rights
to send
stations
stations

(1) had no women employees, or showed a decline in the number of women employees from 1971 to 1972, or
(2) were inareas with a minority population of 5% or more and
employed no blacks or showed a decline in the number of black
employees from 1971 to 1972.
The purpose of these letters was to solicit from the stations their reasons for their employment patterns—to help us determine whether
oe

F.C.C.
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the stations might be engaged in the sort of discriminatory employment
practices against whic hour regulations are directed.
Thad e onsider:able reservations about the standards employed by the
Commission in selecting stations which merited letters of inquiry. See
my concurring and dissenting statement in the Pennsylvania and
Delaware Renewals deci ision, ———- FCC 2d ——— at ———. I felt
that those letters—the sole purpose of which was informative rather
than punitive—should have been sent to many more stations, that we
should have concerned ourselves not only with the number of women

and minorities employed by a station, but also with the positions held
by such employees.
The majority, of course, felt otherwise, and I concurred in their gesture on the theory that some remedial action is generally prefer able to
none at all. Insofar as this proceeding is concerned, however, I have
serious doubts about the validity of that theory. For though it appears
to have scrutinized the employment practices of these ‘stations, the
majority has, in fact, emphasized form over substance.
The stations to which inquiries were directed have responded. Predictably, virtually all of them have denied any discriminatory practices. Somewhat dubious about what all this has ac complished, the
majority issues outright renewals to 14 of the 30 stations. It renews
four more with the direction that they should inform the Commission
regarding implementation of their EEO programs. It takes no action
with respect to eight stations the renewals of which are being challenged by petitions to deny. And it defers the renewals of four other
stations the initial responses of which it considers inadequate.
The majority grants these renewals, not because it is convinced that
these stations have not engaged in discriminatory employment practices. but because it does not know what else to do. One wonders why, at
this late date—eight years after passage of the Civil Rights Act of
1964—the Federal Communications Commission has not yet figured
out how to prevent unlawful discrimination by our licensees. One reason, of course, is that until now it has not even tried.
But one can also fairly ask, why, in the absence of a program to
prevent discriminatory practices, the Commission simply throwsae its
hands and grants these stations their license renewals. I would have
thought that if we are not to put them in hearing we would, at the very
most, grant dant term renewals until we could arrive at some intelligent approach. Instead, we send out letters of inquiry based on hard
data which obv iously evokes our suspicion, only to accept—in toto—
the facile responses of the stations.
Perhaps even more serious is the majority’s rather cavalier determination not to designate for hearing even the single statien which
has failed to satisfy us of its lack of discriminatory conduct. The
Commissioners concede that there may well be a reason to believe that
WNPV

has disc riminated

against women.

WNPV

admitted,

in its

response to our inquiry, that—notwithstanding its low percentage of
women employees—it had advertised in Broadcasting Magazine for an
announcer with the specifies ition that all applicants must be male!
Can we imagine the justifi able indignation if it had advertised “only
white folk need apply”? What's the difference—except that one ad is
38 F.C.C.
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racist and the other is sexist ? The law covers both—even though many
of the white male establishment are still guffawing over their “women’s
liberation” jokes. In view of this unabashed concession, I would have
thought that a hearing would be in order.
The majority, however, does not like hearings. Though such hearings may be the only means of properly determining the facts in a
given case, this Commission views hearings as punitive. As a result,
we normally make our renewal decisions in a factual vacuum. This
proceeding is an excellent example of that phenomenon.
Though our Broadcast Bureau has some reservations about continuing our letter of inquiry program with respect to future renewals,
the majority—largely at the request of Commissioner Benjamin
Hooks, the FCC's first black Commissioner—has agreed at least to
make EEO inquiries of several stations in W. ashington, D.C., Maryland, Virginia, and West Virginia. I concur in that part of the majority’s decision because IT still believe that the very fact of these
letters may achieve some, very minimal, needed results. For example,
WNPV—whose apparent indifference to sex discrimination is matched
by an indifference to minority groups employment as well—claims to
have initiated an affirmative action program for recruiting minority
applicants ¢ as the result of our letter ofiinquiry.
My disagreement lies in the majority’s refusal to put teeth into its

equal employment opportunity policies. Hopefully, Commissioner
Hooks will be able to rectify this situation as the FCC considers a
more adequate EEO program for, as always, “the future.” Meanwhile,
our current policy is, in general, a joke.
STATEMENT

OF CommissIoNEeR

Bensamin

Parr; Dissenrrxe

L. Hooxs, Concurring

In Parr

IN

In Re: Renewal of Broadcast Licenses in Pennsylvania and Delaware
By deferring further the renewal of several broadcast station licenses
pending a deeper review of their Equal Employment Opportunity
programs,

the Commission

is reasserting

its commitment

to better

minority hiring pr actices. Careful scrutiny of licensee practices in
this area elevates the consciousness level on the subject and I believe
that the deferral letter approach has been salutory in that respect. It
has also identified pockets where more attention is needed."
My only qualm is that, in addition to those four licensees whose
renewals remain in abeyance, I would have included a number of other
stations whose surface responses did not seem to me to reflect more
than token compliance over the past three years.
Vhile license renewal deferrals may not be the ideal way in which
to approach or implement the Commission’s EEO rules and policies,
I must consider meritorious any measure taken by the Commission
evincing sincerity in the matter of nondiscrimination until we adopt
& systematic method to deal with this issue on a day-to-day basis so
as to avert a renewal crunch.
1 The situation in York, Pennsylvania, is an excellent example of a glaringly troublesome
state of affairs brought to light by this deferral exercise. The responses submitted by six

York brondcast stations with a combined
indicate 0 Black broadcast employees.
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Artianta,

Ga., For “OnkE-Tioe” WAIVER OF THE P

|
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Tore Access Rute (Section & 658 (k)),
Tranksetvine Day, NoveMBER 23.
MenmoranptuM

Opinion

(Adopted November 15, 1972;

AND

ORDER

Released November 21, 1972)

By tHe Commisston: ComrMissIoONER JOHNSON DISSENTING; CoMMISsSIONER H{. Rex Ler CONCURRING IN RESULT.
. The Commission here considers a letter request (dated November 6, received November8, 1972) for waiver of the “prime time
access rule” with respect to the presentation of ABC network news
on Thanksgiving Day, November 23, 1972, which was filed by Pacific
and Southern Broadcasting Co., Inc., on behalf of its Station WQXITV, Atlanta, Georgia, ABC-afliliated. This station seeks permission
to present, during prime time, a half-hour of ABC network news at
7 pm. E.T., in addition to three hours of ABC football starting at
8 em.
It appea —
the letter that ABC will present an NCAA footbali double- inshe . the first game likely to run until about7 E.T., and
the second from 8 is about 11 E.T. If WQXI presents the earlier
football game, it cannot run the network news till about 7 p.m., and,
if it presents the news then plus the later football game, this would
be a half-hour more than the 3 hours of network prime time per
evening permitted under the rule. Therefore, waiver is sought.
3. It does not appear completely clear that ABC will in fact present
network news that evening. However, if it does, it appears that waiver
is warranted to permit the broadcast of such material, involving coverage of national news developments, in addition to the sporting events.
Therefore waiver is granted herein.
4, However, it should be emphasized that waiver is granted only
in view of the rather unique “one-time” circumstances here, where a
mid-week holiday with important sports events is involved. Grant
here should not be taken to indicate that waiver will be granted in
other circumstances which might involve a greater number of ocsasions, such as weekend sports events.

5. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That Station WQXI-TV,
Atlanta, Georgia MAY PRESENT, during prime time, Thursday,
November 23, 1972, up to 314 hours of network progran naming during
prime time, provided that a half-hour of it is network news.
FrperaL CoMMUNICATIONS ComMISSION,
Ben F. Warts, Secretary.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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In the Matter of
Request ror “One-Time” Waiver oF THE
Prime Time Access Rute (Secrion 73.658
(k)) Fixp on Benatr or Station KMGHTV, Denver, Coto., ror NovemBer 25. 1972
Memoranpum

OPprInion

AND

ORDER

(Adopted November 15, 1972; Released November 21, 1972)
By THE Commission:
SENTING.

CoMMISSIONERS JOHNSON AND H. Rex Lex pis-

1. The Commission here considers a letter request for “one-time”

waiver of the prime time access rule (Section 73.658(k) of the Commission’s Rules) filed on November 14, 1972, by McGraw-Hill Broadcasting Company, Inc., on behalf of its Station KMGH-TV, Denver,
Colorado, CBS-affiliated. The request concerns Saturday, November 25, 1972

2. On that evening, the CBS network will present two hours of its
regular network programs, from 8 to 10 p.m. E.T. or 6 to 8 p.m. M.T.,
followed by the 90-minute “Miss Teenage America” program. The
latter will run from 10 to 11:30 p.m. E.T., or 8 to 9:30 p.m. M.T., since
it is presented live and simultaneously throughout the United States.
In the Eastern and Central portions of the United States, the 314
hours of network programming thus involved does not present any
problem, since the excess over three hours occurs after the end of prime
time (11 p.m. E.T., 10 pm. C.T.). However, in the Mountain zone,
where the prime hours are 6 to 10 M.T. @ problem i is presented, since
all of this 314 hours occurs during prime time, exceeding the three
hours of permissible network programs during prime time each evening permitted by the rule. Therefore, waiver is requested to present
314 “hours of network programs in Denver on this one evening.
3. We have previously considered, and granted, requests involving
similar considerations: an evening network program schedule inv olving simultaneous programming ‘throughout the United States and
complyi ing with the rule in the Eastern ‘and Central zones, where over
80% of the TV homes in the top 50 markets are located, but exceeding
the permissible limit in the Mountain zone. Waiver has been gr anted
in recognition of the special problems created for “top 50 market” stations in the Western portion of the United States, where they must fit
simultaneous network evening programming into their schedules. See,
38 F.C.C. 2d
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for example, National Broadcasting Company, Inc., 33 FCC 2d 748,
involving the “Academy Awards” and “Miss America” telecasts.
4. The present situation falls within the principle of these decisions,
and accordingly waiver in the present case appears appropriate.
5. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That Station KMGH-TV, Denver, Colorado, MAY PRESENT, up to 314 hours of CBS programming on the evening of November 25, 1972.

FreperaL Communications ComMMISssION,
Bren F. Warte, Secretary.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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In the Matter of
AMENDMENT OF Part 81 or THE Rutes ConCERNING EXxreMpTion From THE 156.8 MHz
Watcu ReQuimreMENTS By LowireD Coast
Sratrions at Temporary LOCATIONS

OrDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)
By

Tur

Commission:

1. Section 81.191(d) of the rules now provides that all limited coast
stations, other than marine utility stations, are required to maintain
a watch on 156.8 MHz during their hours of service. This watch requirement became effective March 1, 1969.

The Commission has now had three years to evaluate the contri-

bution of all types of limited coast stations to the VHF safety system.
Limited coast stations at temporary locations are generally installed
in vehicles or are hand carried. These stations usually ope rate in port
areas where there is adequate coverage by other stations or in remote
areas where there is little or no boating activity. These stations are of
negligible value to the safety system, and to require them to maintain
this watch is unreasonable.
In view of the foregoing, it is our policy that limited coast stations operating at temporary locations be relieved of the requirement
to maintain a watch on 156.8 MHz and we have granted exemptions
where licensees have individually requested exemptions. There is now
a need to incorporate this policy in our rules, as set forth in the attached Appendix.
4. Since this rule change is a general statement of an existing policy
and involves a question of no public impact, we find that a notice of
proposed rule making is unnecessary. Authority for promulgation
of this amendment is contained in Sections 4(i) and 303(r) of the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended.
. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, effective December 8, 1972 that

Part 81 of the Rules and Regulations IS AMENDED
the attached Appendix.
FrperaL
38 F.C.C. 2d
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as set forth in

CoMMISSION,

Ben F. Waprte, Secretary.
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Radiotelephone Watch Requirements
APPENDIX
Part 81, Stations on Land in the Maritime Services and
Stations is amended as follows
1. Section 81.191(d) (1) is amended to read as follows:
§ 81.191 radiotelephone watches by coast stations.
*
(d)

*
*

*

*

%

*

Alaska-Public

Fixed

*

*

(1) Each limited coast station at fixed location licensed to transmit by
telephony in the band 156-162 MHz, shall during its hours of service,
maintain an efficient watch for reception of F3 emission on 156.800 MHz,
whenever such station is not being used for transmission.
aK

*

*

*

*

*
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In the Matter of
AMENDMENT OF Parts 81 AND 83 OF THE RULES
CONCERNING
Wartcnes By
THE Use or
Computsory

EXxemprions From LisTeENING
Limirep Coast STATIONS AND
VHF
Rapto INSTALLATIONS ON
EQuirrep VESSELS

ORDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972;

Released November

29, 1972)

By Tue ComMMIssiIon:

1. Section 83.514 of the rules provides that when a vessel is navigated not more than 20 nautical miles from a public coast or United
States Coast Guard station it may use a very high frequency (VHF)
radiotelephone instead of a medium frequency (MF) radiotelephone
for compliance with Title III, Part III of the Communications Act.
The 20 nautical mile provision in the rules was adopted because it
represents the minimum coverage area usually provided by VHF
coast stations. This item will add a provision to the rule that if a vessel
exceeds this 20 nautical mile limit but remains within VHF communication range it may request a specific exemption to use VHF instead of

MF.

2. In Section 81.191 (d) (2) of the rules we provide that the coverage
of a government VHF station will be assumed to be 15 nautical miles,

or as stated by competent authorities. The Commission when con-

sidering a request for exemption based on coverage by a government
station, as a matter of practice, always considers the coverage area as
stated by the cognizant authority i.e., Coast Guard or Army Engineer.
To make the rule consistent with our practice, the 15 mile provision in
Section 81.191(d) (2) should be deleted.
3. We find that notice of proposed rule making is unnecessary because the amendments are either editorial or so minor and noncontroversial that no substantial comment could be expected. Authority for
promulgation of this amendment is contained in Section 4(i), and
303(r) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended.
4. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, effective December 8, 1972 that
Parts 81 and 83 of the Rules and Regulations ARE AMENDED, as
set forth in the Appendix attached hereto.
FEDERAL
38 F.C.C.
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Ben F. Waris, Secretary.
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APPENDIX
Parts 81 and 83 Sections in the Maritime Mobile Services,
follows:
1. Section 81.191(d) (2) is amended to read as follows:
§ 51.191
Radiotelephone watch by coast stations.
*

*

(d)

*

*

*

*

are

amended

as

*

*

(2) The Commission may exempt any limited coast station from compliance with sub-paragraph
(1) of this paragraph when it has been demonstrated that the watch on 156.800 MHz is complete over the service area of
the coast station by public coast stations or United States government stations having continuous hours of service. An application for exemption must
include a chart showing the receiving service area of the limited coast station by the method specified in Subpart R of this Part of the rules. The applicant shall indicate on the same chart the location by coordinates, to the
nearest minute, and the receiving service area of the public coast station or
government station maintaining the continuous watch on 156.800 MHz. The

receiving service area of these stations shall be calculated using the criteria
specified in Subpart R of this Part of the rules, or in the absence of such engineering study, the receiving service area of public coast stations will be
assumed to have a radius of 20 nautical miles, and that of government stations as stated by competent authorities of the agency concerned; e.g. Dis-

trict Commander for the U.S. Coast Guard, District Engineer for the U.S.
Army. If a Coast Guard station is used as a basis for exemption, the filing
must inelude information from the District Commander of the geographical
aurea concerned showing: (i) the coordinates of the station; (ii) the receiving area of service of the station; (iii) whether the station maintains a continuous listening watch on 156.8 MHz; and (iv) the District Commander’s
position, if any, on whether the exemption should be granted. The receiving
area of service of the Coast Guard station will be plotted by the applicant on
the chart referred to in this paragraph.
*

*

*

*

*

2. Section 83.514(a) is redesignated (a) (1) and new
§ 83.514 Radiotelephone installation.
*

(2)

a

An

BS

exemption

from

*

the band

*

*

subparagraph
He

1605 to 2850

(2) added.

*

kHz

BS

installation

require-

ments may be granted for a vessel that is navigated within the communication range of a VHF public coast or Coast Guard station, but beyond the 20
nautical mile limitation specified in subparagraph (1) above, provided the

vessel is equipped with a transmitter and received capable of effective transmission and reception of F383 emission within the band 156 to 162 MHz. An
application for exemption must include a chart showing the route of the voyage or the area

of operation

of the vessel, and

the receiving

service area

of

the VHF public coast or Coast Guard station. The coverage area of the Coast
Guard station shall be based on written information from the District Commander, U.S. Coast Guard, a copy of which must be furnished with the application. The coverage area of a public coast station shall be computed by

the method specified in Subpart R of Part 81 of the Rules.
*

*

%

cd

+

ok
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ORDER

(Adopted November 15, 1972; Released November 17, 1972
By tne Commission: Commissioner H. Rex LEE CONCURRING IN THE
RESULT; COMMISSIONER REID ABSENT.
A Notice of Proposed Rule Making in the above captioned matter
was adopted on July 12, 1972, and was published in the Federal Register on July 20, 1972 (87FR14409). The dates for filing comments and
wpty comments have passed.
. In that Notice, we proposed to amend Part 83 by deleting the
requirement for ship stations to maintain a “watch” on the distress,

safety and calling frequency 156.800 MHz when the station is being
used for transmission on that frequency, or for communications on
another channel in the 156-162 MHz band.

3. Comments were filed by: North Pacific Marine Radio Council;
Southern California Marine Radio Council; the Dillinham Cor poration; and the Central Committee on Communication Facilities of the

American Petroleum Institute (Central Committee).
4, All of the above parties fully supported the proposal as set forth

in ‘% Appendix to our Notice and urged its adoption.
The Central Committee, in addition to supporting our —
tips suggested that the Commission should at a later date consider
similar amendment of Section 81.191(d) which requires that the a
erator of a coast station stand an effective “watch” on the frequency
156.800 MHz even while simultaneously exchanging communicatiens
on another frequency in the VHF band. We believe the operational
circumstances of coast stations are substantially different from ship
stations which operate on the high seas, in a more noisy environment,
often in severely adverse weather and usually with restricted numbers
of operators. Coast stations ordinarily are permanently located in
weatherized shore installations chosen by the licensee and in times of
emergency or peak traffic can more easily have st: ition operating personnel augmented. We also believe that it is especially desirable for a
coast station to maintain a watch on the distress frequency at least
while receiving on a working frequency because the coast station is
38 F.C.C.
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more likely to engage in extensive and protracted exchanges of communications on a working frequency during which time without our
present requirements there would be no w: atch at all on the distress
frequency. For these reasons we are not considering comparable rule
changes for limited coast stations.
6. As an ancilliary matter, the term continuous and efficient watch
as used in Section 83.207 needs clarification. Accordingly, an explanatory note has been added to this section to the effect that the requirement for a continuous and eflicient watch is not violated when the re-

ceiver being used for the watch is temporarily rendered inoperative

clue to transmissions by the ship station.
. In view of the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED, that pursuant to
‘is authority contained in Section 4(1), and303(f) and (r) of the
Communic ations Act of 1934, as amended, Part 83 of the Commission’s rules IS AMENDED, effective December 28, 1972, as set forth
in the attached Appendix.

8. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the preceding in Docket
19543 IS TERMINATED.
FeperaL CoMMUNICATIONS CoMMISSION,

Ben F. Warts, Secretary.

APPENDIX
Part 83 of Chapter

1 of Title 47 of the Code of Federal Regulations is amended

as follows:

§ 83.207 [Amended]
1. Section 88.207 is amended by adding a note to read as follows:
Nore: Automatic muting of the watch receiver during the brief periods
when the VHF equipment is transmitting authorized traffic is not considered
as interrupting the continuity or lowering the efficiency of the required
watch.

; Bee tion 83.224 is amended, and the footnote deleted to read as follows:
$3.224 Watch on 156.800 MHz.
Each ship station, or,
operated from a vessel,

if more than one maritime mobile station is being
then at least one station licensed to transmit by
or more frequencies within the band 156-162 MHz shall,

telephony on one
during its hours of service

for telephony

in this band, maintain

an efficient

watch for the reception of F3 emissions on the frequency 156.800 MHz
whenever such station is not being used for transmission on that frequency,
or for cominunieation on other frequencies in this band : Provided, however,
That ship stations operating under the provisions of § 83.106(b) (5) or the
note to § 83.106 of the rules are exempt from the wi ateh requirements on
156.800 MHz.
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Sarem Broapcastine Co., Inc.,
Satem, N.H.
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(Adopted November 20, 1972; Released November 22, 1972)

By Tre Review Boarp: Boarp Memper Kess_er ABSENT.
1. This proceeding, involving the mutually exclusive applications
of Salem Broadcasting Co., Inc. (Salem), New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation (New Hampshire) and Spacetown Broadcasting
Corporation (Spacetown), for new standard broadcast stations was
designated

for ae

by Commission

Memorandum

Opinion

and

Order, FCC 72-136, 33 FCC 2d 672, released February 15, 1972.
Among the six issues specified were aSuburban issue against Spacetown, a limited

financial

issue against Salem, a 307(b)

issue, and a

contingent comparative issue. Presently before the Review Board are:
(a) a motion to enlarge issues, filed March 13, 1972, by Spacetown;
(b) a petition to enlarge issues, filed March 13, 1972, by New Hampshire; and (c) a petition to enlarge issues, filed May 10, 1972, by New
Hampshire. Spacetown’s petition seeks the addition of nineteen ( 19)
issues against Salem and New Hampshire, including issues concerning
Section73.37 prohibited overlap, 307(b) Suburban Community, site
availability, Section 1.65, Suburban and financial qualifications. In
addition, Spacetown requests a misrepresentation issue against Salem,
and a real party-in-interest issue against New Hampshire. New Hampshire’s petitions request site av ailability and financial issues against
Salem. For the sake of clarity, the Board will discuss the issues in
sequence.
SECTION 73.37 ISSUES—PROHIBITED OVERLAP

2. Spacetown first requests four issues to determine whether the
applications of Salem and New Hampshire violate Section 73.37 of
the Commission’s Rules, and, if so, whether the applications should

be dismissed. Spacetown alleges that the proposed 0.5 mv/m contours
of both applicants’ proposed stations will overlap the 0.025 mv/m
1See

the

attached

88 F.C.C. 2d

Appendix

for

a complete

list

of the

numerous

related

pleadings.
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contour of standard broadcast Station WHIM, Providence, Rhode
Island, in violation of Section 73.37. Spacetown further alleges that
neither application falls within the exceptions to the prohibited overlap rule in Section 73.37(b) ? because, as reflected by the 1970 U.S.

Census figures, Salem, New Hampshire, is located partly within the
Lawrence-Haverhill, Massachusetts, Urbanized Area and has a popwation of only 20,142; and, according to Spacetown, there has been
no showing by either applicant that their proposed facilities would
provide first primary service to at least 25% of the interference-free
areas within their proposed 0.5 mv/m contours. Spacetown argues
that the Commission requires “the use of the most recent and reasonable population figures available” (in this case the 1970 Census figures) to determine the Section 73.37 issue. In support, petitioner cites
Blue Ridge Broadcasting Co., Lune... 37 FR 3564,23 RR 2d 887 (1972) ;
and Albert

L. Crain, 28 FCC

2d381, 384, 21 RR

2d 607, 611 ‘a971)°

In opposition, Salem and New Hampshire argue that the requirements of Section 73.37 are acceptability criteria only.’ Therefore, at
the time the appeeees were filed (November 11, 1968 for Salem,
and February 27, 1969 for New Hampshire), they complied with one
of the exceptions

of Section

73. 37(b), since the latest

U.S. Census

figures (those for 1960) showed Salem, New Hampshire, as being
wholly outside any urbanized area and the Salem proposals would be
the first standard broadeast facility for the community. Further, both
Salem and New Hampshire maintain that Blue Ridge Broadcasting,
Supra, does not apply here because the original application in that
case was based on an erroneous determination that no prohibited overlap existed. Finally, both applic ants request that if the Board fails
to find that they fall withim the exceptions of Section 73.57(b), a
waiver should be granted since it is alleged that the town of Salem
will attain a population of 25,000 in the near future if its present
growth rate continues and would then fall within another exception
of Section 73.37(b) since, aecording to New Hampshire, the proposal
if granted will be the first standard broadcast facility for Salem. The
Broadcast Bureau, in its comments, considers the Commission’s action
in the Blue Ridge case as controlling; therefore, the Bureau concludes
that in light of the 1970 Census, neither of the two applicants falls
within any of the exceptions to Section 73.37(b). In reply, Spacetown
argues that both applicants admit that prohibited |overlap exists and
that they no longer fall within the Section 73.37(b) exceptions to
the prohibited eins rule.!
2'The pertinent
of

(b)
an

part of Section 73.57 (b) states :
An application for a new daytime station or a change in the daytime facilities
existing station may be granted notwithstanding overlap of the proposed 0.5

mv/m contour and the 0.025 mv/m contour of another co-channel station, where the
applicant station is or would be the first standard broadeast facility in a community
of any size wholly outside of an urbanized area (as defined by the latest U.S. Census),
or the first standard broadeast facility in a community of 25,000 or more population
wholly or partly within an urbanized area, or when the facilities proposed would
provide a first primary service to at least 25 percent of the interference-free area
within the proposed 0.5 mv/m contour. . .
3The reasoning behind this argument, according to the opposition, is that Section 73.57
refers to the factors that are necessary
for the Commission
to accept an application,
and,

once

these

requirements

are

met,

subsequent

changes

are

irrelevant.

In view of this. Spacetown states that it filed a petition to dismiss both applications
on May 1, 1972. Since the petition was erroneously tiled with the Commission and later
refiled with the Administrative Law Judge, the actual date of the petition is May 12,
1972. The Administrative Law Judge has not acted on the petition as of the date of

adoption of this document.
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4. The Review Board is of the view that the Commission’s opinions

in Blue Ridge, supra, and Albert L. Crain, supra, provide ample
precedent for using the 1970 U.S. Census data to establish that the
town of Salem is within the Lawrence-Haverhill Urbanized Area and
that the Salem applicants are therefore not entitled to the exception cl:aimed by them in their original applications. The Commission
will not ignore the present realities of an existing situation in reaching a decision. A/bert L. Crain, supra, In this regard, Section 73.37 (b)
itself refers to the “latest” U.S. Census figures. See note 2, supra.
Furthermore, it is equally clear from the Blue Ridge proceeding
that the Commission intended this reasoning to apply to Section
73.37 issues. In Blue Ridge, the Commission designated the application of Hymen Lake for hearing on a Section73.37 prohibited overlap
issue, after the application had been accepted for filing. In that case,
it appeared that a 1970 preliminary U.S. Census report included the
applicant’s co-community of license as part of an urbanized area for
the first time, thereby eliminating his eligibility for a 73.37(b) exception. Although the applicant argued that the Commniasian “should
utilize the latest census data available at the time the application was
filed, and not the preliminary 1970 map of the * * * urbanized area”?
the Commission designated the issue. In so doing, the Commission
stated:
In light of the eonflicting claims over the population, location and character
the communities * * *, and the Commission’s recent ruling [citing
Albert

of
IL.

Crain| upholding the use of the most recent and reasonable population figures
available, the matter will be decided in hearing. According!y a Section 73.37 (b)
issue will be specified, and if evidence received in hearing establishes that the
proposal would violate Section 73.37(b) of the rules, the application will be

dismissed.®

Therefore, in this case and for purposes of this issue, Salem is a part
of the Lawrence-Haverhill Urbanized Area according to the 1970 U.S.
Census figures. However, the language in Blue Ridge and Albert L.
Crain, also supports consideration at the hearing of the “most. recent”

population figures in determining compliance with the other exceptions in Section 73.37(b). For example. reliable population figures
more recent than the 1970 Census figures may exist which support the
applicants’ claims that Salem now has a population of 25,000, However, this is a question of fact to be determined by the Administrative

Law Judge at the hearing. In light of the foregoing, the Board will
add appropriate issues against both Salem and New Hampshire.’ Con623 RR 2d at 891.
623 RR 2d at 891. (Footnotes omitted.)
7It is noted that the three applicants have filed no less than six petitions and related
pleadings too numerous to mention (see the Appendix for a list of all the pleadings), in a
running debate over the population of Salem, New Hampshire,
In our opinion, these

pleadings add nothing to the original dispute among the parties as to whether Salem
qualifies for an exception to the prohibited overlap rule under Section 73.237(b) because
it has attained a population of 25,000; nor do they contain information
which was
unavailable at the time of the filing of the original petition and
the Board will deny those petitions listed as numbers 9, 12, 14,

Therefore,
18 in the
entitled
“Supplement and Errata’. No petition requesting the Board to accept the pleading was
filed ; the material contained in the pleading goes far beyond mere correction of applicant's

att:iched

Appendix.

In addition,

New

Hampshire

filed on

May

opposition.
16, 17 and

1, 1972,

a pleading

April 24. 1972 opposition: and it is not alleged that such material was not available at
the time the opposition was filed. For these reasons, the Board will dismiss this unauthorized pleading. See Public Notice on Filing of Supplemental Pleadings Before the Review

Board,

38

No. 90836,

F.C.C.

2d

released

October

11, 1972.
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sistent with Commission policy, waiver of Rule 73.37(b) is not appropriate. Blue Ridge, supra, 23 RR 2d at 891, n.4.
307(B)

SUBURBAN

COMMUNITY

ISSUES

5. Spacetown also requests 307(b) Suburban Community issues
against Salem and New Hampshire. Spacetown alleges that, although
the Commission’s observations in the designation Order with regard
to the applicants’ 5 mv/m coverage of Lawrence, Massachusetts, are
technically accurate,’ the Commission failed to consider the applicants’
5 mv/m penetration of the “Lawrence-Haverhill urbanized area’
which has a total population of 113,035. Spacetown’s attached engi-

neering statement indicates that Salem’s 5 mv/m contour will cover
an area encompassing 19,934 persons in the Lawrence-Haverhill area,
while New Hampshire's 5 mv/m contour will cover an area with 27,480
persons in the same area. Considering the city of Haverhill separ orely,
Spacetown alleges that since H: werhill is twice the size of Salem;
since there is “substantial” penetration of the 5 mv/m contours of both
Salem applicants into Haverhill; ® and since the applicants could have
obtained “substi intial compliance” with the coverage requirements of
Section73.188 at less than the present 5 kw proposed power, a 307(b)
Suburban Community issue should be added. Spacetown also places a
great deal of emphasis on the fact that the proposals of both Salem
applic ants specify MEOV’s (maximum expected operating values) on
their respective antenna patterns. Petitioner argues that the MEOV’s
must be used to determine the realistic 5 mv/m contour penetration of
Lawrence and Haverhill, which, alleges Spacetown, would result in a
greater 5 mv/m penetration than the theoretical antenna patterns
would indicate.
6. In opposition, Salem, New Hampshire and the Broadeast Bureau
(all of whose arguments will be consolidated here for clarity) submit

that the Commission, in the designation Order, thoroughly and accurately reviewed the applicability of the 307(b) Suburban Community
presumption and considered it rebutted as to the city of Lawrence,
Massachusetts. It is further argued that any attempt to claim the status
of a community for an urbanized area is without precedent, and, more
important, Spacetown has not attempted to show any common interests
that would indicate that the cities of Lawrence and Haverhill and the

town of Methuen are a single community for 307(b) purposes. Further,
considering Haverhill alone, argue respondents, it does not have the
50,000 population which automatically raises the 307(b) Suburban
Community presumption and Spacetown has not shown any factors
(e.g., excessive power, great size difference in communities, or pro-

gramming) which would warrant giving rise to the presumption in
spite of the population. In reply, Spacetown argues that it is request8 In its designation Order. the Commission considered specification of a 307(b) Suburban
Community
issue against the two Salem applicants because of the penetration of their
5 mv/m contours into Lawrence.
Massachusetts, but held that the data submitted by
the applicants rebutted the presumption.
® This allegedly “substantial” penetration appears to be a maximum of 11%
and 21%
by Salem and New Hampshire, respectively. The figures are contained in pages 2-5 of

Spacetown’s Engineering Exhibit II. However, as to the alleged
clear what the basis of the caleulations are since Spacetown
figures were based on “our own population study”

21% penetration, it is net
merely indicates that the
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issue because of a com-

bination of the following factors: (a) 5 mv/m_ penetration of
Lawrence and Haverhill; (b) allegedly excessive power proposed by
both applicants; (c) fifty-five percent of Salem’s proposed interference-free population will be located in Massachusetts; and (d) the
MEOV’s proposed by both applicants indicate that major distortion
(in the theoretical antenna pattern) can be expected toward Lawrence,

Haverhill and Methuen.
The Review Board will not add the requested Suburban Community issues against either Salem or New Hampshire. In the designation Order, the Commission considered the 5 my/m coverage of
Lawrence, Massachusetts, and the shape and orientation of the radiation patterns proposed by the applicants in relation to the 307(b)
Suburban Community issue. Spacetown’s argument that the Salem applicants are proposing excessive power (¢.¢., 5 kw) is unconvincing
since the Commission, in its designation Order, also considered the pos-

sibility of a 1 kw operation for the Salem proposals and found that 1
kw “would not provide adequate service to Salem”, the city of license.
Since the Commission

has, in a “reasoned

analysis” , considered and

rejected these same arguments, it would not be appropriate for the
Board to consider the merits of Spacetown’s allegations. Af/antic
Broadcasting

Co. 5 FCC

2d 717, 8 RR 2d 991

(1966) ; Jefferson

Ntand-

ard Broadcasting Co., 25 FCC 2d 559, 20 RR 2d 62 (1970). As to Spacetown’s suggested reliance on MEOV’s for determining penetration
for a 507(b) issue, the Board rejects this argument. Maximum expected operating values

(MEOV’s)

of radiation are used in caleulat-

ing the extent of interference contours; while the theoretical values of
radiation are used in calculating coverage contours. The 5 mv/m
contour, as used in determining whether a Surburban Community
presumption is raised, is a coverage contour and therefore it is based
on the theoretical values of radiation. As the Board stated in deleting
a Suburban Community issue in Lawrence County Broadcasting
Corporation: *°
... Since it is a normal practice in determining the area coverage of a station to
use computed values, the use of computed values, not MEOYV’'s, is appropriate
to determine whether or not the proposed station comes within the Commission’s
section 307(b) Suburban Community policy.

In addition, the applicants’ proposed penetration of Haverhill does
not, in the Board’s opinion, give rise to a 307(b) Suburban Community
presumption '! because Haverhill does not have the required 50,000
population; * the directional patterns proposed by bothapplicants are
designed so that the major radiation is not directed toward the Haverhill area, but the major lobes are directed over Salem; the difference in
the populations of Salem and Haverhill is not that significant; the
07

ECC 2d 906, 907, 9 RR 2d 1070, 1072 (1967)
The Board agrees with the Bureau and Spacetown

tration

that

of two

Company,

2d

161

F.2d

cities

the applicant
Inc.,

(1968),

551, 16 RR

2 Spacetown’s
in population.

38 F.C.C.

2d

and

has
12 FCC

affirmed
2d 2145

the applicant

rebutted
2d

sub

471,

rebuts

the

that,

presumption

if there
as

the presumption

as to the other.

12

rehearing

nom.

RR

2d

Edwin

1133,

R. Fisher

v. FCC,

denied

135

is a 5 mv/m

to one *, it does

Tidewater
14

U.S.

FCC

App.

not

penemean

Bioudcasting

2d

646,

D.C.

14

RR

134, 417

(1969).

Engineering

Exhibit II, p. 2, indicates that Haverhill

is actually decreasing
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maximum 5 mv/m penetration of Haverhill is only about 20%; and
no exceptional factors have been introduced by Spacetown to show that
a 307(b) Suburban Community issue is warranted. See Click Broadcasting Co., 19 FCC 2d 497, 17 RR 2d 164 (1969); Babcom, Ine., 12

FCC 2d 306, 12 RR 2d 998 (1968); V.W.B. Incorporated, 8 FCC 2d
744, 10 RR 2d 563, reconsideration denied 10 FCC 2d 534, 11 RR 2d
653 (1967).
SITE

AVAILABILITY

ISSUES

AGAINST

SALEM

8. Spacetown next requests issues of site availability, Section 1.65,
misrepresentation and comparative character qualifications against
Salem. All of the requested issues arise out of the same basic fact situation.'® In addition, New Hampshire, in its petition to enlarge issues,
filed May 10, 1972, also requests a site availability issue against
Salem." Subsequently, on July 11, 1972, Salem filed an amendment
to its application specifying a new site.ch

Based on the affidavit of a local real estate agent, which is attached
to the petition, Spacetown alleges that Salem’s originally proposed site
is part of a larger plot of land which the present owner does not intend
to subdivide or sell other than as a whole. Spacetown further alleges
that Salem has no option on any part of the site. According to Spacetown, Salem represented in its application that it “currently holds an
option to purchase the property”. Spacetown contends that since Salem
has not had such option for some time, Section 1.65 and misrepresentation issues are warranted.
10. In opposition, Salem and the Broadcast Bureau argue that
Spacetown’s allegations are not based on affidavits of individuals
having personal knowledge as required by Section 1.229(¢c) of the
Commission’s Rules. The affidavit submitted is from a real estate agent
and, according to respondents, constitutes hearsay. The Broadcast
Bureau also alleges that no explan: ation is given for Spacetown’s
failure to obtain affidavits from the owners of the property in question,
citing Augusta Telecasters, Inc., 10 FCC 2d 594, 11 RR 2d 625 (1967).

In this regard, Salem submits that at the time it filed its application,
it did have a written option on the site; '® however, on April 1, 1972,
the owner of the land, without Salem’s knowledge, entered into an
agreement to sell the entire tract to a Boston-based “concern”. According to Salem, it learned of the agreement only about two weeks
before the date it filed its opposition pleading (¢.e., April 25, 1972);
1% Spacetown

had

originally

based

both

its requested

site availability

issues.

in part,

on

zoning considerations; however, in its erratum to motion to enlarge issues, filed Mareh 24,
1972, Spacetown states that it misunderstood the results of a recent rezoning vote upon
which it based its argument and therefore wishes to eliminate references to zoning in its
original petition.
7
1t New Hampshire’s request is based specifically on Salem's April 25, 1972 amendment

which

states

agreed

that

to sell the

the owner
tract

of the land

to a Boston,

which

was

Massachusetts,

specified

as Salem's

“concern” ; however,

proposed

site, has

it is being

treated

here because it is based on the same basic fact situation as Spacetown’s request.
© The Administrative Law Judge has not yet acted on the proposed amendment.
1% Upon

filed

the expiration

a petition

enlarge

issues on

mentioned,

but

for

leave

May

not

22,

of this

a second

to file supplement,
1972,

included

opposition to the petition
the petition.

option,

and

in

which

contains

and

its opposition

it involves

a minor

written

option

supplement

an executed

concerning
technical

obtained.

to opposition

copy

the

was

to

of an affidavit

option.

correction,

Since

the Board

Salem

motion

also

there

is

no

wi!l grant

C. 2d
109—018—72—-6

to

previously
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it then entered into negotiations with the prospective purchaser for an
option and also obtained an oral option on an alternate site 3,000 feet
from the proposed site in the event the present site shenaid become
unavailable.’* In reply, Spacetown stresses that Salem’s account of
the site availability question is not supported by an affidavit of any
sort.'*

The Review Board will add the requested issue because Salem’s
opposition, filed June 11, 1972, indicates that the applicant no longer
has reasonable assurance of the availability of the site proposed in its
application, and, in light of this, has filed an amendment with the
Administrative Law Judge specifying an alternate site.’” However, at
least through April 1, 1972, and apparently for sometime beyond this
date (when Salem alleges it actually became aware of the April 1st
agreement),Salem had reasonable assurance of the availability of its
site. According to Salem, it originally had a written option (which was
subsequently renewed) on the proposed site and later received oral
assurances from the owner and a prospective buyer (who did not purchase the land as expected) that the site would be available to Salem.

Spacetown does not contradict this allegation. As of April 25, 1972,

when Salem filed its Section 1.65 statement, Salem states that it was
still attempting to cure the problems with its proposed site, but that it
also had secured an oral option on an alternate site 3,000 feet away. It
is well established that an applicant need not have absolute assurance
of the availability of a proposed site; it is only necessary for the applicant “to have reasonable assurance of site availability and to make a
cood faith representation that the site selected will be available to him
for his desired purposes.” Wi//liam R. Gaston, 35 FCC 2d 615, 620, ut
RR 2d 741, 748, review denied FCC 72-828, released September 22,
1972. See also Kdirard G. Atsinger, IIT, supra; Marvin C. Hanz, 21
FCC 2d 420,18 RR 2d 310 (1970). In addition, it is well settled that an

oral agreement

is sufficient to satisfy the availability requirement.

William R. Gaston, supra. See Lawrence County Broadcasting C Orp.s
8 FCC 2d_ 597, 10 RR 2d 471 (1967). Under this test, it appears that

Salem had “reasonable assurance” of the availability of its site until
sometime after April 1, 1972. However, in a of Salem’s pending
amendment spec ifviing a new site it now appears that Salem no longer

has reasonable assurance of the availability of its site. Consequently,
a site availability issue is warranted.
17 A description

of Salem’s efforts conce dg

statement filed with Salem’s amendment of
Judge on October 10, 1972 (FCC 72M-—1262).

et sites is contained

April 25,

*On June 13, 1972, Spacetown filed a petition
iin: in which it submits an affidavit of the owner

has no option

on the land.

As Salem

and

1972,

and

to supplement
of the proposed

the Broadcast

Bureau

in the Section

accepted

by

the

1.65

Presiding

its motion to enlarge
site stating that Salem

point out in their opposi-

tions, Spacetown’s supplement shows nothing more than, as of May 11, 1972. Salem had no
option on its original site, a proposition which is not disputed by Salem. The Board also
ngrees with the Bureau that it is diffieult to understand why Spacetown has not submitted a statement from the owner of the land in question disputing Salem's account of
the situation. In light of Salem's original opposition pleading. however, the Rurean is of

the opinion that a site availability issue is warranted unless Salem’s June 28, 1972, response
to New Hampshire's petition to enlarge issues is able to establish that the prospective
purchaser of the site is willing to permit Salem to use the tract in question. The Review
Board will deny Spacetown's petition to file the supplement since it adds nothing material
to the issues under discussion. See note 7, supra.

"The

which

Board

attempts

is aware

that

to eliminate

Salem

the

filed a petition

problems

with

its

for leave to amend

on July 11, 1972

presentty

site

proposed

by specifying

an alternate site: however, since this amendment
has not been accepted as yet by the
Presiding Judge, the ori:vinally proposed site constitutes the site of record. See Edward G.
Atsinger, TIT, 80 FCC 2d 493, 499-500, 22 RR 2d 256, 244 (1971), and cases cited therein.
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12. In our opinion, Section 1.65 and misrepresentation issues are
not warranted against Salem. Since Salem alleges that it did not know
of the April 1st agreement by the owner of the proposed site until two
weeks thereafter (and Spacetown has not disputed this), Salem was
well within the 30-day period afforded by Section 1.65 for notifying
the Commission of changes in an applic ition when it filed the April
25th statement. The requested misrepresentation issue will also be
denied. The issue is based upon the statement in Salem’s application
that: “Applicant currently holds an option to purchase the property.”
Salem apparently did have an option when this statement was made;
it had oral assurances of the availability of one or the other of the two
sites until it filed an amendment specifying a new site. Spacetown
offers no explanation for its failure to obtain an affidavit from the
owner of the land in question if it wished to contradict Salem’s statements; but, instead, chose to rely on state ments of a real estate agent,

which are clearly hearsay. as to the owner’s intentions regarding his
land. In view of these circumstances, a misrepresentation issue is
inappropriate, Cf. William LP. Gaston, supra.
SITE

AVAILABILITY

ISSUE

AGAINST

NEW

HAMPSHIRE

13. Spacetown also requests site availability and Section 1.65 issues
against New Hampshire, alleging: (a) that New Hampshire has no
option or other assurance as to the availability of its proposed site;
and (b) that New Hampshire’s site is presently owned by five separate owners, a factor which will make the likelihood of acquiring the
site extremely remote. In support of these allegations, Spacetown
offers sworn statements of its consulting engineer and a local real estate agent purporting to relate what was told to them by various
owners of the land in question, The affidavit of the engineer states that
a Mr. MeDonough, owner of the main piece of property involved, told
Spacetown’s president that New Hampshire spoke to him (MeDonough) about his property several years ago; however, ine
to
the engineer, he did not give New Hampshire an option. In opposition, New Hampshire and the Broadcast Bureau submit that Spacetown relies on hearsay (in some cases double hearsay) and that no
afticaavit of individuals with personal knowledge has been submitted.
The opposition pleadings also cite cases which stand for the proposition that reasonable assurance of the availability of the site has been
held sufficient to avoid an issue.?° In addition, New Hampshire attaches a copy of a proposed amendment filed with the Administrative
~— Judge which includes a copy of an option from Mr. McDonough.
The Board will not add the requested site availability or Section 1.65 issues against New Hampshire. The failure of Spacetown
to submit affidavits from the landowners involved is unexplained and
inexcusable in these circumstances. Second, and even third-hand, allegations will not support a petition to enlarge issues. Cosmopolitan
Entei prises, Ine., 4 FCC
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15. Spacetown next requests Suburban issues against Salem and
New Hampshire, alleging that both applicants have failed to comply
with Question 6 of the Primer. In support, Spacetown alleges that
substantial portions of the major communities of Lawrence, Haverhill and Methuen, Massachusetts, fall within the service contours of

Salem’s proposed station, but that no interviews have been conducted
by Salem or New Hampshire with community leaders or members of
the general public from these cities. Spacetown further alleges that:
nowhere does Salem's application indicate that it will not serve Haverhill (w ith programming), nor does it explain why; the application
is ambiguous as to Salem’s intended service te the city of Lawrence;

and the applicant affirmatively states that it intends to serve Methuen,
but no residents of that city were included in the applicant’s survey.
With respect to New Hampshire, Spacetown alleges that although this
applicant states that it does not intend to serve Haverhill or Methuen
(Lawrence

is not

involved

in the requested

Suburban

issue against

New Hampshire), the reasons given by New Hampshire for not proposing to serve the two communities are not supported by the “usable”
coverage which will be provided to Haverhill and Methuen or by the
integrated nature of this allegedly unified urbanized area.??

16. In opposition, Salem argues that its application states that
Lawrence is currently served by two standard broadeast stations of
its own (and, the Board assumes, this implies that Salem does not
intend to serve Lawrence), The same rationale, according to Salem,
applies to the citv of Haverhill. As to Methuen,Salem argues that the

Primer.

supra, does not necessarily require surveys of community

leaders of Methuen: however, Salem has conducted six interviews of
Methuen community leaders and is submitting the results in a pro-

posed amendment. °° The Bureau opposes the addition of an issue
against New Hampshire because the reasons given by the applicant

for not serving the communities of Methuen and Haverhill are in accordance with the Primer, supra, and New Hampshire's decision not
to serve these communities is not inherently unreasonable. Further,
argues the Bureau, the fact that an urbanized area is involved is of

little significance because, in the Primer, supra, the Commission specifically stated that it was deleting any requirement that an applicant
21 Primer

2d

650.

on

Ascertainment

of Community

Problems

by

Broadcast

Applicants,

27

FCC

21 RR 2d 1507 (1971). Question 6 of the Primer reads as follows:
Q. Ts an applicant expected to ascertain community problems outside the community

of license?

A.

Yes.

Of course,

an applicant’s
of license.
But
he undertakes to
1(A) (2) of Seetion TV-A or IV—B.
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explaining why.
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communities that

22 New
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are
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of other
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service contours a showing must
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in its application

Haverhill

has
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and

inelude:

(a)

broadeast

stations

licensed

beth

com
to

it:

and (c) residents of Haverhill and Methuen “turn to” Lawrence and Haverhill stations
for their broadeast service.
23.'The amendment, filed April 25, 1972, and accepted by the Administrative Law Judece
by Order, FCC 72M-—1262, released October 10, 1972. includes interviews with community
leaders from Methuen and is obviously aimed at curing this alleged defeet in its applica
tion. Since Question 7 of the Primer indicates that interviews with community leaders
are

sufficient

license,

the

to

ascertain

request
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for a station licensed to a city within a Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA) ascertain community problems in each of the
cities within the area. As to Salem, the Bureau is of the opinion that,
for the reasons discussed regarding New Hampshire’s situation, the
issue requested against Salem should also be denied. In its opposition,
New Hampshire “adopts the position of the Broadcast Bureau.
7. The Review Board, first, does not agree with Spacetown that
Question 6 of the Primer is necessarily applicable to the instant fact
situation. The Primer speaks in terms of “major” communities that
“fall within” the applicant’s service contours. According to Spacetown’s own engineering exhibits, only portions of Lawrence and Haverhill fall within the 5 mv/m contour of the proposals of Salem and
New Hampshire (approximately 5% of the Lawrence population and
10-20% of Haverhill). It is not clear from these exhibits how much
of the cities’ populations fall within the relevant 2 mv/m contours for
eT ing primary service to city residential areas. See Section
3.182(f) of the Rules. However, because of the directionalized coverpe pattern of the stations, the coverage is directed away from these
cities. In any event, nothing in the Primer requires a broadcast applicant to survey small portions * of large communities which fall within
its service area, even though these communities as a whole would constitute “major” communities in relation to the community of license. In

addition, the fact that Lawrence and Haverhill are in the same urbanized area as the applicants’ specified station location is not a persuasive argument for addition of the requested issue since the Commission
specifically disclaimed use of the SMSA in defining the area to be
surveyed and the applicant has shown no other factors requiring a
survey. Finally, the reasons given by New Hampshire for not serving
Haverhill and Methuen (see notee 22, supra) are not unreasonable and
are in accord with the Primer.** Therefore, the Board will deny the
requested Suburban issues.
FINANCIAL

AND

REAL

PARTY-IN-INTEREST

ISSUES AGAINST

NEW

HAMPSHIRE

18. Spacetown’s requests for financial and real party-in-interest
issues against New Hampshire are based on the applicant’s financial
arrangement with the Merrimack Valley National Bank of Lawrence,
Massac ‘husetts. Spacetown alleges that the bank's letter of August 31,
1971, is unacceptable for the purposes of establishing New Hampshire’s ability to construct and operate its proposed station for numerous reasons. In addition, Spacetown argues that New Hampshire has
underestimated the cost of acquiring its proposed transmitter site by at
least $6,000.26 Spacetown further alleges that the $18,000 parcel is only
half of New Hampshire’s proposed site; therefore, total land costs will
amount to $36,000, or $19,500 less than funds available. The Broadcast
Bureau supports the addition of a financial issue against New Hamp*t See the Board's comments on the petitioner’s
tration of these cities ¥ paragraph 7, supra.
327
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shire because of the expiration of the bank’s commitment letter and a
missing signature on the Joan commitment. The Bureau, however,
opposes Spacetown’s contention that New Hampshire has ‘underestimated the cost of its proposed site because the contention is based on
double hearsay (Peter V. Gureckis, Spacetown’s engineer, states in an
affidavit that Albert P. Gureckis, Spacetown’s president, ‘spoke to the
owner of the land who stated the price) and the contention that the
proposed site appears to encompass more than just one parcel of land
with total costs approaching $36,000 is mere speculation. In opposition,
New Hampshire states that it has submitted an updated letter of credit
eliminating all possible bases for the financial and real party-ininterest issues, including a new loan commitment which eliminates the
objections of the Broade cast Bureau.2?
19. In light of the Presiding Judge’s acceptance of this amendment
which appears to eliminate the provisions in New Hampshire’s financial showing which were objected to by Spacetown and the Bureau, the
Review Board will not add the requested financial and real party-ininterest issues. In addition, to the extent that Spacetown’s allegations
are not answered by New Hampshire’s April 20, 1972 amendment, the
Board rejects them as being
oe by aflid:a itsof persons hewving personal knowledge of thef
the Commission’s Rules. See also 2 K O Tonseal, Daas 34 FCC od 263,
24 RR 2d 22 (1972); Roberts Flying Service, Inc., 31 FCC 2d 77,
22 RR 2d 985 (1971). However, since it appears that New Hampshire's
most recent loan commitment expired as of September 1, 1972, the
Board will add a limited financial issue against New Hampshire for
the sole purpose of determining the continuing availability of its loan
from the Merrimack Valley National Bank.

FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS ISSUES AGAINST SALEM
20. Spacetown petition. Finally, Spacetown requests that the limited
financial issue specified against Salem in the designation Order be expanded to include oe inquiry into the cost of acquiring the site since,
petitione r alleges, the proposed site has a value substantially in excess
of the $18,000 estimated by Salem. The Broadcast Bureau opposes
expansion of the financial issue against Salem based on its underestimated cost of acquiring the land for its proposed site because Spacetown relies on a letter from a real estate agent, rather than the owner
of the property to establish the sale price of the site. The Board agrees

with the Bureau and will not add the requested issue since Spacetown
hias not supported its request by affidavits of persons having personal
nowledge as required by Section 1.229(c) of the Commission's Rules,

RK: General, Inc., supra; and Roberts Flying Service, Inc., supra.
New Hampshire petition. New Hampshire requests expansion of
—< limited financial issue specified against Salem on numerous
grounds, most of which héave been mooted by several amendments filed

by Salem earlier this year 28 and accepted by the Administrative Law
* The amendment
containing these changes was accepted by the Presiding Judge, by
Order, FCC 72M-622, released May 11, 1972.
E
* (a) Amendment
of April 25, 1972;
(b) supplement thereto of May 19, 1972; and
(ec) amendment

38 F.C.C.

of August

2d

11, 1972.
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Judge on October 10, 1972 (FCC 72M-1262). Therefore, the parties’
arguments on these matters are moot and need not be considered. However, one argument raised by New Hampshire in its reply remains unanswered. According to New Hampshire, Salem’s application authorizes the issuance of 200 shares of stock; nevertheless, New Hampshire
states, Salem’s recent amendment shows over 1900 shares already subscribed. In addition, New Hampshire argues, two of the three balance
sheets submitted do not indicate the financial ability of the subscribers
to comply with the terms of the agreement.?? New Hampshire also
states that its requested issue inquiring into Salem’s first-year cost of
operation was premised on Salem’s failure to provide the itemization
required in response to item

(1)(b), Section ITI of FCC

Form 301,

which are the bases of the estimates submitted by the applicant in
item (a), Section III. For the above reasons, New Hampshire requests

that several financial issues be added against Salem to inquire into the
above matters.
22. The Board agrees with New Hampshire that regardless of the
amendments, several problems with Salem’s financial qualifications
remain. Two of the subscribers’ balance sheets (Perry’s and Ebert’s)
raise questions as to their ability to meet their subser iption agreements.
First, Carol Ebert has subscribed to $10,000 worth of stoclk despite the
fact that she has an annual salary of $10,000 per year.*® Her balance
sheet lists $3,500 in cash and $3,450 in unexplained “notes receivable”.

Without further explanation of this latter item, a substantial question

is raised as to whether Ebert has sufficient resources to meet her sub-

stantial stock subscription, which amounts to a year’s gross salary.
Second, Edward Perry, who is subscribing to $1,750 in stock. lists his

net worth as over $30,000 but has only $200 in cash on hand. The bulk
= Perry’s assets are stock in, and salaries and commissions due from,
& I Broadeasting: however, without a balance sheet for this comned and in light of Perry’s very low cash balance in relation to net
worth, it is impossible to determine the liquidity of these assets. Further, the $1,700 unexplained “accounts receivable” is equally unclear.
The Board cannot accept such vague assurances of the availability of
such large amounts of money. As the Board stated in Vista Broadcastng Co.. Ine., 18 FCC 2d 636, 687, 16 RR 2d 838, 840 (1969) : “It is well

established that receivables, stocks and bonds, and fixed assets, in the
sone ‘e of proof of marketability or liquidity, afford no reasonable
assurance that funds wili, in fact, be available to meet commitments to
an applicant for a radio station.” See also Miami Broadcasting Corportion, 9 FCC 2d 694, 10 RR 2d 1037 (1967). The financial position of
these stockholders is even more important in light of Salem’s amendment of August 11, 1972 (accepted by the Administrative Law Judge
on October 11, 1972), which indie: ates that Perry and Ebert are two of
only four remaining stockholders personally guaranteeing the indebt“” New

Hampshire

also

states

that

both

Salem

and

the

Bureau

misunderstood

its

requested issue rege rding Salem’s projected professional fees. New Hampshire states that
it was not questioning the reasonableness of the fees. but the availability of funds to
meet
these fees. The Poard considers this simply another way of stating that New
Hampshire questions Salem’s overall financial qualifications.
"The
Board
is aware
that
Salem’s
amendment.
filed July 11, 1972. indicates an
incieased annual salary of $11,000, but this does not change the Board’s analysis.
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edness of the corporation. Further, Salem’s pending amendment, filed
July 11, 1972, indicates that Perry’s subscription may increase substantially to $8,500. In addition, the discrepancy in the number of shares of
stock issued and the number authorized and Salem’s failure to furnish
the financial information required in item (1) (b), Section III of the
April 25th amendment to its application, raise further questions as to
Salem’s financial qualifications, Therefore, the financial issue against
—
will be expanded in accordance with the above discussion.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the petition to sappiesate reply, filed August 4, 1972, by Spacetown Broadcasting Corpora
tion: that the petition for leave to file further supplement, filed
August 2, 1972, by Salem Broadcasting C ms Inc.; that the petition
to supplement opposition, filed July 25, “1972 , by Salem Broade asting
Co., Inc.; that the petition to file further supplement to reply, filed
June 27, 1972, by Spacetown Broadcasting Corporation; that the petition to file supplement to motion to enlarge issues and supplement to
motion to enlarge issues, filed June 13, 1972, by Spacetown Broadcasting Corporation; that the petition to file supplement to reply, filed
June 13, 1972, by Spacetown Broadcasting Corporation; and that
the petition to file supplement to opposition to motion to enlarge issues,
filed May 23, 1972, by Salem Broadcasting Co., Inc., ARE DENIED;
and
24. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the petition for leave to
file supplement to opposition, filed May 22, 1972, by Salem Broadcasting Co., Inc., ISGRANTED: and
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the motion to enlarge
issues, filed March 13, 1972, by Spacetown Broadcasting Corporation
IS GRANTED to the extent indicated below and IS DENIED in
all other respects; and

26. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the petition to enlarge
issues, filed March 13, 1972, by New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation, IS GRANTED to the extent indicated below and IS
DENIED in all other respects: and
27. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the petition to enlarge
issues, filed May 10, 1972, by New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation, IS GRANTED:
28. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the issues in this proceeding ARE ENLARGED to including the following issues:
(a) To determine whether overlap would occur between the proposed 0.5 mv/m
contour of Salem Broadeasting Co., Inc., and the 0.025 mv/m contour of Radio
Station WHIM,
Providence, Rhode Island, in contravention of Section 73.37
of the Commission’s Rules and Regulations ;
(b) To determine, if it is found that the overlap described above would occur,
whether the application of Salem Broadcasting Co., Inc., falls within the exceptions to the Rule contained in Section 73.37(b),_ or whether the application
should

be dismissed;

(c) To determine, with respect to the application of Salem Broadcasting Co.,
Ine., whether the applicant is reasonably assured of its proposed transmitter
site:

(d) To determine whether overlap would occur between the proposed 0.5 mv/m
contour of New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation and the 0.025 my/m contour of Radio Station WHIM, Providence, Rhode Island, in contravention of
Section 73.37 of the Commission’s Rules and Regulations;

38 F.C.C. 2d

Salem Broadcasting Co., Ine., et al.

183

(e) To determine, if it is found that the overlap described above would occur,
whether the application of New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation falls
within the exceptions to the Rule contained in Section 78.37(b), or whether the
application should be dismissed ;
(f) To determine, with respect to the application of New Hampshire Broadeasting Corporation, whether the Merrimack Valley National Bank, or any other
banking institution, is willing to loan the applicant the amount it proposes to
use for the first-year construction and operation expenses.

29. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the burden of proceeding with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof with
respect to issues (a), (b) and (c), added above, SHALL BE on Salem
Broadcasting Co., Inc., and the burden of proceeding with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof with respect to issues (d),
(e) and (f), added above, SHALL BE on New Hampshire Broadcasting Corporation; and
30. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the financial issue (No. 3
in the designation Order, supra) specified against Salem Broadcasting
Co., Inc., IS MODIFIED to read as follows:
3. To determine, with respect to the application of Salem Broadcasting Co., Ine.:
(a) Whether the Arlington Trust Company, or any other banking institution,
is willing to loan the applicant the amount it proposes to use for first-year con-

struction and operation expenses;
(b) The
number
of shares
of stock
issued
and/or
authorized
by the
corporation ;
(c) The facts coneerning the failure of the applicant to provide the information requested by Section IIT, 1(b) of Commission Form 301;
(d) Whether Edward Perry and Carol Ebert, stockholders of Salem Broadcasting Co., Inc., have sufficient net liquid assets to meet their stock subscription
commitments; and
(e) Whether, in light of the evidence adduced pursuant to a, b, ec and d above,
the applicant is financially qualified.

31. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the burden of proceeding
with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof with respect
to the financial qualifications issue, as modified, SHALL BE on Salem
Broadcasting Co., Ine.
FrepERAL

CoMMUNICATIONS

CoMMISSION,

Ben F. Waprte, Secretary.
Docket No. 19434,
Salem, N.H.

et al.

APPENDIX
Motion

to enlarge

issues, filed March

13, 1972, by Spacetown

Broad-

casting Corporation.
Erratum, filed March 24, 1972, by Spacetown.
Broadcast Bureau’s comments, filed April 20, 1972.
Opposition, filed April 24, 1972, by Salem Broadcasting

Co., Inc.
Opposition, filed April 24, 1972, by New Hampshire Broadcasting
Corporation.
Supplement and errata, filed May 1, 1972, by New Hampshire.
Reply to oppositions, filed May 15, 1972, by Spacetown.
Petition for leave to file supplement, and supplement to opposition,
filed May 22, 1972, by Salem.
Petition to file supplement to opposition, filed May 23, 1972 filed by
Salem.
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filed May 28, 1972, by Salem.

Petition to file supplement to motion to enlarge issues and supplement
to motion to enlarge issues, filed June 13, 1972, by Spacetown.
Petition to file supplement to reply and supplement to reply, filed
June 138, 1972, by Spacetown.

Broadeast Bureau’s comments on “Petition to file supplement to motion
to enlarge issues and supplement to motion to enlarge issues,” filed
June 21, 1972,
Petition to file further supplement to reply and further supplement to
reply, filed June 27, 1972, by Spacetown.
Opposition to petitions to supplement motion to enlarge issues, and
reply to oppositions thereto, filed July 11, 1972, by Salem.
Petition to supplement opposition and supplement, filed July 25, 1972,
by Salem.
Petition for leave to file further supplement and supplement, filed
August 2, 1972, by Salem.
Petition to supplement reply and supplement, filed August 4, 1972, by
Spacetown.

Opposition to supplement, filed August 17, 1972, by Salem.
Opposition to supplement to reply, filed August 17, 1972, by New
Hampshire.
Petition to enlarge issues, filed March 13, 1972, by New Hampshire.

Broadcast Bureau’s comments, filed April 13, 1972.
Opposition, filed April 24, 1972, by Salem.
) Reply to opposition, filed May 5, 1972, by New Hampshire.
Petition to enlarge issues, filed May 10, 1972, by New Hampshire.
(2) Opposition, filed July 11, 1972, by Salem.
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BEFORE THE
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COMMUNICATIONS
Wasuineron,

D.C.

COMMISSION
20554

In the Matter of
AMENDMENT OF Part 1 oF THE CoMMISSION’S
Routes To REQuIRE SIMULTANEOUS

PAYMENT

OF THE Fininc AND Grant Free WirH AN
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION OR TYPE
ACCEPTANCE

Docket No. 19642

Notice oF Proposep Rute MAKine

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)
By true Commission:

1, Notice is hereby given of proposed rule making in the above entitled matter.
2. A schedule of application fees for a variety of authorizations
became effective on March 17, 1964.1 On July 1, 1970, this schedule
was revised and extended to include applications for equipment authorization. On March 24, 1971,3 in response to a petition for reconsideration, the fee schedule with some minor changes was reaffirmed. The
schedule of fees has subsequently been expanded as provisions for new
Part 15 devices which require certification are incorporated in our
Rules. The fee required under this schedule is divided into two parts—
a filing fee that must accompany the application, and a grant fee that
must be paid within 45 days of the date of the grant.
3. Certification and type acceptance are equipment authorizations
which we grant after review of test data submitted to the Commission.
A grant of the latter kind of authorization is based upon appropriate
testing by the manufacturer in terms of the current technical standards
of the service in which the equipment will be operated under license
and attaches to all units subsequently manufactured by the same person which are substantially identical to the ones tested and approved.
Certification is used for other types of radiation devices such as TV
receivers, operated under Parts 15 and 18 of our rules. A grant of this
kind is based upon appropriate testing by the manufacturer in terms
of the applicable technical standards and he is permitted to certificate
the devices tested, and all others subsequently manufactured which
are substantially identical, after notification to and acceptance by the
Commission of the proposed certificate.
1 Docket No. 14507, Report and Order adopted May 6, 1963, FCC 63-414, 28 F.R. 4658;
Docket No. 14507, Memorandum Opinion & Order adopted September 25, 1963, FCC 63-856,
28 F.R. 10911.
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4. We have found that as the applicants for equipment authorizations gain familiarity with our rules and the presentation of information required by the Commission little difficulty is experienced in preparing an acceptable application. In cases w here sufficient information
and measurements data is not included with the application, grant of
equipment authorization is deferred pending the receipt of the additional information required to complete the application; the Commission denies few of these applications. We estimate that greater than
95% of the applic ations received for equipment authorizations are
granted by the Commission. The high percentage of authorizations
which are granted is a result of the applicants desire to persue his application for certification or type acceptance until a grant is issued. This
grant permits him to legally market (ship, sell, lease, import, ete.) the
device he has developed or purchased. Some applicants for certification,
recognizing the high probability that a grant will be made, have found
it advantageous to submit the required filing and grant fee simultaneously. Such simultaneous filing is advantageous to the Commission
since at decreases by one-half the number of transactions to be handled
by the fee section. It also reduces application handling for processing
groups, since it is not necessary to determine that fees are paid within
the prescribed time. Thus simultaneous filing reduces substantially the
administrative burden on the Commission. This is true, of course, provided the number of grants which are denied is small—a situation that
exists in the case of applications for type acceptance and certification.
5. We are therefore proposing to make mandatory the simultaneous
payment of filing and grant fees prescribed in Part 1 of the rules for
equipment. which is required by the Commission to be certified or type
accepted. While we believe most of the procedures herein proposed to
be self-explanatory, it may be helpful to discuss certain portions of
the proposed rules.
COMBINED

FEES

FOR

CERTIFICATION

AND

TYPE

ACCEPTANCE

The present rules provide for the separate payment of filing and
aa fees for certain equipment authorizations. The proposed rules
vegidine the combined payment of the filing and grant fees as set. out
in Appendix A attached. This will permit the Commission and applicants for these equipment authorizations to take full advantage of the
connie possible through payment of a single combined fee. To
provide an orderly transition period for the industry to adjust to this
new procedure, simultaneous payment of fees will become mandatory
on July 1, 1973. Applications filed on or after that date will not be
processed prior to the receipt of both the filing and grant fees. Should
the Commission deem it necessary to deny a grant for certification or
type acceptance, the grant fee will be refunded in full. The rules proposed herein will permit the withdrawal of a request for equipment
authorization and remittance of the grant fee in full prior to the date
such grant is made.
* Or such earlier date as the Commission may determine to be practicable,
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7. Authority for the adoption of the amendments herein proposed
is contained in Section 4(1) (47 U.S.C. see. 154(i) of the Communica-

tions Act, Title V of the Independent Offices Appropriation Act of
1952

(31 U.S.C. sec. 483(a), and Budget Bureau Circular A-25 and

~ »plements thereto.
. Pursuant to applicable procedures set forth in $1.415 of the
Commission's rules, interested persons may file comments on or before
January 8, 1973, and reply comments on or before January 18, 1973.
All relevant and timely comments and reply comments will be considered by the Commission before final action is taken in this proceeding. In reaching its decision on the rules of general applicability which
are proposed herein, the Commission may also take into account other
relevant information before it, in addition to the specific comments
invited by this notice. No extensions of time will be granted for filing
— ‘r comments or reply comments.

In accordance with the provisions of§ 1.419 of the Commission’s
ene and regulations, an original and 4 copies of all comments or
other documents filed in this proceeding shall be furnished the Commission. Responses will be available for public inspection during the
regular business hours in the Commission’s Public Reference Room at
its Headquarters in Washington, D.C.
FreperaAL ComMUNICATIONS

CoMMISSION,

Ben F. Warts, Secretary.
APPENDIX

A

Part 1 of Chapter I, Title 47, of the Code of Federal Regulations is amended
as follows:
1, Section 1.1102 is amended by adding a note immediately after paragraph
(b), revising paragraphs (d) and (g) and adding a new (j) to read as follows:
§ 1.1102
Payment of fees
*
ny

*
ee

2

Nore: Combined fees. See paragraph
taneous payment of filing and grant
ceptance or certification of equipment.
*

(d)

*

Where

a separate

*

grant

(j) of this section concerning simulfees with applications for type ac-

%

fee payment

*

Ey

is prescribed

BS

in the

various

services, the fee will be payable within 45 days after grant by the Commission. In the broadcast services, the grant fee, based on a percentage of the
consideration, in assignment and transfer cases must be transmitted by the
new licensee immediately
following consummation of the transfer or assignment. All grants, approvals and authorizations issued by the Commis-.
sion are made subject to payment and receipt of the applicable fee within

the required period. Failure to make payment of the applicable fee to the
Commission by the required date shall result in the grant, authorization
or approval becoming null and void and ineffective after that date.
*

*

*

*

*

a

*

(g) Applications and attached fees should be addressed to: Federal
Communications Commission, Washington, D.C. 20554, or to the appropriate
FCC Field Office and should not be marked for the attention of any individual bureau or office. Fee payments should be in the form of a check

or money order payable to the Federal Communications Commission. The
Commission will not be responsible for cash sent through the mails. All fees
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eollected will be paid into the U.S. Treasury as miscellaneous
accordance with the provisions of Title V of the Independent
propriations Act of 1952 (31 U.S.C. 483A).
*

*

(j) Combined
type acceptance

*

*

2

*

receipts in
Offices Ap*

filing and grant fees with applications for certification and
of equipment: Each application for certification or type

acceptance of equipment shall be accompanied by a combined payment
covering the filing and grant fees for such application.
Payment of filing
and grant fees separately is permissible until July 1, 1973;* however, applicanis are encouraged to submit fees simultaneously prior to this date.

On or after July 1, 1973 applications will not be processed prior to payment
of the combined filing and grant fee.
2. Section 1.1103 is amended by adding a new paragraph (c) to read as
follows:
§1.1103
Return or refund of fees.
*

*z

*

*

*

1%

*

(c) Grant fees received as part of a combined fee payment pursuant to
§ 1.1102(j) will be refunded in the following instances:
(1) When an application for certification or type acceptance is dismissed or denied by the Commission.
(2) When a request for withdrawal of the application is received
prior to the date of grant of certification or type acceptance.
(3) When the failure of an applicant for certification or type acceptance to reply to a request for additional information results in a
dismissal of the application.
1 Or such earlier date as the Commission may determine to be practicable.

38 F.C.C. 2d

Taft Broadcasting Co.

189

F.C.C. 72-1047

BEFORE THE
FEDERAL

COMMUNICATIONS
Wasurneton, D.C.

COMMISSION

20554

In Re Applications of
Tarr Broapcasrine Co.
File Nos. BR-223,
For Renewal of Licenses of Stations |
BRCT-198
WGR-AM-TYV, Buffalo, N.Y.
J
Meme IRANDUM

OPINION

AND

ORDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)
By riz Comission :COMMISSIONER JOHNSON DISSENTING.
1. The Commission

has before it for consideration

(i) the above-

captioned applications for renewal of license; (ii) a petition to deny
the applications filed May 1, 1972, by the National Association of
Broadcast Employees and Technicians, AFL-CIO, hereinafter
“NABET”; and (iii) an opposition to the petition filed by Taft
Broadcasting Company.
2. Section 309(d) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended,

47 U.S.C. 309(d), provides that any party in interest may file a petition - deny any application, including a license renewal application.
Where a petition to deny is filed, it must contain specific allegations of
fact ae ient to show that a grant of the application would be prima
facie inconsistent with the pub lic interest. We are of the opinion that
NABET’s petition to deny the license renewal applications for Stations WGR and WGR-TY fails to raise a substantial or materia! question of fact warranting designation of those applications for hearing.
Initially, we note that while NABET’s petition is directed against
both WGR and WGR-TYV, no allegations with respect to the AM station are contained in the petition. The petition as it relates to WGRAM will therefore be denied summarily because of its pervasive lack
of specificity as required by Section 309(d).
Further, NABET’s pleading, insofar as it relates to WGR-TV,
is also characterized by general allegations and is devoid of any specific facts which would indicate that a grant of the station’s license
renewal application would be prima facie inconsistent with the public
interest. In its petition, NABET merely takes exception. to several programming decisions made by the licensee. Thus, acc ording to the petitioner, WGR-TV has wasted the “golden opportunity” afforded by
the prime time access rule! by broadeasting reruns of the network
produced “Petticoat Junction.” Secondly, NABET charges Taft with
poor judgment in broade: asting a program entitled “Human Sexuality,” at 1 a.m. following Johnny Carson’s “Tonight” show. NABET
1 Section

73.658 (k).
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claims that “[t]he sparcity of the available audience that would respond to such a program during this airtime hardly requires additional comment.” NABET further asserts that during its three week
monitoring study (March 11 to April 1, 1972), WGR-TV broadcast
no local live programming other than weather, news, and sports during
prime time. Fin: lly, petitioner charges that in June of 1970, Taft
withdrew its two local live newscasts only to reschedule them e:arly jin

1972, with the advent of license renewal time. NABET also submits
that Taft on June 1, 1970, “eliminated the highly regarded ‘Romper
Room’ ” program.

5. In its opposition pleading, Taft rebuts the allegations raised by
NABET, First, with respect to the broadcast of “Petticoat Junction,”
Taft points out that Section 73.658(Kk)(3) of the rules expressly permits the presentation of off network programs during prime time
access time until October 1, 1972. Secondly, regarding the broadcast of
“Human Sexuality,” the licensee states that the program was locally
produced as a five-part series in cooperation with the Buffalo Council
of Churches; that it dealt with such topics as promiscuity, venereal
clisease, abortion, and homosexuality, ete.;that the program was frank,
controversial, and intended for adult viewing; and that, therefore, it
was scheduled for viewing when the number of children in the audience would be at a minimum, citing Pacifica Foundation, 1 RR 2d
747, 751 (1964). With respect to the allegation that no local live programming other than weather, news, and sports was carried during
NABET’s three week monitoring period, Taft submits that on
March 24, 1972, the public affairs program “Take a Look” was telecast from 10:30 to 11:00 p.m. That particular segment was entitled
“Promise of the Future” and featured discussions by parents, teachers
and police with students from a predominantly black high school.
With reference to NABET’s allegation that Taft withdrew two local
live newscasts in June of 1970, only to reschedule them early in 1972
toward the end of the license period, Taft states that two five- minute
newscasts were, in fact, replaced in June of 1970, by a Taft-produced
series “Black History,” and a local news and public interest program
entitled “Around the Black World.” In March of 1972, the “Black
listory” series was completed and was replaced with local live news.
“Around the Black World” was moved to late evening hours and a
five minute local live newscast was substituted in its original time
slot. Taft concludes that WGR-TV cannot be faulted for providing
programming of special interest to its black audience. Concerning
“Romper Room,” Taft states that this program was broadcast by
WGR-TY for a full season, from September 8, 1969 through June 5,
1970, as well as from September 24, 1956 through March 21, 1958.
6. Licensees are, of course, afforded broad discretion in making programming decisions. The Commission will not question such decisions
absent specific factual allegations sufficient to show that the licensee’s
overall programming per formance has failed to serve the public within his service area. While NABET may disagree with Taft’s decisions
concerning the foregoing matters, it is obvious that petitioner has
failed to make any showing which would indicate that the licensee has
38 F.C.C.
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either abused its discretion or otherwise failed to program to serve
the public within the station’s service area.
7. In view of the foregoing, we find that the programming judgments made by Taft were well within the limits of the broad discretion traditionally afforded broadcast licensees. Moreover, we find that
the petitioner has failed to raise substantial or material questions of
fact. to establish that a grant of the above-captioned renewal applications would be prima facie inconsistent with the public interest. Having examined the applications, we find that a grant would serve the
public interest, convenience, and necessity.
8. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the aforementioned petition to deny IS DENIED, and the above applications for renewal of
licenses ARE HEREBY GRANTED.
FEDERAL CoMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION,

Brn F. Warts, Secretary.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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In the Matter of
Comp.arnr OF Mrs. Marrua ‘TRANQUILLI,
Mounp Bayou, Miss., Acarnsr Mississippi

TeterHonE

&

Communications,

Inc.;;

Docket No. 19271

Mounp Bayou TreLterHone Co., Marton,
La.; CenTrat TELEPHONE & ELECTRONICS
Corpv., Monrog, La.
APPEARANCES

Charles H. Ryan, on behalf of Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., and James O. Juntilla and David Cosson, on behalf of
the Chief, Common Carrier Bureau, Federal Communications Comnuission.
DEcIsIoN
(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 29, 1972)
By rue

Review Boarp: Netson, Prncock aANp KEssLER.

1. This proceeding, designated as a “formal investigation” to be
conducted under adjudicatory procedures, was initiated by the Commission on its own motion by Order, FCC 71-668, (36 FR 12640 pub-

lished July 2, 1971), pursuant to Sections 201, 202, 203, 2081 and
403 * of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. The Order provided that “without in any way limiting the scope of the proceeding,
it shall include inquiry into the following:
1. Whether the use of the application form given to Mrs. Tranquilli was part
of an injust or unreasonable practice in violation of Section 201 (a) or (b) of
the Act or demonstrates that Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., and
its affiliates are or have been engaged in unjust and unreasonable discrimination
in violation of Section 202(a) of the Act;
2. Whether Mrs. Tranquilli has been incorrectly billed for interstate telephone
service and whether the telephone company has failed to make reasonable investigation into her complaints relating thereto, in violation of Sections 201(b),
202(a) and 203(c) of the Act;
3. Whether the sending of the disconnection notice to Mrs. Tranquilli was
unreasonable under the circumstances so as to constitute a violation of Section
201(b) of the Act or was unjustly discriminatory contrary to Section 202(a) of
the Act;
1These
Carriers.”

four sections
Section

201

are contained
deals

with

in Title II of the Act under

“service

and

charges’;

Section

the heading
202

deals

“Common
with

‘‘dis-

and

with

crimination and preferences’ and provides for penalties for violations in the sum of $500
for each offense and $25 for each day of continuance; Section 203 deals with “schedules
and charges’ and provides for the same penalties as Section 202; and Section 208 deals
with “complaints to the Commission.”

“This

section

provides

the

Commission

with

authority to initiate an inquiry on its own motion.
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or any of its affiliates has, by imposing a

imposed

a charge

on

interstate

communications

other than that set forth in the appropriate filed tariff in violation of Section
203(c) of the Act;
5. Whether the disconnection of service to Mrs. Tranquilli in 1966 because of
her refusal

203(¢)

to pay

the federal

telephone

excise tax

was

a violation

of Section

of the Act.”

2. In its Order, the Commission set forth the basis for its inquiry,
in substance, as follows: On January 12, 1971, the Commission forwarded to the Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc. (Telephone)* a copy of a letter received from Mrs. Martha Tranquilli in
which she complained, among other things, that the company’s service
application form provided for the identification of an applicant’s race ;
that the company sent her a disconnection notice for a bill which she
had paid; that she had been charged for interstate calls which she had

not made; and that she had experienced very noisy circuits when mak-

ing toll calls. Upon receipt of a reply, the Commission, on February 22,
1971, requested clarification and further information. No response
was received to said inquiry, nor to the Commission’s follow-up letters
of April 22, 1971 and May 17, 1971. Because of the importance of the
questions raised by the complaint and because of the carrier’s unwillingness to cooperate in resolving said questions through Safest’
procedures, the Commission deemed it necessary to institute a formal
investigation. In paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order, the Commission set
forth with considerable specificity the factual basis and rationale for

ach of the listed items of inquiry.
3. On February 25, 1972, subsequent. to the prehearing conference,

the Presiding Judge received a Stipulation of Facts entered into by the
Chief, Common Carrier Bureau and Telephone, which Stipulation, by
Order, was received in evidence as Joint Exhibit 1 (FCC 72M-330,
released March 14, 1972). At the same time, the record was closed and
provision was made for the filing of proposed conclusions. 'The Tnitial
Decision, FCC 72D-29, of Administrative Law Judge Ernest Nash
was released on May 10, 1972. Exceptions and briefs have been filed by
Telephone and the Bureau.
4. In his Initial Decision, the Presiding Judge adopted the proposed
conclusions of the Bureau that with respect to items 1,2 and 3 of the
designation

Order, the record

did not reflect any violations of the

Communications Act. With respect to item 4—whether Telephone’s
imposition of a late payment penalty violated Section 203(c) of the
Act—the Presiding Judge concluded that while the company did for
a period send out customer bills which contained a 10 percent penalty
charge and which may have been applied to charges for interstate or
foreign communications services, such a charge was not collected from
Mrs. Tranquilli; that this practice had been discontinued; and that a

notice of hability for forfeiture would not be appropriate since the
Commission did not give Telephone specific notice that such liability
might arise out of this proceeding. With respect. to item 5—w hether
the disconnection of service to Mrs. Tranquilli because of her refusal
% This company

of

provides

its

stock

local

resides.

All

company

listed in the caption

telephone

is owned

by

service

Century

to Mound

Telephone

Bayou

where

Enterprises.

the complainant

Inc.

The

other

is not here involved,
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to pay the federal telephone excise tax violated Section 203(c) of the
Act—the Presiding Judge concluded that such violation had occurred;
that the violation had resulted from Telephone’s misconception of its
obligation to the federal government; that when the matter was called
to its attention by the Commission’s staff, Telephone changed its practice; that its operations are now consistent with the requirements of
Section 203(c) and its obligations as a connecting carrier under appli‘able interstate tariffs; and that a forfeiture would not be:appropriate,
Finally, the P residing Judge concluded the question of the Commission’s jurisdiction over Telephone as an intrastate and connecting carrier had been rendered moot by reason of its participation in this proceeding and its actions to affect compliance with the requirements of
the Act.
5. We have reviewed the Initial Decision in light of the exceptions,
briefs and our examination of the record. Briefly stated, we are in
accord with the Presiding Judge’s findings of fact and his resolution
of items 1,2 and 3 of the designa ition Order. We are not in accord with
his resolution of items 4 and 5, and with his resolution of the jurisdictional question. Accordingly, except as modified in this Decision and
in the rulings on exceptions contained in the attached Appendix, all
of the Presiding Judge’s findings of fact, and his conclusions with respect to items 1,2 and3 of the designation Order, are adopted. In order
that our position with respect to the areas of disagreement may be
a understood, it is necessary that we set forth the pertinent facts.
Telephone is an independent. connecting carrier which provides
meee telephone exchange service solely on an intrastate basis at Mound
Bayou, Bolivar County, Mississippi. It also provides interstate telephone service through connection with the facilities of South Central
Bell Telephone Company (Bell). Bell performs all handling, ticketing and calculations of billing of toll calls for the Mound Bayou exchange and cooperates in investigating disputed toll complaints by
furnishing and examining their orriginal toll tickets and verifying the
calls with the party esalled.
Mrs. Tri anquilli disputed two toll calls which appeared on her
te Lelie bill carrying a billing date of December1, 1970. By letter
to Telephone of November 30, 1970, she refused to pay for said calls
and deducted the charges therefor. After investigation, Telephone deducted the amount of the disputed calls in order to avoid expense and
to maintain customer relations. On December 1, 1970, a “Final Past
Due Notice” was sent to Mrs. Tranquilli which stated that unless the
amount of $26.27 was paid by December 11, 1970, her telephone would
he disconnected. The $26.27 is the same amount which was contained
in her telephone bill bearing the billing date of December 1, 1970. The
composition of that amount as shown on the latter bill was a $6.99
balance from a past bill, a $5.75 charge for local service, and amounts
for toll calls and state and federal taxes. The $6.99 shown as past due
was in error since Mrs. Tranquilli had paid all amounts owing from
prior bills within 10 days of the billing dates and as of December 1,
1970, no amount from prior bills was outstanding.
The telephone bills sent to Mrs. Tranquilli and other subscribers
of Telephone show an “amount now due” and an amount due after the
38 F.C.C.
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tenth of the month. The amount due after the tenth of the month is
computed only by adding 10 percent of the “amount now due”. The
“amount now due” can be partially composed of amounts for interstate message toll service. The purpose, as stated by Telephone, of the
10% charge is to defray the handling and collecting of accounts paid
after the tenth of the month. Mrs. Tranquilli has never paid the 10%
charge for late payment. Telephone does not have any tariff on file
with the Commission containing a 10% charge for late payment of bills
for interstate message toll calls, but has had tariff authority from the
Mississippi Public Service Conmission since January 1969 to impose
the 10% late payment charge to intrastate bills. The monthly bills sent
to subscribers by the company stated the amount of the penalty charge
on the total bill, including interstate calls, from January 1969 to
August 1, 1971, when the company voluntarily discontinued applying
the charge to interstate toll charges.

9. On January 20, 1968, the telephone service of Mrs. Tranquilli was
discontinued by Telephone for refusal to pay the federal excise tax.
As of the date of disconnection, the balance shown due on Telephone’s
records consisted exclusively of charges for the federal excise tax
which had already been paid by the company to Internal Revenue
Service. By letter dated January 15, 1968, Telephone stated:“We have
your letters stating that you are deliberately withholding the excise tax
because of your personal views relative to the tax. This is to advise
you that we are required to collect the tax on telephone service regardless of personal opinions.” Telephone service was restored to Mrs.
Tranquilli on December 22, 1969. Mrs. Tranquilli has continued to
withhold payment of the federal excise tax on telephone service.‘
10, Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc. is listed as a
connecting carrier in the American Telephone and Telegraph Company Tariff FCC No. 257. Section 2.4.5 of the AT&T Tariff FCC No.
263 provides that “Upon non-payment of any sum due the Telephone
Company, or upon a violation of any of the conditions governing the
furnishing of the service, the Telephone. Company may by notice in
writing to the customer, without incurring any liability, forthwith
discontinue the furnishing of said service.” This provision has been in
effect since at least 1967. AT&T Tariff FCC No. 263 contains no exceptions relating to Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc.
11. In its introductory statement to its listed exceptions Telephone
states that:
No exception is taken to the Examiner’s conclusions as to issues 1, 2 and 3
designate d by the Commission for inquiry. because the Examiner has adopted
the common conclusions of the Common Carrier Bureau and Respondents on
these

issues.

Examiner

The

exceptions

are

thus

limited

to certain

factual

findings

of the

as to issues 4 and 5, and to the conclusions drawn from those facts.

No exception is taken from the final results and conclusions reached by the
Hearing Examiner, but exception is taken as to his reasons for reaching the
decisions in Conclusions 3 and 4 and his position as to ‘jurisdiction’ in con-

clusion 5...

.

*On September 19, 1969, the Commission had informed Telephone by letter that tele
phone companies are not required to force collection of the federal excise tax. By letter
from its attorneys dated November
14, 1969, Telephone refused to restore service. On
November 25, 1969, Telephone had been informed by letter that it was the opinion of
the Commission’s staff that the denial of service to Mrs. Tranquilli was a violation of
Section 205 of the Communications Act.
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In substance, Telephone excepts to the failure of the Presiding Judge
(a) to conclude that the Commission has no jurisdiction over Telephone; (b) to conclude that there was no evidence that it had actually
collected a late charge penalty from Mrs. Tranquilli or any other customer and, therefore, Section 203(c) had not been violated; and (c) to
conclude that Telephone was not obligated to file a tariff as a “connecting carrier” and that Mrs. Tranquilli’s refusal to reimburse Telephone
for the excise tax which it had paid to the Internal Revenue Service
was a failure to pay “a sum due” Telephone, thus justifying the disconnection of her telephone service.
12. No exceptions have been taken by the Bureau to the conclusions
reached with respect to the items of inquiry 1, 2 and 3 of the designation Order. The Bureau does except to the Presiding Judge’s failure
(a) to find that the sending of customer bills containing a 10% penalty
charge applicable to charges for interstate and foreign communications :services violated Sec tion 203(¢) of the Act: (b) to order the pay-

ment of a forfeiture of at least$500° pursuant to Section 203(e) for
the penalty charge violation; (c) to order Telephone to refund all
amounts collected as a penalty charge upon interstate and foreign communications charges in violation of Section 203(¢c); and (d) to order
the payment of a forfeiture of at least $2,825 for violation of Section
203(c) resulting from the disconnection of Mrs. Tranquilli’s telephone
service. Thus, the Bureau recommends a total forfeiture of $3,325.
13. Throughout this proceeding, Telephone has taken the position
that the “Commission had no jurisdiction over it, because it is a connecting carrier operating solely in intrastate commerce, solely within

the confines of the State of Mississippi, and, as such, subject to regulation only by Mississippi Public Service Commission. Its only activity
in interstate commerce is through the connecting facilities of South
Central Bell Telephone Company.” The Board finds this position untenable and is of the view that the Commission’s jurisdiction over Telephone in this proceeding is clear and unequivocal, as succinctly stated
by the Bureau as follows, without the need for further discussion on
our part:
. the telephone company’s reasoning seems to be that since Section 3 of the Act
contains separate definitions of ‘common carrier or carrier’ (Section 3(h)) and
‘connecting carrier’ (Section 3(u)), that ‘connecting carriers’ are not ‘common
carriers’ or ‘carriers.’ Therefore, it argues that only those sections of the Act
which require or prohibit actions by ‘connecting carriers’ as such, apply to it. It

finds that Section 2(b)

limits the application of the Act to connecting carriers to

Sections 201-205. The only obligation therein imposed specifically upon connecting

carriers is the requirement of Section 203(a) that it keep open for public inspection the tariff schedules filed by fully subject carriers and furnished to connecting carriers. This argument is remarkably similar to the one rejected by the court
*In its Proposed
maximum forfeiture

Conclusions and Recommendations,
the Bureau estimated that the
which can be calculated from the data on record would be $10,000.

Because of Telephone’s reliance in good faith on its Mississippi tariff and the cooperation

of the U.S. Independent Telephone Association, the Bureau recommended that a ‘forfeiture
of $500 will be sufficient with respect to the penalty charge violation.”
*The Bureau estimated a maximum forfeiture of $18,000, However, it recommended a
lesser amount because of the size of Telephone’s operation. Thus, the Bureau
recommended that in addition to a penalty of $500 for disconnection of service, the period of

eontinuance
staff

notified

be computed
Telephone

from
that

September
it was

not

19, 1969,
required

the date

to attempt

on

which

to enforce

tax but need only report the refusal to pay the tax to the Internal
$2,825 figure consists of $500 plus 93 days at $25 per day.
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in the case of Ward v. Northern Ohio Telephone Company, é300 F. 2d 816 (6th
Cir.) cert. denied, 371 U.S. 820 (1962), wherein it stated: ‘. . . Sections 201-205

of the Act, relating to services, charges, unlawful discriminations and preferences apply to any carrier which is engaged in interstate communications
solely through physical connection with the facilities of another carrier. . .
300 F. 2d at 820 (emphasis added): accord, Idaho Microwave Ine. v. P.0.C.,
352 F. 2d 729 (D.C. Cir. 1965). The telephone company’s argument, in addition
to being contrary to the case law and the plain language of the statute, would

lead to the absurd conclusion that a connecting carrier is obligated to post for
public inspection the interstate charges of the filing carrier’s tariff, but is not obligated to apply those same charges. The company’s jurisdictional challenges are
thus wholly without merit.

See also General Telephone Company of California v. FCC, 413 F. 2d
390 (D.C. Cir. 1969), cert. denied, 90 S. Ct. 173, 178 (1969).

14. The Presiding Judge limited his consideration of Telephone’s
liability for forfeiture to “item5 dealing with the payment of the telephone excise tax” on the ground that such liability was mentioned by
the Commission only with respect to said tax payment. With respect to Telephone’s imposition of a late payment penalty charge (item
4), the Presiding Judge concluded that forfeiture would not be appropriate because of lack of notice to T elephone; because no charge
had been collected from Mrs. Tranquilli; and because Telephone had
discontinued the practice. We are of the view that, for the reasons set
forth below, adequate notice of potential forfeiture had been given to
Telephone; that a finding that Section 203(c) of the Act had been violated was not dependent on Telephone’s collection of the penalty;
that, in the circumstances of this case, Telephone’s discontinuance of
said practice should not be a bar to the imposition of a forfeiture but
should be considered as a mitigating factor; and that refunds of collected penalties, if any, should be made in accordance with practicable
procedures.
15. In paragraph 4(b) of its designation Order, the Commission
referred to Telephone’s penalty charge and stated “Since no such
charge is shown for interstate calls in American Telephone and Telegraph Company’s Tariff F.C.C. No. 263, the imposition of a penalty
charge would constitute a violation of Section 203(c) of the Communications Act.” In framing inquiry item 4, the Commission again
put Telephone on notice of that potential finding of violation. Seetion 203(c) states, in pertinent part, that “. . . no carrier shall (1)
charge, demand, collect or receive a greater or less or different compensation . .. than the charges specified in the schedule.” (Italic
added.) It is fundamental that, giving words their plain meaning, the use of the conjunction “or” makes any excess “charge”,
or any excess “collection”, a violation of said section,’ which violation
is subject to the forfeitures set forth in Section 203(e). Telephone admitted, in the above-mentioned Stipulation (Joint Exhibit 1), that
the penalty charge appeared on its subscribers’ bills from January
1969 to August 1, 1971. Those charges, whether or not collected, constituted violations of Section 203(c¢) which is self-operative. In light
7The word “or” is a disjunctive particle that marks an alternative. Ohio Fuel Supply
Co. v. Paxton, 1 F. 2d 662, 664 (1924) ; State of South Carolina y. Pilot Life Insurance
Company, 186 S.E. 2d 262 (1972).
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of all of the above, we believe that the Bureau’s recommended forfeiture for said violations was re: sonable, and consistent with the
public interest.
16. Telephone argues against the issuance of any order requiring
it to refund unlaw fully collected penalty charges on the ground that
such a requirement was not raised in the designation Order and that
the record does not show that any penalties were collected. We believe
that, consistent with human experience, it is reasonable to presume
that since penalty charges were billed by Telephone from January
1969 to August 1, 1971, some of those charges were collected, particularly in‘light of the fact that Telephone has not denied such collections. Refunding of unlawful collections has long been recognized
in common carrier and public utility cases. A refunding order is the
exercise of an inherent equity power of the Commission and the expected compliance with such a requirement is a mitigating factor which
may be considered in assessing a forfeiture. See Order in Benefiel v.
General Telephone Company of California, No. 70-1815-RJK, attached to Bureau's brief. We believe that the procedure which we
have provided for the widest practicable refund of unlawful collections is more conducive to an expeditious resolution of the questions
raised in these proceedings and should be more acceptable to Telephone
than were we to leave recovery of the excess charges to individual state
law suits or to individual complaint proceedings before the
Commission.
17. As stated above, Mrs. Tranquilli’s telephone service was disconnected by Telephone from January 20, 1968 to December 22, 1969
because she refused to pay the federal excise tax on her telephone bills
and refused to reimburse Telephone after it paid said tax to the Internal Revenue Service. It was Telephone’s position that Mrs. Tranquilli’s action constituted a refusal to pay a “sum due the telephone
company.” We cannot accept this argument and agree with the position of the Bureau that, at the time of the disconnection, the Internal
Revenue Service did not, by practice or regulation, require Telephone
to enforce payment of the tax and that the company was without authority to enforce such payment. The Internal Revenue Service Procedural Rules (Section 601.403(c)(2)) provided, in pertinent part,
that:
. If the person from whom the tax is required to be collected refuses to pay
it ... the collecting agency is required to report [the facts] to the district
director of internal revenue. . .. Upon receipt of this information the district
director will proceed against the person to whom the facilities were provided
or the services rendered to assert the amount of tax due, affording such person
the same district conference, protest and appellate rights as are available to
other excise taxpayers. .. .

Telephone could not eliminate such taxpayer rights by paying the tax
and enforcing reimbursement by means of service disconnection. Thus,
it is clear that the excise tax which Mrs. Tranquilli refused to pay was
not a “sum due the Telephone Company” within the meaning of the
American Telephone and Telegraph Company’s Tariff F.C.C. No.
265. Therefore, the disconnection of her telephone service, including
38 F.C.C. 2d
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interstate telephone service, solely on account of her refusal to pay the
excise tax or to reimburse Telephone was without authority under the
tariff and constituted a violation of Section 203(c). Cf. Johnson v.
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, 18 FCC 2d 679, 16 RR 2d
941

(1969).

18. In light of all of the above, we conclude that a forfeiture of
$500 should be imposed on Telephone pursuant to Section 203(e) of
the Act for violation of Section 203(c) in sending customers bills
containing a 10% penalty charge applicable to interstate communica-

tions services; that Telephone should be required to refund, wherever
possible, all amounts collected as penalty charges on interstate and
foreign communications charges, and to maintain appropriate records

concerning such refunds; and that a forfeiture of $2,825 should be imposed on Telephone for violation of Section 203(c) resulting from its
disconnection of Mrs. Tranquilli’s telephone service.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That Mississippi Telephone
and Communications, Inc., owner and operator of the local telephone
exchange facility located at Mound Bayou, Mississippi, FORFEIT

to the United States the sum of three thousand three hundred and
twenty-five dollars ($3,525.00)

Communications Act of 1934,
forfeiture shall be made by
thirty (30) days |of the date of
lar instrument drawn to the
States;

for violation of Section 203(c) of the

as amended; and that payment
delivering to the Commission
receipt of this Decision a check
order of the Treasurer of the

of said
within
or simiUnited

and

20. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That (a) Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., shall, within ninety (90) days of the
date of receipt of this Decision refund to all persons who were its subscribers between January 1, 1969 and August 1, 1971, all amounts collected during said per iod as penalty charges upon interstate and forcign telephone service charges;
(b) If sufficient company or other records are not available to
permit compliance with (a) above, said company shall, within thirty
(30) days of the date of receipt of this Decision, notify its present
subscribers and all others who had been subscribers between January 1, 1969 and August 1, 1971, that it will pay refunds to those subscribers who can produce records of having paid such penalty charges;
(c) Within six (6) months of the date of receipt of this Decision,
said company shall submit to the Commission a complete and detailed
report indicating the extent of its compliance with the above
requirements;
(d) The company shall notify the Commission of its receipt of this
Decision within five (5) days thereof; and

21. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the Secretary of the
Commission send copies of this Decision by Certified Mail—Return
Receipt requested to Mississippi Telephone¢and Communications, Inc.,
Marion, Louisiana 71260, and to its attorney, Charles H. Ryan, PA,
Box 4065, Monroe, Louisiana 71201.
JosEPH N. NELSON,
Member, Review Board,
Federal Communications Commission.
38 F.C.C. 2d
109-018—72——_8
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APPENDIX
RULINGS
Exceptions
Exception

ON

EXCEPTIONS

of Mississippi

TO INITIAL

Telephone

and

No.

DECISION

Communications,

Inc.

Ruling

Granted to the extent that the Presiding Judge should have
resolved the jurisdictional question on the merits and

Denied in all other respects for the reasons set forth in
the Decision.
Denied in substance for the reasons set forth in the
Decision.
Exceptions

of Chief,

Granted.
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Chief, Common Carrier Bureau, Federal Communications Commission
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Decision
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Ernest
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(Issued May 4, 1972; Released May 10, 1972)

1. In its Order released June 29, 1971, the Commission instituted
a formal investigation into matters set forth in an informal complaint
of Mrs. Martha Tranquilli. The Commission outlined the nature of
the complaints made by Mrs. Tranquilli and expressed its concern
over the inadequacy of the response received from the telephone company involved to staff letters which sought information relative to
Mrs. Tranquilli’s complaint. According to the Commission’s Order
it appeared that the carrier was unwilling to cooperate in resolving
the questions raised by Mrs. Tranquilli’s complaint through the informal complaint procedures. The Commission concluded “that it was
necessary to institute a formal investigation “. . . in order that the
questions do not go unresolved for want of the carriers voluntary
cooperation.” The Commission also stated in the Order that since
it was necessary to commence a formal investigation concerning
practices of the telephone company which were the subject of Mrs.
Tranquilli’s complaint, it was also appropriate “.. . to consider
whether a notice of liability to forfeiture should be issued for the
company’s disconnection in 1969 of Mrs. Tranquilli’s service because
she refused to pay the federal excise tax on her telephone bill.” In its
Order the Commission directed that a hearing be held pursuant to
Sections 201, 202, 203, 208 and 403 of the Communications Act of

1934, as amended. The Hearing Examiner designated was directed to
prepare an Initial Decision which was subject to exceptions and oral
argument before the Review Board.
2, Without in any way limiting the scope of the proceeding the
Commission ordered that it include
iinquiry into the following:
38 F.C.C. 2
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“1, Whether the use of the application form given to Mrs. Tranquilli was part
of an unjust or unreasonable practice in violation of Section 201 (a) or (b) of
the Act or demonstrates that Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc.,
and its affiliates are or have been engaged in unjust and unreasonable dis-

crimination in violation of Section 202(a) of the Act;
“2. Whether

Mrs.

Tranquilli

phone service and whether

has

been

incorrectly

the telephone company

billed

for interstate

has failed to make

tele-

reason-

able investigation into her complaints relating thereto, in violation of Sections
201(b), 202(a) and 203(c) of the Act;
“3. Whether the sending of the disconnection notice to Mrs. Tranquilli was

unreasonable
201(b)

under the circumstances

of the

Act

or was

unjustly

so as to constitute a violation of Section

discriminatory

contrary

to Section

202(a)

of the Act;
“4. Whether the telephone company or any of its affiliates has, by imposing a
late payment penalty charge, imposed a charge on interstate communications

other than that

set forth in the appropriate filed tariff in violation of Section

203(¢) of the Act;
“5. Whether the disconnection of service to Mrs. Tranquilli in 1969 because of
her refusal to pay the federal telephone excise tax was a violation of Section
203 (¢c) of the Act.”

3. A prehearing conference was held on August 17, 1971. At that
conference an appearance was entered by Charles H. Ryan, Esq. In
response to a request from the Examiner, Mr. Ryan stated that his
appearance was on behalf of two entities; Century Telephone Enterprises Incorporated, a telephone holding company and Mississippi
Telephone and Communications, Inc., which is a subsidiary of Century. At the prehearing conference, the parties agreed to an indefinite
continuance of the hearing in order to enable the parties to enter into
a stipulation of fact with regard to the matters encompassed by the
formal proceeding which had been instituted by the Commission.
4. On February 25, 1972, the Hearing Examiner received a Stipulation of Facts which represented agreements reached between the
parties to the. proceeding.
A . copy= of the Stipulation
of “37°
Facts was
.
7
sent. to the informal complainant, Mrs. Martha Tranquilli. In an
Order released March 14, 1972, the Stipulation of Facts was identified

as Joint Exhibit 1, made a part of the record and received into evidence. With that, the evidentiary record was closed and the parties
were directed to file proposed conclusions by April 17, 1972. They were
also directed to file copies of their proposed conclusions upon Mrs.
Tranquilli. Proposed conclusions were duly filed on behalf of the
Chief, Common Carrier Bureau, and the respondents, Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., and Century Telephone Enterprises
Incorporated. Findings of Fact are made herein by adoption of the
stipulation entered into by the parties to this proceeding and received
into evidence by the Order of March 17, 1972.
FINDINGS

OF FACT

5. Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., is the corporate name of the corporation which owns and operates the local telephone exchange facility located at Mound Bayou, Mississippi. This
company provides telephone service to Mrs. Martha Tranquilli. Tt is
an independent connecting carrier providing local telephone exchange
service solely on an intra-state basis at Mound Bayou, in Bolivar
County, Mississippi, and interstate telephone service through connection with the facilities of South Central Bell Telephone Company.
38 F.C.C. 2d
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Prior to the purchase of the telephone facilities in Mound Bayou
by the Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc., those facilities were owned and operated by the Mound Bayou Telephone Company. That company does not now own any of the facilities in Mound
Bayou and the use of the name “Mound Bayou Telephone Company’
on recent telephone bills to subscribers in Mound Bayou is incorrect.
All of the events involved with the five issues designated by the Commission relate to time periods after Mississippi Telephone and Communications,

Inc.

bought

the facilities in Mound

Bayou

from

the

Mound Bayou Telephone Company.
7. All of the stock of the Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Inc. is owned by Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. Prior
to September, 1970, the Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. was
known as Central Telephone and Electronics Corporation. The two

names refer to the same corporate entity.

8. The application form referred to in issue 1 is designated as
Southern Bell Form 3071(1-1) (Oct. 1942). This form was given to
Mrs. Tranquilli on December 22, 1969, for her completion and was used
only on this one occasion. Its use on this one occasion is described in
the affidavit of W. P. Smith, Vice President, Commercial, with Century Telephone E nterprises, Inc., supplied in response to interrogatories filed by the Common Carrier Bureau. The affidavit provides,
in part:
“T was instructed by Mr. Clarke M. Williams, President of Century Telephone
Enterprises, Inc., to go to Mound Bayou, Mississippi and to take all necessary
steps to restore telephone service to Mrs. Tranquilli. After arriving at Mound
Bayou, Mississippi on December 22, 1969, I went out to the residence of Mrs.
Tranquilli in Mound Bayou, Mississippi with Alfred Smith, the installer-repairman for the Mississippi company. Our local office in Mound Bayou did not have
any application forms, and did not have any other regular forms for application
for service that we use throughout our telephone system. I therefore, drove to
Marigold, Mississippi, which is a small town about six (6) miles from Mound
Bayou, and there I consulted with a friend of mine who is the manager of the
local Marigold, Mississippi telephone company. I asked him to let me use one of
his application blanks but he also failed to have any. However, after searching
around his office and in his desk, he was able to come up with an old Southern
Sell

Telephone

807 (7-1)

(Oct.,

form

which

1942),

he

freely

Application

gave

for

me.

New

This

or

was

Southern

Additional

Service.

Bell

Form

Without

giving any particular study to the form, I took it back with me to Mound
Bayou and gave it to Mrs. Tranquilli and asked her to sign it and mail it in to
the company at her convenience.”

The application form regularly used by the Telephone Company
in not contain any reference to the race of an applicant for service.
Notations of the race of customers are not made on any of the Telephone Company’s records.
10. Mrs. Tranquilli disputed two calls appearing on her telephone
bill with a billing date of 12/1/70. One call was designated as
“HOUSTON
FM CAMBDGE
MS _ 713-526-2811
10/28 $2.00
nn2059058” and the other as “PHILA 215-563-7110 10/20 $1.15
001532”. The designation of the Houston call indicates that it was a
third party call from Cambridge, Massachusetts. The dispute was
brought to the attention of the Telephone C ompany by a letter dated
November 30, 1970, signed by Mrs. Tranquilli in which she denied
any knowledge of a call from “Cambridge, Mississippi”, and both she
38 F.C.C. 2d
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and the Commission were unable to locate any town by that name in
the State of Mississippi. Mrs. Tranquilli deducted the amount of the
disputed calls from the payment made on the telephone bill in question. After investigation, the Telephone Company deducted the
amount of the disputed calls from Mrs. Tranquilli’s bill in order to
avoid expense of additional inquiry and to maintain good customer
relations with Mrs. Tranquilli, even though the toll tickets indicated
that the calls had in fact been placed. On all other occasions when Mrs.
Tranquilli has disputed making a call listed on her telephone bill, the
Telephone Company has deducted the amount of the disputed call
from the bill in question.
11. The Telephone Company has not developed any written set of
practices with respect to disputed toll calls. Lf the amount of the dispute is small, and the customer complains infrequently about toll
charges, credit is usually given to them without any investigation
in order to maintain good will and minimize the expense of investigation. If the amount is more substantial, or many calls are disputed, the
calls are investigated usually by calling the other party involved for

verification purposes. South Central Bell Telephone Company
forms all handling, ticketing and calculations of the billing of
calls for the exchange servicing Mrs. Tranquilli. This company
operates in inv estigating disputed toll complaints by furnishing

examining their original

party called.

pertoll
coand

toll tickets and verifying the calls with the

12. On December 1, 1970, a “Final Past Due Notice” was sent to
Mrs. Tranquilli. It stated that unless the amount of $26.47 was paid
by December 11, 1970, her telephone would be disconnected. The
amount of $26.47 is the same amount that appeared on Mrs. Tranquilli’s telephone bill with a billing date of 12/1/70. The composition
of that amount as shown on the 12/1/70 bill was a $6.99 balance from

a past bill, a $5.75 charge for local service, and amounts for toll calls
and state and federal taxes. The amount of $6.99 shown on the bill as

past due was in error. Mrs. Tranquilli had paid all amounts owing
from prior bills within 10 days of the billing dates and as of 12/1/70
" amount from prior bills was outstanding.
13. The billing in question is handled by computer operations and
the mistake resulted from error. If the amount of $6.99 had been due
and owing from a past bill as of 12/1/70, the sending of the “Final
Past Due Notice” in the amount of $26.47 would have been in accord-

ance with Telephone Company practice. If the Telephone Company’s
computer records had accurately reflected that no amount was past
due and owing, the sending of the “Final Past Due Notice” would not
have been in accordance with Telephone Company practice.
14. The telephone bills sent to Mrs. Tranquilli and other subscribers
of the Telephone Company show an “amount now due” and an amount
due after the tenth of the month. The amount due after the tenth
of the month is computed by adding 10 percent of the “amount
now due” to that amount. The “amount now due” can be partially

composed of amounts for interstate message toll service. The purpose as stated by the Telephone Company “of the 10% charge is to
defray the handling and collecting of accounts naid after the
38 F.C.C. 2d
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tenth of the month. Mrs. Tranquilli has never incurred the 10%
charge for late payment. The Telephone Company does not have any
tariff on file with the Federal Communications Commission containing
a 10% charge for late payment of interstate message toll calls, but has

had tariff authority from the Mississippi Public Service Commission

since January 1969 to impose the 10% late payment charge to intrastate bills since January 1969. The monthly bills sent to subscribers

by the company stated the amount of the penalty charge on the total
bill, including interstate calls, from January 1969 to August 1, 1971,
when the company voluatarily discontinued applying the charge to
interstate toll charges.
15. On January 20, 1968, the telephone service of Mrs, Tranquilli
was disconnected by the Telephone Company for refusal to pay the

Federal Excise Tax on the telephone service. As of the date of discon-

nection, the balance shown due on the Telephone Company records
consisted exclusively of charges for the Federal Excise Tax on telephone service which had alreaudy been paid by the company to LR.S.
By letter dated January 15, 1968, the Telephone Company stated: “We
have your letters stating that you are deliberately withholding the
excise tax because of your personal views relative to the tax. This is
to advise you that we are required to collect the tax on telephone service regardless of personal opinions.” Telephone service was restored to
Mrs. Tranquilli on December 22, 1969. Mrs. Tranquilli has continued
to withhold payment of the Federal Excise Tax on telephone service. On September 19, 1969, the Commission informed. the Telephone
Company by letter that telephone companies are not required to force
collection of the Federal Excise Tax. On November.25, 1969, the Telephone Company was informed by letter that it was the opinion of the
Commission’s staff that the denial of service to Mrs. Tranquilli was a
violation of Section 203 of the Communications Act.
16. Mississippi Telephone and Communications, Ine. is listed as a
connecting ¢: et in the American Telephone and Telegraph Company Tar iff FCC No. 257. Section 2.4.3 of the AT&T Tariff FCC No.
263 provides that “UU pon non-payment of any sum due the Telephone
Company, or upon a violation of any of the conditions governing the
furnishing of the service, the Telephone Company may be notice in
writing to the customer, without incurring any liability , forthwith discontinue the furnishing of said service.” This provision has been in
effect since at least 1967. AT&T Tariff FCC No. 263 contains no exception provisions relating to Mississippi Telephone and Communications,
Ine.
CONCLUSIONS
1. Based upon the foregoing stipulated facts, there is no real dispute between the parties to this proceeding regarding the conclusions
to be drawn from the stipulated facts as to the first3 items designated
by the Commission for inquiry - Common Carrier Bureau’s conclusions
as to the items numbered 1, 2 and 3 are, therefore, adopted. These
conclusions are:
A. The facts involved in the use of the application form do not reflect an
unjust or unreasonable practice in violation of Section 201(a) or (b) of the
Communications

Act, nor do they reflect an unjust

or unreasonable

practice

violation of Section 202(a) of the Communications Act.
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reflects that Mrs. Tranquilli’s dispute of the calls as not placed

or authorized by her was in good faith and that the Telephone Company did not
fail

to make

a reasonable

investigation

of her complaints.

Under

such

cireum-

stances it can be concluded that there was no violation of the Act.
Cc. The sending of the disconnection

of an error
connection

based
notice

on inaccurate
was

sent

notice on December

records.

to harass

There

or annoy

1, 1970 was the result

is no indication
Mrs.

Tranquilli

that the dis-

or was

part of

a general deterioration of the billing process. When the error was brought to
the attention of the Telephone Company, the records were corrected. In view
of these facts we conclude that the error was not a violation of the Act.

In its Order of Designation the Commission in Paragraph 5,
theeof, stated that it would be: appropriate “. . . to consider whether
a notice of liability to forefeiture should be issued for the company’s
disconnection in 1969 of Mrs. Tranquilli’s service because she refused
to pay the federal excise tax on her telephone bill.” It is, therefore,
concluded that for the purposes of this proceeding the only item
under which a notice of liability to forefeiture may be issued is item 5
dealing with the payment of the telephone excise tax.
3. With respect to item number 4 it is concluded that while respondent did for a period send out customer bills which contained a 10
percent penalty charge and which may have been applied to charges
for interstate or foreign communications services, such a charge was
not collected from Mrs. Tranquilli. This practice has been discontinued. A notice of liability for forefeiture would not be appropriate
under the circumstances since the Commission did not give the respondent specific notice that such liability may arise out of this
proceeding and, in any event, the practice complained of has been
discontinued.
4. Respondent’s insistence upon requiring payment of federal excise
tax and the disconnection of service to Mrs. Tranquilli in 1969 because
of her refusal to pay the federal excise tax was a violation of Section
203(c) of the Act. This violation arose by reason of the misconception

by the Telephone Company of its obligation to the federal government with respect to the collection of the excise tax. Once the matter

was called to its attention by the Commission’s staff, it changed its
practice.
—

Its operations and practices are now consistent with the
of Section 203(c) and its obligations as a connecting

‘arrier under the American Telephone and Telegraph Company’s
spelen
interstate tariffs. It is concluded that a forefeiture would
not be appropriate and none will be proposed.

5. In its proposed conclusions the respondent challenges the jurisdiction of the Commission over it in view of its status as an intrastate and connecting carrier. This question has been rendered moot
by reason of the respondent’s participation in the proceeding and the
actions taken by it to affect compliance with the requirements of the
Federal Communications Act with respect to the interstate services
which it does provide as a connecting carrier.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED
Initial Decision is taken by a party
Board reviews the Initial Decision
with the provisions of Section 1.276
TERMINATED.

that unless an appeal from this
to the proceeding, or the Review
on its own motion in accordance
of the Rules, this proceeding IS

Ernest Nasu,

Hearing Examiner,
Federal Communications Commission.
38 F.C.C.
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Oprnton ANp ORDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 27, 1972)
By THE ComMISSION:

1. On October 2, 1970, the Commission designated for hearing on a
number of issues the application of Walton Broadcasting Company
(Walton)

for renewal of the license for standard broadcast station

WMRE, Monroe, Georgia. FCC 70-1027. The issues designated by the
Commission inquired into whether Walton had filed false and misleading information with the Commission, whether Walton or its
principals had participated in a strike application, and whether there
had been an unauthorized transfer of control of station WMRE.
Thereafter, Walton filed a petition seeking reconsideration of the
designation order and a grant of its renewal application without hearing, subject. to a condition that the principals of Walton, Mr. Warren G.
Gilpin and Mrs. Clarice Pritchard, divest themselves of their broad-

cast interests. The basis of Walton’s petition was that Mr. Gilpin, a
50% owner and President of Walton and general manager of WMRE,
was physically and mentally unable to participate in the hearing or to
aid Walton in its preparation for hearing. The Commission denied the
petition for reconsideration, holding that the evidence did not show
that Gilpin was disabled to the extent claimed and that Walton would
not be deprived of due process because of limitations upon Gilpin’s
activities necessitated by his health. 28 FCC 2d 111 (1971).

2. Accordingly, the hearing commenced and testimony, including
that of Gilpin, was taken in Monroe, Georgia, on June 23-28, 1971. At

that time, the hearing was continued in order to permit Walton’s counsel to arrange for the production of medical testimony in Washington,
D.C. On October 18, 1971, Administrative Law Judge Isadore A.
Honig granted Walton’s request for an indefinite continuance of the
hearing, pending presentation to the Commission of a plan for the
disposition of Walton. FCC 71M-1658. Meanwhile, on October 2, 1971,
Henry P. Austin, Jr., on the petition of the National Bank of Monroe,

was appointed by the Walton County Superior Court as the permanent receiver of the corporate assets of Walton and of the individual
assets of Gilpin. On October 26, 1971, the Commission granted the
38 F.C.C. 2d
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B. The record reflects that Mrs. Tranquilli’s dispute of the calls as not placed
or authorized by her was in good faith and that the Telephone Company did not
fail to make a reasonable investigation of her complaints. Under such cireum-

stances it can be concluded that there was no violation of the Act.
C. The sending of the disconnection notice on December 1, 1970 was the result
of an error based on inaccurate records. There is no indication that the disconnection notice was sent to harass or annoy Mrs. Tranquilli or was part of
a general deterioration of the billing process. When the error was brought to
the attention of the Telephone Company, the records were corrected. In view

of these facts

we conclude

that the error was

not a violation of the Act.

In its Order of Designation the Commission in Paragraph 5,
thereof, stated that it would be appropriate “. . . to consider whether
a notice of liability to forefeiture should be issued for the company’s
disconnection in 1969 of Mrs. Tranquilli’s service because she refused
to pay the federal excise tax on her telephone bill.” It is, therefore,
concluded that for the purposes of this proceeding the only item
under which a notice of lability to forefeiture may be issued is item 5
dealing with the payment of the telephone excise tax.
3. With respect to item number 4 it is concluded that while respondent did for a period send out customer bills which contained a 10
percent penalty charge and which may have been applied to charges
for interstate or foreign communications services, such a charge was
not collected from Mrs. Tr anquilli. This practice has been discontinued. A notice of liability for forefeiture would not be appropriate
under the circumstances since the Commission did not give the respondent specific notice that such liability may arise out of this
proceeding and, in any event, the practice complained of has been
discontinued.
4. Respondent’s insistence upon requiring payment of federal excise
tax and the disconnection of service to Mrs. Tranquilli in 1969 because
of her refusal to pay the federal excise tax was a violation of Section
203(c) of the Act. This violation arose by reason of the misconception

by the Telephone Company of its obligation to the federal government with respect to the collection of the excise tax. Once the matter

was called to its attention by the Commission’s staff, it changed its
practice. Its operations and practices are now consistent with the
requirements of Section 203(c) and its obligations as a connecting
earrier under the American Telephone and Telegraph Company’s
applicable interstate tariffs. It is concluded that a forefeiture would
not be appropr iate and none will be proposed.
. In its proposed conclusions the respondent challenges the jurisdiction of the Commission

over it in view of its status as an

intra-

state and connecting carrier. This question has been rendered moot
by reason of the responde nt’s participation in the proceeding and the

actions taken by it to affect compliance with the requirements of the
Federal Communications Act with respect to the interstate services
which it does provide as a connecting carrier.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that unless an appeal from this
Tnitial Decision is taken by a party to the proceeding, or the Review
Board reviews the Initial Decision on its own motion in accordance
with the provisions of Section 1.276 of the Rules, this proceeding IS

TERMINATED.

Ernest Nasu,
Hearing Examiner,
Federal Communications Commission.
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Opinion AND ORDER

(Adopted November 22, 1972; Released November 27, 1972)
By tHE

Com™MIssION:

1. On October 2, 1970, the Commission designated for hearing on a

number of issues the application of Walton Broadcasting Company
(Walton) for renewal of the license for standard broadcast station
WMRE, Monroe, Georgia. FCC 70-1027. The issues designated by the
Commission inquired into whether Walton had filed false and misleading information with the Commission, whether Walton or its
principals had participated in a strike application, and whether there
had been an unauthorized transfer of control of station WMRE.
Thereafter, Walton filed a petition seeking reconsideration of the
designation order and a grant of its renewal application without hearing, subject to a condition that the principals of Walton, Mr. Warren G.
Gilpin and Mrs. Clarice Pritchard, divest themselves of their broad-

cast interests. The basis of Walton’s petition was that Mr. Gilpin, a
50% owner and President of Walton and general manager of WMRE,

was physically and mentally unable to participate in the hearing or to
aid Walton in its preparation for hearing. The Commission denied the
petition for reconsideration, holding that the evidence did not show
that Gilpin was disabled to the extent claimed and that Walton would
not be deprived of due process because of limitations upon Gilpin’s
activities necessitated by his health. 28 FCC 2d 111 (1971).

2. Accordingly, the hearing commenced and testimony, including
that of Gilpin, was taken in Monroe, Georgia, on June 23-28, 1971. At
that time, the hearing was continued in order to permit Walton’s counsel to arrange for the production of medical testimony in Washington,
D.C. On October 18, 1971, Administrative Law Judge Isadore A.
Honig granted Walton’s request for an indefinite continuance of the
hearing, pending presentation to the Commission of a plan for the
disposition of Walton. FCC 71M-1658. Meanwhile, on October 2, 1971,

Henry P. Austin, Jr., on the petition of the National Bank of Monroe,
was appointed by the Walton County Superior Court as the permanent receiver of the corporate assets of Walton and of the individual
assets of Gilpin. On October 26, 1971, the Commission granted the
38 F.C.C. 2d
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involuntary assignment of the license of WMRE from Walton to
Austin.
3. Now before the Commission is a Petition for Extraordinary Relief+ filed by Henry P. Austin, Jr. (Austin) seeking: (1) termination
~
of the hearing on the license renewal application for W MRE; (2)
a
grant without further hearing of the license renewal; and (3) approval
of the assignment of the license for WMRE from Austin to three Monroe, Georgia, residents. In the petition, Austin states that Mr. Gilpin
has been found in accordance with Georgia law? to be mentally ill and
incapable of managing his own estate, ‘and asa consequence has been
committed to the Central State Hospital at Milledgeville, Georgia.°
Austin argues that illness and incapacity have been recognized by the
Commission as a basis for granting exceptions to the general policy
of not allowing an assignment of a broadcast license while there are
character issues outstanding against the licensee or its principals.*
Thus, Austin argues that, considering Mr. Gilpin’s physical and mental ill health and the fact that he has been committed to a mental institution, the Commission should not proceed with the hearing on the
renewal application for WMRE but rather should grant the renewal
and approve the requested assignment of the station. As further support for his petition, Austin states that Mr. Gilpin and Walton are
currently bankrupt, and that only through a sale of WMRE can their
innocent creditors ever recover the sums owed them. Moreover, Austin
alleges that if the renewal application for the station were to be ultimately denied, Mr. Gilpin would be rendered destitute, and, as a consequence, the State of Georgia would be forced to bear the entire cost
of his hospitalization. In this regard, Austin states that, if the assignment is approved, no profit will accrue to Mr. Gilpin since any surplus
funds from the sale would be paid into an irrevocable trust with the
income therefrom going to the Georgia Central State Hospital to
help defray the cost ‘of Mr. Gilpin’s hospitalization.
4. We do not believe that the above allegations justify our granting
the license renewal application for W MRE and the proposed assignments of the station while serious questions concerning the character
qualifications of Mr. Gilpin and Walton remain unresolved. It is our
firm and long-established policy that an assignment of a broadcast
license will not be considered while issues concerning the character
qualifications of the licensee or its principals are outstanding.® It was
1 Other pleadings before the Commission are (1) comments on the petition filed by the
Chief, Broadcast Bureau, on August 31, 1972; (2) an opposition tiled by Community
Broadcasting Company on August 31, 1972;
(3) comments filed by Charles M. Haasl,
James

N.

response

Williamson

filed

by the

and

Chief,

Raymond

L.

Broadcast

Dehler

Bureau

on

on

August

31,

September

1972 ; (4)

13, 1972;

a

and

supplemental

(5)

a reply

by Henry P. Austin, Jr. on October 10, 1972. The Chief, Broadcast Bureau requested leave
to file his supplemental response. There is no opposition to such request, and it will be
granted.
2 Citing Sections 8S8—507.2 and SS—507.3 of the Georgia Code.
3 Attached
to Austin’s petition is a certified copy of the judicial order committing

Mr.

Gilpin

to the

Central

State

Hospital.

Also

attached

is an

affidavit

of

Dr.

Carl

L.

Smith,
Unit Director at the Central
State Hospital,
wherein
Dr. Smith
states that
Mr. Gilpin is suffering from, among other ailments, organic brain syndrome associated
with alcohol paranoid state, alcoholic addiction, drug dependence, and several damaged
organ

systems.

aor

Martin R. Karig, FCC

64-850

3 RR 2d 669

(1964)

and Tinker, Inc., 8 FCC

2d 22

(1967).
5 See Jefferson Radio Co., Inc. v. F.C.C., 340 F. 2d 781 (1964) : Tidewater Teleradio, 24
RR 653 (1962); and Milton Broadcasting Co., 12 FCC 2d 354 (1968). We note here that,
while technically Mr. Austin is now the licensee of Station WMRE, he became such subject
to the issues which had already been designated against Walton at the time Mr, Austin

became the licensee. See Capital City Communications,
34 FCC 2d 685 (1972).

38 F.C.C. 2d

Inc., 33 FCC

2d 703;

recon.

denied
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on the basis of this policy that we denied Walton’s petition for reconsideration of the designation order in this case. Austin, in his instant
petition, seeks esssentially the same relief as that sought by Walton in
its petition for reconsideration, and the only new allegations which
Austin makes are: (1) those concerning Mr. Gilpin’s commitment to a

mental institution, and (2) that Mr. Gilpin will not profit from the
proposed assignment since any surplus funds will be deposited in an
irrevocable trust. As for the first allegation, we note that the extent
to which Mr. Gilpin is now incapacitated is the subject of some controversy. Apparently, Mr. Gilpin currently is capable of full-time employment and is also able to drive an automobile.? Thus, it would
appear that Mr, Gilpin’s disability is somewhat less than total. Moreover, the hearing in this case, including the testimony of Mr. Gilpin,
is substantially completed and the remaining hearing process will not
in our opinion unduly burden Mr. Gilpin nor seriously jeopardize his
health. Thus, we must conclude, as we did in our denial of Walton’s
petition for reconsideration, that the allegations regarding Mr. Gil-

pin’s health are insufficient to warrant a termination of the hearing
and a grant of the proposed assignment.
5. While we are sympathetic to Mr. Gilpin’s desire not to become a

burden on the State of Georgia, we do note that he is currently employed and earning a salary of $68.00 per week.* Moreover, we also
note that the contract of sale provides that $61,000 of the $151,000
sales price is to be paid in ten equal installments to Preston Gilpin as
guardian ad litem and trustee for Warren G. Gilpin. This money, the
contract states, is to be placed in an irrevocable trust “for the care and
maintenance of the said Warren G. Gilpin.” This sum must be regarded
as a profit to Mr. Gilpin from the sale of the station since, while he may
not have immediate access to this money, he clearly will benefit from its
use. Thus, the proposed sale violates our stricture against sanctioning
a license assignment which will result in a significant benefit to a putative wrongdoer. While we have stated that an assignment may be
6The Broadcast Bureau suggests that Austin has attempted to perpetrate “an outrageous fraud on this Commission” by falsely claiming that Gilpin is severely disabled
and without a current source of income. The Bureau requests that an existing issue, which
inauires into whether false and misleading information has been submitted to the Commis-

sion by Walton,

information

be broadened

in his petition

pleading, Austin

in order to determine

for extraordinary

states that when

whether

relief. However,

he submitted

Austin

has submitted

such

in his reply to the Bureau’s

the instant petition he had no knowledge

of Gilpin’s
condition.
ments and
Bureau. Of

employment and that he was relying upon medical opinions as to Gilpin’s
We have concluded that Austin’s reply satisfactorily explains his prior statethat no purpose would be served by initiating the inquiry requested by the
course, this conclusion does not obviate the need for resolution of the presently

designated

issues.

7 See Reply of Henry P. Austin, Jr., Ex
8 The remainder of the sales price, Sot. 000, is to be paid to Henry P. Austin, Jr. as
receiver for Walton and Mr. Gilpin. Presum: ibly, this money will be used to pay the debts
of Walton, amounting to approximately $42,000 and to extinguish partially the debts of
Mr. Gilpin, which amount to approximately $94,700. To the extent that the proceeds from
the sale would be used to relieve Mr. Gilpin of either secondary liability for Walton’s
debts or of primary liability for his own, such use would violate our policy of not allowing
a benefit from a license assignment to accrue to a principal against whom character issues
are outstanding. See Capital City Communications, Inc., 33 FCC 2d 703; recon. denied,
34 FCC
®See

2d 685

(1972).

Capital City Communications, Inc., supra, and Milton Broadcasting Co., supra.
The element of profit distinguishes this case from Martin R. Karig, supra, and Tinker, Inc.,
supra, cited by Austin. In those two cases, the Commission found that no profit would
acerue to the stations’ principals from the sales of the stations. Furthermore, in Tinker,
the Commission also found that an evidentiary hearing would seriously worsen the ill
principal’s condition, and that he was unable to assist in his own defense at the hearing,
whereas in the instant case the hearing is substantially completed, and there has been no
allegation that completion of the hearing would endanger Gilpin’s health.

38 F.C.C. 2
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granted where the principal involved will receive “only a minor benefit which is outweighed by the equities in favor of innocent. creditors,” 1° we cannot regard the benefit which would accrue to Mr. Gilpin
should the assignment be approved as a minor one. We therefore must
deny Austin’s Petition for Extraordinary Relief.
6. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the request of the Chief,
Broadcast Bureau, filed September 13, 1972, for leave to file a supplemental response IS GRANTED, and such ‘supplemental response IS
ACCEPTED.
7. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the Petition for Extraordinary Relief filed by Henry P. Austin, Jr. on August 1, 1972, IS

DENIED.

FeperaL

CoMMUNICATIONS
_

10 Capital
2d 515

City Communications,

(1970).

as F.C.C.

2d

Inc., supra.
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Ben F. Warre, Secretary.
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COMMUNICATIONS
Wasnutneton,

In Re Applications of
WHCN,
Ixc.
(WHCN-FM),
Conn.
For Renewal of License

D.C.

COMMISSION
20554

Harrtrorp, | Docket No. 18805
File No. BRH-24

KENNETH W. Sasso, W. Francts PINGREE AND { Docket No. 18806
LAWRENCE H. Buck, p.p.a. Communicom | File No. BPH-6806
Mept1a, Inc., Bertrx, Conn.
For Construction Permits
MeMoRANDUM

QOPrNton

AND

ORDER

(Adopted November 24, 1972; Released November 28, 1972)
By tre Review Boarp: Boarp Memper BERKEMEYER ABSENT.
1. WHCN, Ine. (WHCN), requests the Board to add a series of

issues to this proceeding and to find good cause for the late filing of
the petition to enl: arge.! WHCN has established good cause for “the
late filing of its petition. The request for a legal qualifications i issue
against Communicom has been withdrawn by petitioner, and it will not
be considered further.
2. An issue based on Communicom’s failure to include all information called for by the application form (Section 1.514(a) of the Rules)

will be added. Communicom’s March, 1972 amendment, including the
exhibits filed in April, does not adequately respond to the requirements
of the form, for the reasons noted by petitioner and the Bureau. It is
unnecessary for the Board to spell out these deficiencies. However,
since Communicom is not represented by counsel and since the omissions appear to stem more from ignorance than an effort to conceal, the
issue will be cast only in terms of the effect these deficiencies have on
that applicant’s comparative qualifications.
The Board agrees with the Broadcast Bureau’s arguments for not
adding ineptness and abuse of process issues against Communicom.
4. One of the owners of Communicom, Mr. Pingree, would appear
to be in violation of the Commission’s cross interest policy were he to
continue to serve as a part-time announcer at WHNB-TYV after a
grant to Communicom. Therefore a cross interest issue will be added.
_— ever, were adequate assurances to be given that, in the event of a
rant to Communicom, Mr. Pingree would discontinue employment
with WHNB-TY prior to the issuance of a construction permit, the
Ww
issue would be rendered moot.
1The

pleadings

under consideration

are:

(a)

petition

to enlarge issues, filed by WHCN,

on May 9, 1972: (b) Broadcast Bureau's comments, filed May 31, 1972;
and request to dismiss, filed May 19, 1972, by Communicom Media; and
WHCN, filed June 9, 1972.

(c) comment
(d) reply of
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5. The Section 1.65 issue requested by petitioner will be added; it
is apparent from the pleadings that Communicom may not have kept
the Commission promptly informed of significant personnel changes as
they involved Mr. Pingree and Mr. Sasso. For the reasons noted in
connection with the Rule 1.514 issue, the Rule 1.65 issue will also be

limited to consideration of the effect non-compliance may have on
errr wen s comparative qualifications.
Sufficient doubt exists as to the real party-in-interest in Comwien to warrant the addition of an issue. Mr. Hershfeld’s interest
in the applicant may well exceed that represented in the application,
and Communicom has made no adequate response on this question to
petitioner’s allegations. A candor issue is also justified since the ambiguity of Mr. Hershfeld’s role and other recent changes in the plan
of financing of the applicant cast doubts on earlier assertions by
Communicom that it had $24,000 on deposit.

7. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, That the issues herein ARE
=NLARGED by the addition of the following :
(a)

To determine whether Communicom

Media, Inc., has failed to comply with

the provisions of Sections 1.514(a) and 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules, and,
if so, the effect of such failure on that applicant’s comparative qualifications.
(b) To determine whether a grant to Communicom Media, Inc., would violate
the Commission’s cross interest policy as it applies to the operation of FM and
television stations serving substantially the same area.
(c) To determine whether the application of Communicom Media, Inc., and
the amendments thereto have accurately reflected the real parties-in-interest
in that application, and, if not, to determine who are the real parties-in-interest.
(d) To determine whether the principals of Communicom Media, Inc., or any
of them, have made any false statements or misrepresentations or have been
lacking in candor in their submissions to the Commission in connection with that
application.
(e) To determine, in view of the facts ascertained under the three preceding
issues, whether Communicom Media, Inc., possesses the qualifications to be a
licensee of this Commission.

8. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That the burden of proceeding
under issues (a) through (e) above SHALL BE upon WHCN and the
burden of proof under all the above issues SHALL BE upon Communicom Media;
9. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, That in all other respects the
petition to enlarge issues, filed May 9, 1972, by WHCN, Inc., IS
DENIED, and that the request to ‘dismiss WHCN’s petition, filed

May 19, 1972, by Communicom Media, Inc., IS DENIED.
FrepErAL CoMMUNICATIONS

COMMISSION,

Bren F. Warte, Secretary.

